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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Members of Steel Exchange India Limited ("the
Company") will be held on Friday, Friday, the 27th day of September 2024 at 12.30 P.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing
("VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM") without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue, to
transact the businesses mentioned below:

The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the
deemed Venue of the AGM.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board and Auditors thereon and in this regard, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
together with the Reports of the Auditors and the Board of Directors thereon for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 be and are hereby received, considered and adopted."

2. To re-appoint Mr. Bavineni Suresh (DIN: 00181832), who retires by rotation as Director and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment and in this regard, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Bavineni Suresh (DIN: 00181832), who retires by rotation as Director in accordance with
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 be and is hereby re-appointed as a director liable to retire by rotation."

3. To re-appoint Mr. Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao (DIN: 00206884), who retires by rotation as Director and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, to pass the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and in terms of Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Veeramachaneni
Venkata Krishna Rao (DIN: 00206884), who retires by rotation at this meeting and who attains the age of seventy-six
years, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, whose period of office shall be liable to retire by
rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to take such steps and do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this resolution."

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration and in this regard pass the Following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, M/s. Pavuluri & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 012194S) be and are hereby appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this 25th Annual General Meeting until
the conclusion of 30th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2029, at such remuneration plus applicable
taxes, out-of-pocket, travelling and living expenses, etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors
of the Company and the Auditors."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2025.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs.8.00 lakh plus applicable
taxes payable to Dendukuri & Co., Cost Accountants (Proprietor Mr. D Zitendra Rao Cost Accountant with Membership
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Number: 10087), who have been appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
as the Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company, for the
Financial Year ending March 31, 2025."

6. To issue Convertible Equity Warrants to Non-Promoter of the Company on preferential basis:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 23(1)(b), 42, 62(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) (hereinafter referred to as the "Act") and in accordance with the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the provisions of Chapter V - "Preferential Issue" and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as may be modified or re-enacted from time to time (hereinafter referred to as "SEBI ICDR
Regulations"), the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the " SEBI Listing Regulations") Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, and all other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, notifications, guidelines, circulars and clarifications issued by various authorities including but not
limited to the Government of India ("GOI"), the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA") and other competent authorities, and subject to the approvals, permissions, sanctions and
consents as may be necessary from any regulatory and other appropriate authorities (including but not limited to the
GOI, SEBI, MCA, etc.), and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed by any of them while
granting such approvals, permissions, sanctions and consents, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of
the Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Board", which term shall be deemed to include any committee which the
Board has constituted or may constitute to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution), the
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to create, offer, issue and allot, in one or more
tranches, up to 7,08,51,060 Convertible Equity Warrants  ("Warrants") of the Company having a face value of Re.1/-
(Rupee One only) each, at an issue price of Rs.14.10/- per Warrant (including a premium of Rs.13.10 per Warrant)
determined as on the Relevant Date in accordance with Regulation 164(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations for an
aggregate consideration not exceeding Rs. 99,90,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety-Nine Crores and Ninety Lakhs only), by
way of a preferential allotment and in such manner and on such other terms and conditions, as the Board may, in its

absolute discretion, think fit to the following persons ("Proposed Allottees") given below:

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the relevant date
for determining the floor price for the Preferential Issue of the Warrants is 28th August 2024, being the date 30 days prior
to the date of this AGM ("Relevant Date") on which this special resolution is proposed to be passed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above Resolution, the issue of the Warrants to
the Proposed Allottees under the Preferential Issue shall be subject to the following terms and conditions apart from
others as prescribed under applicable laws:

a) The Equity Shares to be so allotted on exercise of the Warrants shall be in dematerialized form and shall be
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and shall rank pari-
passu in all respects including dividend, with the existing Equity Shares of the Company. The Warrants may be

S.No. Name of Proposed Allottee Category PAN
No. of Warrants proposed to

issue and allot

1 M/s Adelaar Industrial Resources
Private Limited Non-Promoter AAXCA4799G 4,25,53,190

2 Ms. Gunakala Vijayalakshmi Non-Promoter AGZPG7425Q 2,82,97,870

TOTAL 7,08,51,060
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exercised into Equity Shares as aforesaid by the Warrant holder(s) at any time before the expiry of 18 months
from the date of allotment of the Warrants.

b) The Equity Shares to be allotted on exercise of the Warrants shall be locked in for such period as specified in the
provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

c) The Warrants proposed to be issued shall be subject to appropriate adjustment, if during the interim period, the
Company makes any issue of equity shares by way of capitalization of profits or reserves, upon demerger /
realignment, rights issue or undertakes consolidation/sub-division/reclassification of equity shares or such other
similar event so or circumstances requiring adjustments as permitted under SEBI ICDR Regulations and all other
applicable regulations from time to time.

d) A Warrant subscription price equivalent to 25% (i.e. the upfront amount) of the issue price will be payable at the
time of subscription to the Warrants, as prescribed by Regulation 169 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which will
be kept by the Company to be adjusted and appropriated against the issue price of the Warrants. A Warrant
exercise price equivalent to the 75% of the issue price shall be paid at the time of allotment of the equity shares
pursuant to exercise of options against each such Warrant by the Warrant Holder.

e) The respective Warrant Holders shall make payment of Warrant subscription price and Warrant exercise price
from their own bank account into the designated bank account of the Company and in the case of joint holders,
shall be received from the bank account of the person whose name appears first in the application.

f) In the event the Warrant Holder(s) does not exercise the Warrants within 18 months from the date of allotment,
the Warrants shall lapse and the amount paid shall stand forfeited by the Company.

g) The said Warrants shall be issued and allotted by the Company to the Proposed Allottees within a period of 15
days from the date of passing of this resolution provided that where the allotment of the said Warrants is pending
on account of pendency of any approval for such allotment by any regulatory authority or the Central Government,
the allotment shall be completed within a period of 15 days from the date of such approval. Allotment of Equity
Shares pursuant to exercise of the Warrants will be completed within 15 days from the date of such exercise by
the Proposed Allottee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Act and subject to receipt of such approvals as may be
required under applicable law, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to record the
name and address of the Proposed Allottees and issue a private placement offer cum application letter in the Form
PAS-4 to the Proposed Allottees inviting to subscribe to the Warrants in accordance with the provisions of the applicable
Acts.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to accept any modification(s) in the terms of
issue of Warrants, subject to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, without being required to seek
any further consent or approval of the Members.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board / any Committee of the
Board, be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to take all actions and to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things (including sub-delegating its powers to such other authorized representatives) as it may, in its
absolute discretion, deem necessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, including deciding the dates of allotment,
revising the Relevant Date in accordance with applicable law, deciding and / or finalizing other terms of issue and
allotment in consonance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, appointing intermediaries, advisors, consultants, bankers,
other agencies, applying to depositories for admission of securities / lock-in of securities, giving credit for securities so
allotted directly into the depository accounts of the Proposed Allottees, listing of the equity shares upon exercise of
Warrants , and to modify, accept and give effect to any modifications to the terms and conditions of the issue as may
be required by the statutory, regulatory and other appropriate authorities including but not limited to GOI, SEBI, MCA,
etc. and such other approvals (including approvals of the existing lenders of the Company, if required) and as may be
agreed by the Board, and to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in the proposed issue, pricing of
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the issue, allotment of Warrants, allotment and listing of the equity shares arising there from, including utilization of
the issue proceeds, canceling the unsubscribed portion (if any) and to execute all such affidavits, agreements,
applications, deeds, declarations, documents, forms, letters, returns, undertakings, writings, etc. in connection with
the proposed issue as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem necessary or desirable without being required to
seek any further consent or approval of the shareholders or otherwise with the intent that the shareholders shall be
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein
conferred, as it may deem fit in its absolute direction, to any committee of the Board or any one or more Director(s)/
Company Secretary/any Officer(s) of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board or committee(s) duly constituted for this purpose in
connection with any matter(s) referred to or contemplated in the foregoing resolution be and are hereby approved,
ratified, and confirmed in all respects."

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Steel Exchange India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Raveendra Babu M
Date:  29.08.2024 Company Secretary

M.No: A34409
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Notes:

1. As you are aware, In view of the outbrake COVID-19 pandemic and pursuant to General Circulars No. 14/2020 dated
April 8, 2020, No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021,
No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 and No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, No 10/2022, 11/2022, December 28, 2022
and 09/2023, September 25, 2023  issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to as 'MCA Circulars'
in relation to "Clarification on holding of AGM & EGM through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means
(OAVM)", (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") permitted the holding of the AGM & EGM through VC/OAVM,
without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, the AGM &
EGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD/-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167,
dated October 7, 2023 issued by SEBI ("SEBI Circular") and pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act
and Rules made thereunder.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-
voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic
means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as
the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of    participation at the
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA Circulars, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this
AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the
members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/
OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. Voting during the AGM: Members who are present at the e-AGM through VC and have not cast their vote on resolutions
through remote e-voting, may cast their vote during the e-AGM through the e-voting system provided by CDSL in the
Video Conferencing platform during the e-AGM. Kindly refer below for instruction for e-voting during the AGM.

7. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.seil.co.in. The Notice can also be accessed from the
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing
the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM/) i.e.,www.evotingindia.com.

8. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), relating to the Special Business
under Item Nos. 5 and 6 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") and Secretarial
Standards-2, of the persons seeking appointment/re-appointment as Directors, are also annexed.

9. Brief profile of Mr. V V Krishna Rao and Mr. B Suresh, Directors proposed to be appointed / reappointed along with the
names of the Companies in which they hold directorships and memberships/ chairmanships of Board Committees,
shareholding and other details as required under Secretarial Standard on General Meetings and Regulation 36(3) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations are also annexed to this notice.

10. In accordance with, the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 issued by MCA and Circular No. SEBI/HO/
CFD/ CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 issued by SEBI, owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of
physical copies of the financial statements (including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor's report or other documents
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required to be attached therewith), such statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode to
Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s).

11. The registers i.e., Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding and Register of Contracts
or Arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under Section 170 and Section 189 of the Act respectively
will be available electronically for inspection by members during the AGM. All documents referred to in this Notice and
the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the
members from the date of circulation of this notice up to the date of AGM, i.e., September 27, 2024. Members seeking
to inspect such documents can send an email to cs@seil.co.in.

12. As per Regulation 40 of the Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in
dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition
of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management,
members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form.
Members can contact the Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s. Venture Capital & Corporate Investments
Private Limited, Hyderabad for assistance in this regard.

13. To support the 'Green Initiative', members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to
register their e-mail address with their Depository participants (DPs), in case the shares are held by them in electronic
form/Demat form and with Venture Capital & Corporate Investments Private Limited, in case the shares are held by
them in physical form for receiving all communication(s) including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the
Company electronically. Alternatively, members holding shares in physical form are requested to send their email
address and mobile number to the company mail id cs@seil.co.in .

14. In accordance with SEBI LODR (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (4th amendment) Regulations, 2018
notified on June 07, 2018 and further notification dated 30/11/2018 any request for physical transfer of shares shall not
be processed w.e.f. April 01,2019. Further, in compliance with SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/
P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January 2022, the following requests received by the Company in physical form will be
processed and the shares will be issued in dematerialization form only: -

• Issue of duplicate share certificate

• Claim from unclaimed suspense account

• Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate

• Endorsement

• Sub-division / splitting of securities certificate

• Consolidation of securities certificates/folios

• Transmission

• Transposition

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which is hosted on the website
of the company as well as on the website of Venture Capital & Corporate Investments Private Limited, Registrar and
share transfer agent (RTA) The aforementioned form shall be furnished in hard copy form.

15. Pursuant to Securities & Exchange Board of India vide its circulars SEBI/HO/MIRSDMIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655
dated 3rd November, 2021, SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated 14th December, 2021 and SEBI/
HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_POD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16th March, 2023 it is mandatory for holders of physical securities to
furnish valid PAN (where the PAN is liked with Aadhaar), full KYC details (address proof, email address, mobile number,
bank account details) and nomination (for all the eligible folios).

Freezing of Folios without valid PAN, KYC details, Nomination.

a. In case, any of the aforesaid documents/details are not available in a Folio, on or after 31st December, 2023, the
same shall be frozen by RTA.

b. Similarly, in case the PAN(s) in a folio is/are not valid as on the cut-off date specified by The Central Board of Direct
Taxes (CBDT) then also the folio shall be Frozen as above.
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c. A member/claimant will be eligible to lodge grievance or avail service request from the RTA or eligible for any
payment including dividend only after furnishing the complete documents or details as aforesaid.

In case the folio continues to remain frozen as on 31st December, 2025, the RTA / Company shall refer such frozen
folios to the Administering Authority under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and or Prevention of
Money Laundering Act, 2002.

We would further like to draw your attention to SEBI Notification dated 24th January, 2022 and SEBI Circular SEBI/
HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022. Accordingly, while processing service requests
in relation to; 1) Issue of duplicate securities certificate; 2) Claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; 3) Renewal/
Exchange of securities certificate; 4) Endorsement; 5) Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate; 6) Consolidation
of securities certificates/folios; 7) Transmission and 8) Transposition, the Company shall issue securities only in
dematerialised form. For processing any of the aforesaid service requests the securities holder/claimant shall
submit duly filled up Form ISR-4.

We hereby request to holders of physical securities to furnish the documents/details, as per the table below for
respective service request, to the Registrars & Transfer Agents i.e., M/s Venture Capital & Corporate Investments
Private Limited. A member needs to submit Form ISR-1 for updating PAN and other KYC details to the RTA of the
Company. Member may submit Form SH-13 to file Nomination. However, in case a Member do not wish to file
nomination 'declaration to Opt-out' in Form ISR-3 shall be submitted.

Sr. No. Particulars Please furnish details in

1 PAN

2 Address with PIN Code

3 Email address

4 Mobile Number

5 Bank account details (Bank name and Branch, Bank account
number, IFS Code)

6 Demat Account Number

7 Specimen Signature

8 Nomination details

9 Declaration to opt out nomination

10 Cancellation or Variation of Nomination

11 Request for issue of Securities in dematerialized form in case of below:

i. Issue of duplicate securities certificate

ii. Claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account

iii. Renewal / Exchange of securities certificate

iv. Endorsement

v. Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate

vi. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios

vii. Transmission

viii. Transposition

Form No.: ISR-1

Form No.: ISR-2

Form No.: SH-13

Form No.: ISR-3

Form No.: SH-14

Form No.: ISR-4
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In case of major mismatch in the signature of the members(s) as available in the folio with the RTA and the present
signature or if the signature is not available with the RTA, then the member(s) shall be required to furnish Banker's
attestation of the signature as per Form ISR2 along-with the documents specified therein. Hence, it is advisable that the
members send the Form ISR-2 along with the Form ISR-1 for updating of the KYC Details or Nomination. All the
aforesaid forms can be downloaded from the website of the Company and from the website of the RTA at https://
www.vccipl.com/

16. Members are requested to register or intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address,
telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as,
name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc to their Depository Participants
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts in case the shares are held by them in electronic form/demat
form and to Venture Capital & Corporate Investments Private Limited in case the shares are held by them in physical
form.

17. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, the 21st day
of September, 2024 to Friday, the 27th day of September, 2024 (both days inclusive).

18. Remote e-Voting: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members through e-Voting agency with M/s. Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) Only those Members,
whose names appear in Register of Members / List of beneficial owners as on Friday, September 20, 2024 ("Cut-off
Date") shall be entitled to vote (through remote e-voting and during AGM) on the resolutions set forth in this Notice and
their voting rights shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the Cut-
off Date. A person who is not a member as on the Cut-off Date should treat this Notice for information only.

19. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend
the AGM on its behalf and to vote either through remote e-voting or during the AGM. The said Resolution/ Authorization
should be sent electronically through their registered email address to the Scrutinizer at cs@bssandassociates.com
with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and company's email id at cs@seil.co.in.

20. The Board of Directors has appointed M/s B S S & Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize
the remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

21. The Scrutinizer will make a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against and invalid
votes, if any, to the Chairman / Managing Director of the Company or in his absence to any other Director authorized by
him in writing, who shall countersign the same. Based on the Scrutinizer's Report, the result will be declared by the
Chairman / Managing Director or in his absence by the Company Secretary or any other Director authorised by him in
writing, within two working days from the conclusion of the AGM at the Registered Office of the Company. Subject to
receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM i.e.,
September 27th, 2024.

22. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, the member(s) holding shares in physical form
may nominate, in the prescribed manner, a person to whom all the rights in the shares shall vest in the event of death
of the sole holder or all the joint holders. Member(s) holding shares in demat form may contact their respective Depository
Participant for availing this facility

23. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to intimate any change in their address and / or bank mandate
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immediately to their Depository Participants and Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate
any change of address and/ or bank mandate to M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited/
Investor Service Department of the Company immediately.

24. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to
the Company or RTA, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in one
folio. A consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes.

25. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register
of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

26. A proxy is allowed to be appointed under Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 to attend and vote at the general
meeting on behalf of a member who is not able to attend personally. Since the AGM will be convened through VC /
OAVM, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Hence, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route
Map are not annexed to this Notice.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday the 24th September, 2024 at 9:00 am and ends on Thursday the 26th
September, 2024 at 5:00 pm. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 20th September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically.
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has
been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible
level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable
e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease
and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in Demat
mode with CDSL

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on
Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/
LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page
or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting
option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website
of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is
launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login" which is available under
'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click   at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is
available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in demat
mode) login through their
Depository Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Deposi-
tory Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login,
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in Demat
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and
22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in Demat
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
individual holding in Demat form.
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on "Shareholders" module.
3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-

voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant
are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/
RTA.

Dividend Bank
Details
OR Date of Birth
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your
demat account or in the company records in order to login.
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the

member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
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(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Steel Exchange India Limited> on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option "YES/NO" for
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and
accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians -For Remote Voting only.

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to
log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the "Corporates" module.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance

• User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link
the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

• Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; cs@seil.co.in or
csravindra.seil@gmail.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from individual
tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING
ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting and e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful
login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a
speaker by sending their request in advance at least 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during
the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance at least 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by
the company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders
have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the
meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy
of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or call on 022-23058542/43.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AS AMENDED ('ACT')

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the following Explanatory Statement sets out all material
facts relating to the business mentioned under Item No.5 and 6 of the accompanying Notice dated 29th August, 2024.

Item No 5 : Ratification  of Remuneration of the Cost auditor for the Finacial year ending 31st March, 2025.

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, the Company have to maintain cost records and have to audit its cost records for products
covered under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 conducted by a Cost Accountant in Practice. Based
on the documents available and the discussions held at the meeting of the Audit Committee, it considered and recommended
the appointment and remuneration of the Cost Auditor to the Board of Directors ('Board'). The Board has, on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment and remuneration to Dendukuri & Co., Cost Accountants (proprietor
Mr. D Zitendra Rao, Cost and Management Accountants) as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-25.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company. The Board of Directors has fixed the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2024-25 at Rs.8.00 lakh plus applicable taxes. Accordingly, the consent
of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or interested
in the Resolution mentioned at the Notice.

Item No. 6 : To Offer, Issue and Allot Convertible Equity Warrants on Preferential Basis:

In accordance with Sections 23(1)(b), 42 and 62(1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
"Act") and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 ("SEBI ICDR Regulations") and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the "SEBI Listing Regulations"), as amended from
time to time, approval of shareholders of the Company by way of special resolution is required to issue Convertible Equity
Warrants ("Warrants") by way of Preferential allotment on a preferential basis to the Proposed Allottees.

The following details of the proposed preferential issue of the Warrants are disclosed in accordance with the provisions of
the Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations:

i) Particulars of the Preferential Issue including date of passing of Board resolution and maximum number of
specified securities to be issued

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 29th August 2024 has, subject to the approval of the Members and such
other approvals as may be required, approved the issuance of up to 7,08,51,060 Warrants of the Company having a
face value of Re.1/- (Rupee One only) each, at an issue price of Rs. 14.10 per Warrant (including a premium of
Rs.13.10 per Warrant) price being not less than the minimum price determined as on the Relevant Date in accordance
with Regulation 164(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for an aggregate consideration not exceeding
Rs. 99,90,00000 /- (Rupees Ninety-Nine Crore and Ninety Lakhs only) to the non-promoters, for cash consideration,
by way of a preferential issue on a preferential basis.

ii) Kinds of securities offered and the price at which security is being offered, and the total/ maximum number
of securities to be issued.

Up to 7,08,51,060  Warrants of the Company having a face value of Re.1/- (Rupee One only) each, at an issue price of
Rs.14.10 per Warrant (including a premium of Rs.13.10 per Warrant), for an aggregate consideration not exceeding
Rs. 99,90,00000 /- (Rupees Ninety-Nine Crore and Ninety Lakhs only), such price being not less than the minimum
price determined as on the Relevant Date 28th August, 2024 determined in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
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iii) Basis on which the price has been arrived at and justification for the price (including premium, if any)

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
("NSE") (together referred to as the "Stock Exchanges"). The Equity Shares are frequently traded in terms of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”), being the Stock Exchange with higher trading
volumes for the preceding ninety trading days prior to the Relevant Date, has been considered for determining the floor
price in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

In terms of the applicable provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the floor price for the Preferential Issue is Rs.14.08
per Warrant. The price per Warrant to be issued pursuant to the preferential issue is fixed at Rs.14.10, being not less
than the floor price computed in accordance with Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

iv) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation

Not  Applicable.

v) The amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities.

Not exceeding Rs. 99,90,00000 /- (Rupees Ninety-Nine Crore and Ninety Lakhs only)

vi) Purpose/Objects of the Preferential Issue and aggregate amount proposed to be raised.

The Company proposes to raise an amount not exceeding Rs. 99,90,00000 /- (Rupees Ninety-Nine Crore and Ninety
Lakhs only) by issue of Warrants on preferential basis. The proceeds of the Preferential Issue shall be utilized for Capex
and working capital requirement and other general corporate purposes of the Company.

vii) Relevant Date.

In terms of Regulation 161 of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Relevant Date for determining the floor price
for the preferential issue is 28th August 2024, being the working day preceding 30 days prior to the date of this Annual
General Meeting (AGM), which happens to be 27th September 2024.

viii) The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made.

The preferential issue of Warrants on preferential basis is proposed to be made to the following Proposed Allottees
given below:

S.No. Name of Proposed Allottee Category PAN
No. of Warrants proposed to

issue and allot

1 M/s Adelaar Industrial Resources
Private Limited Non-Promoter AAXCA4799G 4,25,53,190

2 Ms. Gunakala Vijayalakshmi Non-Promoter AGZPG7425Q 2,82,97,870

TOTAL 7,08,51,060

ix) Intent of the Promoters, directors, or key managerial personnel or senior management of the Company to
subscribe to the Preferential Issue

None of the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Management or their relatives intend to
subscribe Warrants on preferential basis.

x) Proposed time frame within which the Preferential Issue shall be completed.

As required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Warrants on preferential basis shall be allotted by the Company
within a maximum period of 15 days from the date of passing of this Resolution, provided that where the allotment of the
proposed Warrants is pending on account of receipt of any approval or permission from any regulatory or statutory
authority, the allotment shall be completed within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of last of such approvals
or permissions.

xi) Principal terms of assets charged as securities.

Not applicable.

xii) Shareholding pattern of the Company before and after the Preferential Issue

Please refer Annexure - 2 to this Notice for details.
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xiii) Identity of the natural persons who are the ultimate beneficial owners of the Convertible Equity Warrants
proposed to be allotted and/or who ultimately control the proposed allottees, the percentage of post
Preferential Issue capital that may be held by them

Identity of the natural persons and the percentage of post preferential issue capital that may be held by them:

xiv) Material terms of raising such securities

The material terms of the proposed preferential issue of the Warrants are stipulated in the Special Resolution as set out
at Item No. 6 of this Notice.

xv) Number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been made during the year, in
terms of number of securities as well as price.

During the financial year, the Company allotted Equity Shares and Warrants given below:

1. 1,30,00,000 (One Crore and Thirty Lakhs only) Equity Shares at a price of Rs.15.75 per share (Face Value of
Rs.1/- at a premium of Rs.14.75 per share) to Dhatre Udyog Ltd (formally known as Narayani Steel Limited)

2. 1,32,23,636 (One Crore and Thirty Two Lakhs Twenty-Three Thousand Six Hundred  and Thirty Six only) Warrants
at a price of Rs.11.00 per warrants (Face Value of Rs.1/- at a premium of Rs.10 per warrants) to Neo Special
Credit Opportunities Fund.

3. 49,58,182 (Forty-Nine Lakhs Fifty Eight Thousand One Hundred and Eighty Two only) Warrants at a price of
Rs.11.00 per warrants (Face Value of Rs.1/- at a premium of Rs.10 per warrants) to True North Credit Opportunities
Fund

4. 1,81,81,818 (One Crore Eighty-One Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighteen only) Warrants at
a price of Rs.11.00 per warrants (Face Value of Rs.1/- at a premium of Rs.10 per warrants) to Kolluri Impex Private
Limited.

5. 1,00,00,000 (One Crore only) Warrants at a price of Rs.11.00 per warrants (Face Value of Rs.1/- at a premium of
Rs.10 per warrants) to Sahi Trading Private Limited.

6. 1,81,81,818 (One Crore Eighty-One Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighteen only) Warrants at
a price of Rs.11.00 per warrants (Face Value of Rs.1/- at a premium of Rs.10 per warrants) to Shakti International
LLP.

7. 1,81,81,818 (One Crore Eighty-One Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighteen only) Warrants at
a price of Rs.11.00 per warrants (Face Value of Rs.1/- at a premium of Rs.10 per warrants) to KGR Resources
LLP.

Name of the 
proposed 

allottee 
Category

 

Present pre-issue 
shareholding  

 

Post issue 
shareholding

  
Ultimate beneficial 

Owner 
 

Pre-issue 
holding

% of 
total 

equity 
capital

Post-issue 
holding

% of 
total 

equity 
capital

M/s Adelaar 
Industrial 
Resources 
Private 
Limited 

Non-
Promoter 

0 0 4,25,53,190 3.15 

1. Ms. Indu Lal-
AABPL2127L 
 
2. Mr. Duvvuru Vijay 
Kumar Reddy-
AEEPR8519M
 
 

Ms. Gunakala 
Vijayalakshmi  

Non-
Promoter 

0 0 2,82,97,870 2.09 
Ms. Gunakala 
Vijayalakshmi- 
AGZPG7425Q 
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8. 1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten-Lakhs) Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of
Rs.16.60/- per share (including share premium of Rs.15.60/- per share) to M/s Money Seeds. (Represented by
Mr. ShivamArora, Mr. Animesh Garg and Mr. Puneet Arora ( Partners)).

xvi) The change in control, if any, in the Company that would occur consequent to the Preferential Issue, and the
percentage of post preferential issue capital that may be held by the Allottee.

There will be no change in control in the Company consequent to the completion of the preferential issue to the
Proposed Allottees. The percentage of post preferential issue capital that will be held by the Proposed Allottees is given
below:

Name of the 
proposed 
Allottees 

 

Category
 

Present pre-issue shareholding  
 

Post issue shareholding  

Pre-issue 
holding

% of total 
equity capital

Post-issue 
holding

% of total equity 
capital

M/s Adelaar 
Industrial 
Resources 
Private Limited 

Non-
Promoter

0 0 4,25,53,190 3.15% 

Ms. Gunakala 
Vijayalakshmi  

Non-
Promoter 

0 0 2,82,97,870 2.09% 

xvii) Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part of the Preferential Issue or separately
in furtherance of objects.

No contribution is being made by Promoter or Directors of the Company, as part of the preferential issue.

xviii) Valuation and Justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash.

Not applicable

xix)  Lock-in Period

The Warrants to be allotted on a preferential basis shall be locked-in for such period as specified under
Regulation167 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

xx) The current and proposed status of the allottee(s) post Preferential Issue namely, promoter or non-promoter

Name of the proposed Allottees Current Status Proposed Status
M/s Adelaar Industrial Resources Private Limited Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 
Ms. Gunakala Vijayalakshmi  Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 

xxi)  Undertakings

a) Disclosures specified in Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations are not required as none of the Company,
its Directors or Promoters have been declared as wilful defaulter or fraudulent borrower as defined under the
SEBI ICDR Regulations. None of Directors or Promoter of the Company is a fugitive economic offender as
defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

b) The Company is eligible to make the preferential issue to the Proposed Allottees under Chapter V of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

c) The Company shall re-compute the price of the Warrants to be allotted under the preferential allotment in terms
of the provisions of SEBI ICDR Regulations where it is required to do so.

d) If the amount payable on account of the re-computation of price is not paid within the time stipulated in the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Warrants to be allotted under the preferential allotment shall continue to be
locked-in till the time such amount is paid by the allottees.

xxii) Company Secretary's Certificate

The certificate from B S S & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, certifying that the Preferential Issue is
being made in accordance with the requirements contained in the SEBI ICDR Regulations shall be made available
for inspection by the Members during the meeting and will also be made available on the Company's website and will
be accessible at link: www.seil.co.in
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xxiii) Other disclosures

a) Since the Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the stock exchanges and the preferential issue of
Warrants is not resulting in allotment of more than 5% of the post issue fully diluted share capital of the
company to any of the allottees acting in concert, valuation report from an independent registered valuer for
determining the price is not required as specified under Regulation 166(A)(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

b) Proposed Allottees have confirmed that they have not sold any Equity Shares of the Company during the 90
trading days preceding the Relevant Date i.e.  28th August, 2024 and they further confirmed that are eligible
under SEBI ICDR Regulations to undertake the preferential issue.

c) The Company does not have any outstanding dues to SEBI, Stock Exchanges or the depositories.

d) As the requirement of monitoring agency is not mandatory if the Issue size is up to Rs.100 Crore and the size
of this issue is below Rs.100 Crores, the Company has not appointed any monitoring agency for this Issue.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 62 of the Act read with applicable rules thereto and relevant
provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, approval of the Members for issue and allotment of the said Convertible
Equity Warrants to the Proposed Allottees is being sought by way of a special resolution as set out in the said item
no. 6 of the Notice.

The Board of Directors believes that the proposed Preferential Issue is in the best interest of the Company and its
Members and, therefore, recommends the resolution at Item No.6 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the
Members of the Company as a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives thereof are in any way financially or otherwise
concerned or interested in the passing of this Special Resolution as set out at Item No.6 of this notice except and
to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

Documents referred to in the notice/ explanatory statement will be available for inspection by the Members of the
Company as per applicable law.
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Name of the Director Bavineni Suresh V.V. Krishna Rao 
Category  Non-Executive and Non-Independent  Non-Executive and Non-Independent 
DIN 00181832 00206884 
Date of Birth 30.08.1968 10.06.1948 
Age 56 Years 76 Years 
Nationality Indian Indian 
Date of first appointment on 
the Board 

28.02.2000 24.01.2000 

Qualifications B. Tech. M.B. A M.A. 
Occupation Business Business 
Nature of expertise in specific 
functional areas 

Having more than 26 years of 
Experience in Finance and Steel 
Industries 

Having More than 44 years of 
Experience in Steel industry. 

Terms and conditions of re-
appointment 

Appointment is subject to retirement by 
rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment 
 

Appointment is subject to retirement 
by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment 
 

Remuneration sought to be 
paid   

Nil Nil 

Remuneration last drawn by 
such person 

Nil Nil 

Relationship with Directors None None 
Directorships in other 
companies as on  

1.Vizag Profiles Pvt Ltd 
2.Umashiv Garments Pvt. Ltd 
3.Simhadri Wires Pvt. Ltd 
4.Satyatej Vyapaar Pvt. Ltd 

1.Vizag Profiles Pvt Ltd 
 
 

Chairman/Member of the 
committee of other Boards  

Nil Nil 

Shareholding including 
shareholding as a beneficial 
owner 

2,42,04,010 64,37,360 

Number of Meetings of the 
Board 
attended during the year 

6 7 

Names of listed entities in 
which the person also holds 
the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of 
the board  

Nil Nil 

Names of listed entities from 
which the person has 
resigned in the past three 
years 

Nil Nil 

In case of Independent NA NA 

Annexure-1
Additional information as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial

Standard-2 notified under Section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013
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years 
In case of Independent 
Director, the skills and 
capabilities required for the 
role and the manner in which 
the proposed person meets 
such requirements 

NA NA 

Inter-se relationship with 
other Directors and KMP of 
the Company 
Information as required 
pursuant to BSE Circular no. 
LIST/COMP/14/2018-19 and 
Circular of National Stock 
exchange of India Limited 
having Ref No.  
NSE/CML/2018/24 dated June 
20, 2018. 

Not related to any Director and KMP of 
the Company 

Not related to any Director and KMP 
of the Company 
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Annexure - 2

1. Shareholding pattern of the Company before and after the preferential issue:

*Post holding shareholding has been taken on assumption that the given below Convertible Equity Warrants
are converted into Equity Shares: -

•  82727272 Convertible Equity Warrants issued on 18.11.2023 are converted into Equity Shares.

•  7,08,51,060 Convertible Equity Warrants issued on 29.08.2024 are converted into Equity Shares.

S. 
No. 

Category 

Pre-issue
*Post-issue

No. of Shares 
held 

% of 
Holding  

No. of shares 
held

% of 
Holdin

g
A Promoter & Promoter Group   
1 Indian Promoters 63,35,95,550 52.90 63,35,95,550 46.89
2 Foreign Promoters - - -   -

Sub- Total –A 63,35,95,550 52.90 63,35,95,550 46.89
B Public Shareholding     
1 Institutions    
a. Mutual Funds/UTI 35,370 - 35,370 -
b Venture Capital Funds - - - -
c. Alternate Investment F unds 1,51,23,996 1.26 3,33,05,814 2.46
d. Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - -
e. Foreign Portfolio Investors -Corporate 84,76,673 0.71 84,76,673 0.63
f. Financial Institutions/Banks 510 - 510 -
g. Insurance Companies - - - -
h. Provident Funds/Pension Funds/any other - - - -
i. Foreign Institution Investors - - - -
j.. Qualified Foreign Investor - - - -
k. Qualified Foreign Investor – Corporate - - - -
l. Foreign Bodies Corporate 50,00,000 0.42 50,00,000 0.37
m. Foreign Nationals - - - 
 Sub-Total-B(1) 2,86,36,549 2.39 4,68,18,367 3.46
2 Central Government/State Government(s) 30,93,480 0.26 30,93,480 0.23
 Sun-Total – B(2) 30,93,480 0.26 30,93,480 0.23
3 Non-Institutions -
a. Individual shareholders holding upto 2 lakh 25,96,07,182 21.68 25,96,07,182 19.21
b. Individual shareholders holding in excess of 

2 lakh 
9,64,64,408

8.05 
12,47,62,278 

9.23

c. NBFCs Registered with RBI - -
d. Employee Trusts - - 
e. Overseas Depositories (holding DRs) - - 

-
- 
- 

-
- 
- 

f. Any Other 1,10,00,000 0.92 1,10,00,000 0.81
g. Body Corporates 15,48,93,513 12.94 26,19,92,157 19.39
h. Clearing Members 24,381 - 24,381 -

-

i. Trust 38,11,730 0.32 38,11,730 0.28
j. Non-Resident Indians  65,06,477 0.54 65,06,477 0.48

Sub-Total – B (3) 53,23,07,691 44.45 66,77,04,205 49.42
 Total Public Shareholding -B 56,40,37,720 47.10 71,76,16,052 53.11
C Shares held by Custodians against 

DRs/FCCBs etc. 
0

- 
0 

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 1,19,76,33,270 100.00 1,35,12,11,602 100.00
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Important Communication to Members:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a "Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance" by allowing paperless Compli-
ances by the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notice/ documents including Annual Report can be
sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative of the Government in full measure, members who have not
registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses in respect of electronic holdings
with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants and members who hold shares in physical form, may
register the same with:

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents: Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited, 5th Floor, 2, Plot
No.57, Aurum, Jayabheri Enclave, Gachibowli, Hyderabad, Telangana 500032 Telephone: +91 - 40 - 23818475 / 76 Fax: +91
- 40 - 23868024, Email:  info@vccipl.com and investor.relations@vccipl.com

Company: The Company Secretary, Steel Exchange India Limited, D.NO:1-65/K/60, Plot No : 60, Abhis Hiranya, 1st Floor,
Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500081, Telephone: +91 - 40 - 23403725 or 040-40033501 Email: cs@seil.co.in, or
csravindra.seil@gmail.com or seilsecretarial@gmail.com.
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2. REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE :

During the year under review, the total Revenue of the company stood at Rs 1093.26 Crores as against the Rs.1393.36
Crores in FY 2022 - 23. Net Profit/(Loss) recorded at Rs.10.69 Crores as against Net loss of Rs. (58) Crores in the
Previous Year.

The Manufacturing Sales including power sales were Rs.991.82 Crores in the current year compared to Rs. 1094.76
Crores in the previous year. The trading sales during the year amounted to Rs.97.34 Crores compared to Rs. 293.57
Crores in the previous year.

3. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

Members may recall the managements endeavor to increase production levels and improve margins as well as identify
and realign the assets of the company to increase the value of the company for all stake holders.

The company is pleased to inform that the company successfully raised funds by way of NCDs of Rs.272.92 crs in
2023-24 at a rate of 18.75% p.a. to repay the high cost NCDs issued to Edelweiss at an IRR of 21.75%.

Further the company successfully raised additional funding of Rs.100 crs during 2023-24 by way of NCDs which was
partly utilized for the critical periodic maintenance capex, setting up a new continuous caster in the SMS Billet unit and
addition of rolling in the ISP and partly for working capital needs. Most of the works have been completed and the
balance are slated for completion by September 24. The production levels are expected to be higher from the second
half of the year onwards. With the periodic maintenance works completed in all the units, the operational efficiencies
are expected to enable smooth running of the units thereby reduce costs and improve margins. The higher production
levels will also add to the earnings of the company.

Further the company is also in the process of modifying the Kothapeta unit from manufacture of ingots to manufacture
of 74,000 TPA of Billets. It is also in the process of setting up a rolling mill of 94,000 TPA to produce TMT bars. The billet
unit and the rolling mill are in an advanced stage of completion and are expected to be ready to commence production
by 1st October 2024. The operations of Kothapeta will also add to the revenue of the company both in terms of top line
and earnings.

                       PARTICULARS 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Total Revenue 1093.26 1393.36

Profit/ (Loss) before finance cost, depreciation
and tax expense 100.45 101.69

Finance cost 77.87 105.64

Profit / (Loss) before depreciation and tax expense 22.58 (3.95)

Depreciation 21.31 24.37

Profit/(Loss) before tax expense 1.27 (28.32)

Tax expense

    i.  Tax expense of prior years 0.00 0.00

    ii. Deferred Tax 9.61 (30.53)

Profit/(Loss) for the year 10.89 (58.85)

Add: Other Comprehensive Income (0.20) 0.01

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year 10.69 (58.83)

(  in Crores)

BOARD’S REPORT
To

The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 25th Annual Report on the business & operations of the Company together
with the Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS :

The performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 is as under:
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With the state government focus on improving the infrastructure in the state, the company expects stable and steady
increase in demand for steel. All these factors augur well for the company in the coming years. The management is
committed to continue its efforts in minimizing the costs and improving the intrinsic value of the company for the benefit
of all stakeholders.

4. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended Dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

Pursuant to Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has approved and adopted a Dividend Distribution
Policy. The Dividend Distribution Policy is available on the Company's website at https://seil.co.in/uploads/5479-
SEIL_Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf

5. SHARE CAPITAL AND LISTING OF SHARES

During the period under review, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company

• The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs.332,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Thirty-Two
Crores only) divided into 258,00,00,000 (Two Hundred and Fifty Eighty Crores only) Equity Shares of Rs.1/- (One
only) each, and 7,40,00,000 (Seven Crore Forty Lakhs only) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Ten only) each.

• The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 was Rs. 1,19,76,33,270/- (Rupees One
Hundred Nineteen Crores and Seventy-Six Lakhs Thirty-Three Thousand Two Hundred and Seventy).

There was change in Paid up Share Capital of the Company during the year under review:

During the year, the Company has allotted

• 7,58,00,000Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.7.250/- per share (including
share premium of Rs.6.250/- per share) on Conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ("CCDs") on preferential
basis to promoter of the Company.

• 1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.15.75/- per share (including
share premium of Rs.14.75/- per share) on preferential basis to non-promoter of the Company.

• 5,82,21,500 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.7.250/- per share (including
share premium of Rs.6.250/- per share) on Conversion of Warrants on preferential basis to promoter of the Company.

• 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.16.60/- per share (including
share premium of Rs.15.60/- per share) on preferential basis to non-promoter of the Company.

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per the provisions of
Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as "the Act") read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished and the Company has not issued any stock options to its
employees.

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. It may
be noted that there are no payments outstanding to the Stock Exchanges by way of Listing Fees. The company has
paid the listing fee for the financial year 2023-24.

6. NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

In the Financial Year 2020-21,the Company issued and allotted 3,828 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-
Convertible Debentures bearing a face value of INR 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh only) each, aggregating up to an
amount of INR 382,80,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Eighty-Two Crores Eighty Lakhs only) ("Debentures") in
dematerialized form on a private placement basis to Group of Investors led by Edelweiss as a part fund raising for one
time settlement of all dues of the company with existing lenders. The said NCDs are listed on BSE Limited.

Further, During FY 2023-24, the said 3,828 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures was
restructured and In-principal and Listing approval taken from BSE Limited on 17th January, 2024 and 27th February,
2024 respectively.

Further, the Company issued and allotted 1,000 Secured, Un-Rated, Un-Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures
bearing a face value of INR 10,00,000 (Rupees Ten Lakh only) each, aggregating up to an amount of
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INR 100,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores only) ("Debentures") in dematerialized form on a private placement
basis to True North and Neo as a part fund raising for Capex and Working Capital.

7. NAME OF THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE(S) WITH FULL CONTACT DETAILS:

As per Regulation 53 of the Listing Regulations, the name along with full contact details of the Debenture Trustees is
given below:

VISTRA ITCL (INDIA) LIMITED
The IL & FS Financial Centre
Plot No. C-22, G Block, 7th Floor
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)
Mumbai 400051, India
Tel: +91 99104 96860, Tel: +91 22 2659 3535
Cell: +91 98206 61411, Email: mumbai@vistra.com

8. DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL ISSUE:

During the year the under review the issued and allotted

• 1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.15.75/- per share (including share
premium of Rs.14.75/- per share) on preferential basis to non-promoter of the Company as a part fundraising for
prepayment of borrowings of the Company, working capital requirement, meeting future funding requirements and
other general corporate purposes of the Company.

• 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.16.60/- per share (including share
premium of Rs.15.60/- per share) on preferential basis to non-promoter of the Company as a part fundraising for
Operations, Working Capital requirement and General Corporate Purposes.

9. DEVIATIONS IN THE USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE OBJECTS STATED IN THE OFFER DOCUMENT:

During the year under review, there were no deviations in the use of proceeds from the objects stated in the offer
document.

10. CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, there were no revision in the credit rating.

11. ANNUAL RETURN

As required by Section 92(3), read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is placed at the
company's website and the link for the same is https://seil.co.in/governance/annualreturn.

12. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, Seven Board Meetings were held.

The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are 27th April, 2023, 29th May, 2023, 14th August, 2023, 10th
October, 2023, 14th November, 2023, 18th November, 2023 and 14th February, 2024.

Details of number of Meetings attended by each Director have been given in the Corporate Governance Report, which
forms part of the Annual Report.

Instrument Type Tenor Amount (Rs. Cr) Rating 
Listed Secured Non-
Convertible  Debentures

Long Term 273.92
CARE BB; Stable (Double B; Outlook: 
Stable) Assigned 

Long Term Bank 
Facilities

Long Term  10 
CARE BB; Stable (Double B; Outlook: 
Stable) Assigned 

Short Term Bank 
Facilities

Short Term 40
CARE BB; Stable (Double B; Outlook: 
Stable) Assigned

Total 323.92
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13. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the Directors' Responsibility
Statement, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms for the year ended 31st March, 2024:

i. that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there
are no material departures;;

ii. that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2024  and of Profit and Loss Account of the Company for that period;

iii. that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. that the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 on a going
concern basis;

v. that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi. that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

14. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations as required under the provisions of Section 149(7) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, stating that they meet the eligibility criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ("Listing Regulations").

In the opinion of the Board all our Independent Directors, appointed during the year, possess requisite qualifications,
experience, expertise and hold high standards of integrity for the purpose of Rule 8(5) (iiia) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014.

15. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Independent Directors held their separate meeting on March 29, 2024 inter alia, to:

- Review the performance of the Non-Independent Directors.

- Review the performance of the committees and Board as a whole.

- Review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors.

- Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

16. AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors:

As per the provisions of the Act, the period of office of M/s. Bhavani & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 012139S),
Statutory Auditors of the Company, expires at the conclusion of the ensuring Annual General Meeting.

It is proposed to appoint M/s. Pavuluri& Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 012194S) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years. M/s. Pavuluri& Co., Chartered Accountants, have confirmed their
eligibility and qualification required under the Act for holding the office, as Statutory Auditors of the Company.
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Cost Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Record and Audit)
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Mr. D Zitendra Rao, Practicing Cost Accountant has been appointed as
Cost Auditor for conducting Cost Audit for the financial year 2023-24 under review.

The Products of the company was classified as "Steel and Electricity" manufactured by the Company are subject to
Cost Audit in terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued there under by the Central
Government.

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment
of Dendukuri & Co., Cost Accountants (Proprietor Mr.D Zitendra Rao, Practicing Cost Accountant) as the Cost Auditors
of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2024.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, as amended, the remuneration of Rs.8.00 lakh plus applicable taxes payable to the Cost Auditors as
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board has to be ratified by the Members of the Company.
Accordingly, a resolution to this effect forms part of the Notice convening the AGM.

Internal Auditors:

M/s. Pavuluri & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24 under
review.

Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Directors had appointed M/s. B S S & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries,
Hyderabad to undertake the Secretarial Audit of your Company for the financial year 2023-24.

17. AUDIT REPORTS:

Statutory Audit Report

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers in the Statutory Auditor's Report on the financial
statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 and hence does not require any explanations or comments
by the Board.

Internal Audit Reports

Internal Auditors has performed internal audit of the operations of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 and the
Internal Auditors have presented their observations to the Audit Committee in four out of Six meetings held, i.e., on 29th
May, 2023, 14thAugust, 2023, 14th November, 2023 and 14th February, 2024 respectively for the financial year 2023-24.

Secretarial Audit

The Secretarial Audit Report received from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 and
Secretarial Compliance Report for the Financial Year are annexed herewith as Annexure - 1.
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The Managements' Comments on observations made in Secretarial Audit Report and Secretarial Audit Report Secretarial
Compliance Report are as under:

Observation Management's comment

 As per Master Circular Dated 21.06.2023 No: SEBI/ HO/
CFD/ PoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2023/ 00094 All the Listed entities
shall make an application for trading approval to the stock
exchange/s within 7 working days from the date of grant of
listing approval by the stock exchange/s. However, the
company has not made the trading approval application
within said date for the following allotments;

- for the allotment of 9,58,00,000 equity shares as a
result of conversion of CCDs.No. of Days Delayed: 166
days.

- for the allotment of 7,58,00,000 equity shares as a
result of conversion of CCDs. No. of Days Delayed:
163 days

- for the allotment of 1,30,00,000 equity shares. No. of
Days Delayed: 169 days

1,71,60,000 CCDs were converted into equity shares within
the due date i.e., 23.05.2023 and the same were applied for
listing approval within time. The Company also obtained the
listing approval from the Exchanges in July, 2023 and
immediately filed the corporate actions with the Depositories
to debit the CCDs and credit the equity shares. The
Company also filed documents for the trading approval within
7 working days from the date of receipt of the listing approval
from the Exchanges, except for the credit confirmation letters
from the Depositories.
The credit confirmation from the Depositories could not be
filed along with the trading permission documents because
the CCDs held by Vizag Profiles Private Limited were pledged
to their lender at the time of executing corporate action with
the Depositories, the Depositories insisted to debit the CCDs
and credit the equity shares simultaneously. However, the
same could not be completed within the due date as the
lender did not release the pledge of CCDs because of some
miscommunications/Differences between the Lender and
borrower.
However, the differences were sorted out in the month of
December, 2023 and the Company immediately initiated the
corporate action once again with the Depositories and
obtained the Credit Confirmation letters from them in January,
2024. Thereafter, the Company submitted credit
confirmations for the trading permission with the Stock
Exchanges immediately without any delay.
Due to previous pending trading approval with respect to
conversion of CCDs in to equity, we were unable to get credit
confirmation and trading approval for the allotment of
1,30,00,000 equity shares on preferential basis to Non
promoter Group.

 As per Master Circular Dated 21.06.2023 No: SEBI/ HO/
CFD/ PoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2023/ 00094 Issuer shall make an
application to the exchange/s for listing in case of further
issue of equity shares within  20  days from the date  of
allotment. However, the company has not made the Listing
approval application within said date for the allotment of
5,82,21,500 equity shares.

The Company filed the listing application on time with both
BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE). On July 18, 2023, BSE Limited granted the
listing approval. However, due to pending trading approvals
for 9,58,00,000, 7,58,00,000, and 1,30,00,000 shares, NSE
rejected and insisted company to complete the pending
trading approvals to process the Listing approval for for the
allotment of 5,82,21,500 equity shares.
However, after filing the fresh trading application along with
credit confirmation, we have refiled the listing application
with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
and it is under process.

BSE Limited  Levied  penalty of Rs. 36,580/- as the Financial
Results for the quarter/half year ended September 2023,
submitted by the Company to the Exchange does not
contain the line Items required to be given as per Regulation
52(4) of SEBI LODR viz., outstanding redeemable preference
shares and capital redemption reserve / debenture
redemption reserve

The Management sincerely apologizes for the unforeseen
technical issue that occurred during the conversion of our
unaudited financial Excel file to PDF.

Upon noticing the same, the company has taken immediate
action to rectify the situation and has filed a revised 52(4)
report.
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18. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Your Company has not given any Loans / Guarantees and not made any Investments during the F.Y. 2023-24, as
specified under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014.

19. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO GENERAL RESERVES

Your Company doesn't propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve for the Financial Year ended 31st March,
2024.

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of SEBI
Listing Regulations during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arms' length basis. There
were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year, which were in conflict with the
interest of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required by the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS-24) has been made
in the notes to the financial statements.

Your Company has framed a Policy on Related Party Transactions in accordance with the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy is uploaded on website of the Company at
https://seil.co.in/governance/policy.

A statement, in summary form, of all the transactions entered into with the related parties in the ordinary course of
business, details of individual transactions with related parties are placed before the audit committee for the review from
time to time. The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of Section
188 are prepared in Form No. AOC-2 pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the same is given in notes to accounts of the company wide note no
3.32.3 and also brief details are annexed to Boards Report as Annexure-2.

21. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest
on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet, in terms of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year ended 31st March, 2024.

22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (ACT) READ WITH THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Information with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant
to Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is prepared and the same is enclosed as
Annexure - 3 to this Report.

23. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has an adequate risk management policy in place. The risk management process is reliable and broad
based, ensuring that the Company is well guarded against foreseeable risks and aptly prepared for future contingencies.
Risk management encompasses risk identification, evaluation, reporting and resolution to ensure the smooth functioning
of operations and business sustainability. Risk Management has become an integral part of business decision making.The
policy is uploaded on website of the Company at https://seil.co.in/governance/policy.

24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee to monitor implementation
of CSR activities of your Company. The details of the composition of the CSR Committee, CSR policy, CSR initiatives
and activities during the year are given in the Annual Report on CSR activities in Annexure - 4 to this Report in the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. CSR policy is also available on the website of the
company, https://seil.co.in/governance/policy.
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25. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Risk Management Committee. The composition, as well as meetings
and other details of these committees have been given in the Report on the Corporate Governance forming part of the
Annual Report.

26. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A separate report on Corporate Governance is annexed as part of the Annual Report along with the Auditor's Certificate
on its compliance.

27. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under SEBI Listing Regulations,
is annexed herewith which forms part of this report.

28. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND MECHANISM

The Board of Directors has adopted Whistle Blower Policy. The Whistle Blower Policy aims for conducting the affairs in
a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.
All permanent employees of the Company are covered under the Whistle Blower Policy.

A mechanism has been established for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud, or violation of Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of
employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the audit committee in exceptional
cases.The policy is uploaded on website of the Company at https://seil.co.in/uploads/3742-Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

29. BOARD EVALUATION

The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning, of the Committees and of individual Directors, pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Board sought the feedback of the Directors on various parameters including:

• Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities towards stakeholders (by way of monitoring corporate governance
practices, participation in the long-term strategic planning, etc.);

• Structure, composition and role clarity of the Board and Committees;

• Extent of co-ordination and cohesiveness between the Board and its Committees;

• Effectiveness of the deliberations and process management;

• Board/Committee culture and dynamics; and

• Quality of relationship between Board Members and the Management.

The above criteria are based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India on January 05, 2017.

The Chairman of the Board had one-on-one meetings with the Independent Directors ('IDs') and the Chairman of NRC
had one-on-one meetings with the Executive and Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors. These meetings were
intended to obtain the Directors' input on effectiveness of the Board/ Committee processes.

In a separate meeting of IDs, the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairman
of the Company were evaluated, taking into account the views of Executive Director and other Non-Executive Directors.

The NRC reviewed the performance of the individual directors and the Board as a whole. In the Board meeting that
followed the meeting of the Independent Directors and the meeting of NRC, the performance of the Board, its committees,
and individual Directors were discussed.
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30. CHANGE IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review,

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on February 14, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mr.Veera Brahma Rao
Arekapudi (DIN: 07540040)as Independent (Additional) Director for a period of five consecutive years on February
14, 2023 and the Company has obtained approval of shareholders through the postal ballot dated May 12, 2023.

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company through Resolution by Circulation on July11, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mrs.Bhagyam Ramani
(DIN: 00107097) as Independent (Additional) Director for a period of five consecutive years on July 12, 2023 and the
Company has obtained approval of shareholders by way of Special resolution was taken in the AGM held on
29.09.2023.

• Shri Bavineni Suresh (DIN: 00181832) and Shri Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao (DIN: 00206884) retired and
re-elected at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 29, 2023.

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on November 18, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi
(DIN: 07410118) as Additional Director in capacity of Whole-Time Director of the Company for a period of five
consecutive years on 18th November, 2023 and the Company has obtained approval of shareholders by way of
Special resolution was taken in the EGM held on 18.12.2023.

• In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Bavineni Suresh (DIN: 00181832)
and Shri Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao (DIN: 00206884) will be retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. Accordingly, the resolutions seeking the
approval of the members for the said re-appointments have been incorporated in the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting.

• Mr.Bandi Ramesh Kumar (DIN: 00206293) as Whole-Time Director cum Joint Managing Director of the company
resigned with effect from February 08, 2024 due to end of tenure, and there is no other reason for resignation.

• Sudden demise of Mr. Shri A Suresh Babu, CFO and KMP of the Company in the late hours of Saturday, March 23,
2024 due to a massive heart attack.

• Mr. Shyam Jagetiya (DIN: 02581262) as Nominee Director of the company resigned with effect from April 1, 2024
due to pre-occupancy, and there is no other reason for resignation.

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on May 03, 2024, has approved the appointment of Mr.Ram Mohan Nagoji (DIN
02895361) as Nominee Director of the Company with effect from May 03, 2024, subject to approval of Members of
the company, pursuant to the nomination received from the M/s. Vishwa Samudra Holdings Private Limited, Investor
of the company

• On the basis of recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board appointed Mr. M Mallikarjuna Rao DGM Accounts as an Interim CFO (Chief FinancialOfficer) of the Company
with effect from May 03, 2024.

31. POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The company's policy on directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178 (3) of the
Act have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. Under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has adopted a policy for nomination, remuneration and other
related matters for Directors and Senior Management Personnel. A gist of the policy is available in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Company's Policy on Directors Appointment and Remuneration including criteria for determining qualification, positive
attributes, independence of directors and other matters provided under section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
also placed at the website of the Company at https://seil.co.in/uploads/6225-Nomination_and_Remuneration_Policy.pdf
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32. INTERNALFINANCIALCONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Financial Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring that Internal Financial Control has been
laid down by the Company and that such controls are adequate and operating effectively. The internal financial control
framework has been designed to provide reasonable assurance with respect to recording and providing reliable financial
and operational information, complying with applicable laws, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, executing
transactions with proper authorisation and ensuring compliance with corporate policies.

The scope and authority of the Internal Auditor is well defined in the company. To maintain its objectivity and independence,
the Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its
compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the
report of Internal Auditor, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen
the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions suggested are presented to the Audit Committee of
the Board.

33. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is required to maintain cost records of the Company as specified under Section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Company has properly maintained cost records and accounts during the financial year
ended 31.03.2024.

34. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median of employees' remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 forms part of the Board's report enclosed as Annexure- 5.

During the financial year 2023-24, there were no employees in the Company whose details are to be given pursuant to
Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

35. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OTHER THAN THOSE
WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under Sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 along with the Rules made there under.

36. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

37. UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ESCROW ACCOUNT:

In accordance with the procedure laid down in Schedule VI to the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has transferred
unclaimed shares of Equity shareholders (previously GSAL Shareholders) into one folio in the name of "Steel Exchange
India Limited -Unclaimed Suspense Account" and maintain details of shareholders whose shares are credited to the
said Unclaimed Suspense Account.

Company is doing transfer of Equity shares in Dematerialised from to respected shareholders of GSAL (India) Limited
upon receipt of communication from time to time.

38. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary company SEIL (Hong Kong) Ltd on 02nd June, 2015 which was
in dormant stage due to non-commencement of business operations since its incorporation. Your company has closed
SEIL (Hong Kong) Ltd and the same was strikeoff by respective authority in the origin of the company.

As on 31.03.2024, the Company has no Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.
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39. THE NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES
OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR;

During the year under review, SEIL (Hong Kong) Ltd ceased to be its subsidiary and the same was strike off by
respective authority in the origin of the company. There were no companies which have become its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies during the year.

40. INSURANCE

All properties and insurable interests of the Company including building, plant and machinery and stocks have been fully
insured.

41. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

42. THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company's operations in future

43. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT;

There were no material changes that affecting the financial position of the company.

44. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: Not Applicable

45. DETAILS 0F APPLICATIONS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016:

There are no applications made during the financial year 2023-24 by or against the company and there are no proceedings
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

46. BOARD POLICIES:

The details of the policies approved and adopted by the Board as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Listing Regulations are provided in Annexure - 6.

47. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT:

In accordance with Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Securities and Exchange Board of India
('SEBI'), in May 2021, introduced new sustainability related reporting requirements to be reported in the specific format
of Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report ('BRSR'). BRSR is a notable departure from the existing Business
Responsibility Report and a significant step towards giving platform to the companies to report the initiatives taken by
them in areas of Environment, Social and Governance. Further, SEBI has mandated top 1,000 listed companies, based
on market capitalization, to transition to BRSR from FY 2023-24 onwards. Accordingly, we are glad to present our
inaugural BRSR for FY 2023-24 is given as Annexure - 7.

Your Company strongly believes that sustainable and inclusive growth is possible by using the levers of environmental
and social responsibility while setting targets and improving economic performance to ensure business continuity and
rapid growth.

48. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The company has complied
with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. During the financial year 31stMarch, 2024, the company has not received any complaints pertaining
to sexual harassment.
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49. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE ('D&O')

As per the requirements of Regulation 25(10) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has taken D&O for all its
directors and members of the Senior Management.

50. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS AND HUMAN RESOURCES

Your company believes that its employees are one of the most valuable assets of the Company and the Board appreciates
the employees across the cadres for their dedicated service to the company and expects their continuous support and
higher level of productivity for achieving the targets set for the company.  During the year under review, the company
organized various training programmes at all levels to enhance skills of employees. The total employee strength is 874
as on 31st March, 2024.

51. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items, during the period under
review:

a) There was no issue of equity shares with differential voting rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise etc.

b) There was no issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to the employees of the Company under any Scheme.

c) There was no instance of one time settlement with any bank or financial institution.

52. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors take this opportunity to place on record their sincere thanks to the Banks and Financial Institutions,
Insurance Companies, Central and State Government Departments and the shareholders for their support and co-
operation extended to the Company from time to time. Directors are pleased to record their appreciation of the dedicated
services of the employees and workmen at all levels.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Steel Exchange India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad B. Satish Kumar
Date:29.08.2024 Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN:00163676)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A Report on compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time ("SEBI Listing
Regulations") for the financial year 2023-2024 is given herein below:
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your Company prides itself on being a responsible corporate citizen, which is committed to running its business in the
best possible manner while being completely transparent, complying with all relevant rules & regulations and contributing
to society at large. The Company believes that maintenance of Code of Corporate Governance is essential for economic
growth of the Company and protecting the interest of all the Stakeholders. Therefore, the Company is trying its best to
follow the Code of Corporate Governance. The Companies Corporate Governance philosophy encompasses not only
regulatory and legal requirements, such as the terms of listing regulations with stock exchanges, but also several
voluntary practices aimed at a high level of business ethics, effective supervision and enhancement of value for all
stakeholders. The Corporate Governance is based on the principal of truth, transparency, accountability, equity and
responsibility in all our dealings with our employees, shareholders, customers, suppliers, government, lenders and
community at large.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS :
(a) Composition and category of directors (e.g., promoter, executive, non-executive, non-executive and

independent, nominee director - institution represented and whether as lender or as equity investor):
The Board of Directors has a combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on 31.03.2024, the Board
of Directors have Thirteen (13) members, of whom three (03) are Executive Directors, two (02) are Non-Executive
Non-Independent Directors, One (1) Non-Executive Nominee Director and Seven (7) are Non-Executive Independent
Directors, two of whom are the Woman Independent Directors. Except the Independent Directors, Executive Directors
and Nominee Director all other Directors are liable to retire by rotation as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.As the Chairperson of the Board of Directors is an Executive Promoter Director, at least half of the Board of
Directors of the Company should consist of Independent Directors.
The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, attendance at the Board Meetings and Annual General
Meeting("AGM") of the Company and also the number of Directorships and Committee Membership(s) and
Chairmanship(s) held by them during 2023-24 in other Companies are as under:

S.No. Name of the Director Category

No. of Board
Meetings

attended out of
7 meetings
held during

2023-24

Whether
attended
the last

AGM

No. of other Directorships and
Committee Membership/

Chairmanship as on 31.03.2024

1 Bandi Satish Kumar Executive Director,
Chairman (Promoter) 7 YES 1 Nil Nil

2 Bandi Suresh Kumar Executive Director
(Promoter) 7 YES 1 Nil Nil

3 Bandi Ramesh Kumar**** Executive Director
(Promoter) 4 YES 1 Nil Nil

4 Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao Non-Executive
Director (Promoter) 7 YES 0 Nil Nil

5 Bavineni Suresh Non-Executive
Director (Promoter) 6 YES 0 Nil Nil

6 Ramineni Ramachandra Rao Independent Director 4 YES 0 Nil Nil
7 Kodali Krishna Rao Independent Director 7 NO 0 Nil Nil
8 Siva Sagar Rao Yendamuri Independent Director 7 NO 0 Nil Nil
9 Siva Prasad Chivukula Independent Director 7 YES 1 Nil Nil
10 Sujata Chattopadhyay Independent Director 7 YES 5 1 Nil
11 Shyam Jagetiya***** Nominee Director 6 YES 1 Nil Nil
12 Veera Brahma Rao Arekapudi* Independent Director 5 YES 1 Nil Nil
13 Bhagyam Ramani** Independent Director 5 NO 4 2 Nil
14 Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi*** Whole Time Director 1 NA Nil Nil Nil
15 Ram Mohan Nagoji****** Nominee Director 0 NA 1 Nil Nil
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*The Company through postal ballot notice dated May 12, 2023, Mr. Veera Brahma Rao Arekapudi (DIN: 07540040), who was
appointed as an Additional Director (Independent and Non-Executive) of the Company, with effect from February 14, 2023, be
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from
February 14, 2023 to February 13, 2028.

**On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company through
Resolution by Circulation on July 11, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani (DIN: 00107097) as
Independent (Additional) Director w.e.f. July 12, 2023. Further, at 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company, Mrs. Bhagyam
Ramani (DIN: 00107097), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent and Non-Executive) of the Company,
with effect from July 12, 2023, be appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years commencing from July 12, 2023 to July11, 2028.

***Further that, on the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company in their meeting held on November 18, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi (DIN:
07410118) as Additional Director in capacity of Whole-Time Director of the Company with effect from November 18th, 2023,
subject to approval of members of the company.

Further, the Company through EGM dated December 18, 2023, Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi (DIN: 07410118), who was
appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of Whole-Time Director of the Company, with effect from November 18,
2023, be appointed as a Whole-Time Director of the Company.

****Mr. Bandi Ramesh Kumar (DIN: 00206293) as Whole-Time Director cum Joint Managing Director of the company re-
signed with effect from February 08, 2024 due to end of tenure, and there is no other reason for resignation.

*****Mr. Shyam Jagetiya (DIN: 02581262) as Nominee Director of the company resigned with effect from April 1, 2024 due to
pre-occupancy, and there is no other reason for resignation.

******On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Com-
pany in their meeting held on May 03, 2024, has approved the appointment of Mr. Ram Mohan Nagoji (DIN 02895361) as
Nominee Director of the Company with effect from May 03, 2024, subject to approval of Members of the company, pursuant
to the nomination received from the M/s. Vishwa Samudra Holdings Private Limited, Investor of the company.

Directorship held in other Listed entities:

Mrs. Sujata Chattopadhyay (DIN: 02336683) is Director in other 3 listed Companies, list of those Companies and category
of Directorship are as follows:

Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani (DIN: 00107097) is Director in other 3 listed Companies, list of those Companies and category of
Directorship are as follows:

Sl. No. Name of the listed Company Category of Directorship

1 IITL Projects Limited Independent Director

2 Industrial Investment Trust Limited Independent Director

3 Vakrangee Limited Independent Director

Mr. Veera Brahma Rao Arekapudi (DIN: 07540040) is Director in other 1 listed Company, list of that Company and category
of Directorship is as follows:

Sl. No. Name of the listed Company Category of Directorship

1 VSF Projects Limited Director

Sl. No. Name of the listed Company Category of Directorship

1 Lloyds Metals and Energy Limited Independent Director

2 Capri Global Capital Limited * Independent Director

3 Saurashtra Cement Limited Independent Director

* Resigned on 31-03-2024
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b) Changes in the Composition of Directors during the Year:

During the year under review

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company in their meeting held on February 14, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mr.Veera Brahma
Rao Arekapudi (DIN: 07540040) as Independent (Additional) Director for a period of five consecutive years on
February 14, 2023 and the Company has obtained approval of shareholders through the postal ballot dated
May 12, 2023.

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company through Resolution by Circulation on July 11, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mrs.Bhagyam
Ramani (DIN: 00107097) as Independent (Additional) Director  w.e.f. July 12, 2023 and the Company has
obtained approval of shareholders by way of Special resolution in the 24th AGM held on 29.09.2023, and
appointed Mrs.Bhagyam Ramani (DIN: 00107097) as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office
for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from July 12, 2023 to July11, 2028.

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company in their meeting held on November 18, 2023, has approved the appointment of Mr. Mohit Sai
Kumar Bandi (DIN: 07410118) as Additional Director in capacity of Whole-Time Director of the Company for a
period of five consecutive years on 18th November, 2023 and the Company has obtained approval of share-
holders by way of Special resolution was taken in the EGM held on 18.12.2023.

• Mr.Bandi Ramesh Kumar (DIN: 00206293) as Whole-Time Director cum Joint Managing Director of the com-
pany resigned with effect from February 08, 2024 due to end of tenure, and there is no other reason for
resignation.

• Mr. Shyam Jagetiya (DIN: 02581262) as Nominee Director of the company resigned with effect from April 1,
2024 due to pre-occupancy, and there is no other reason for resignation.

• On the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of
the Company in their meeting held on May 03, 2024, has approved the appointment of Mr. Ram Mohan Nagoji
(DIN 02895361) as Nominee Director of the Company with effect from May 03, 2024, subject to approval of
Members of the company, pursuant to the nomination received from the M/s. Vishwa Samudra Holdings
Private Limited, Investor of the company

c) Number of Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2022-23 and dates on which held:

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the intervening period between
two Board meetings was within the maximum gap of one hundred and twenty days.

- This excludes Directorships held in Private & Foreign Companies and Companies incorporated under section-8 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

-  In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations Memberships/Chairmanships of Committees
include Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Public Company, whether listed or not have
been considered.

- None of the Directors is a director in more than 20 Companies and more than 10 public limited companies in terms
of Section165 of the Companies Act, 2013.

- None of the Directors is a director in more than seven listed entities in terms of Regulation 17A of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

- None of the Directors is a member of neither more than Ten Committees, nor acts as Chairman of more than Five
Committees across all Listed companies in which they are Directors, as required Regulation 26 of the Listing
Regulations.

- The Independent Directors fulfill the requirements stipulated in Regulation 25 (1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
@ This excludes Directorships held in Private & Foreign Companies and Companies incorporated under section8
of the Companies Act, 2013.
^in Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committee Excluding this Listed Entity.
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During the year ended March 31, 2024, Seven Board Meetings were held as against the minimum requirement of
Four meetings.

The dates on which Meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the number of directors present in each meeting
are given below:

S No Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present

1 27.04.2023 12 11

2 29.05.2023 12 10

3 14.08.2023 13 11

4 10.10.2023 13 11

5 14.11.2023 13 13

6 18.11.2023 13 11

7 14.02.2024 13 13

d) Relationship between Directors inter-se:

Mr. B. Satish Kumar, Mr. B. Suresh Kumar are related as Brothers. Except them, no other Director is related to
any other Director on the Board.

e) Number of Shares and Convertible Instruments held by the Non-Executive Directors:

There are no outstanding Convertible Instruments that were allotted to the Non-Executive Directors.

The total number of Equity Shares held by the Non-Executive Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2024
as follows:

S No Name of the Director No of Equity Shares Held % On Paid Up Capital

1 Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao 64,37,360 0.54

2 Bavineni Suresh 2,42,04,010 2.02

3 Ramineni Ramachandra Rao Nil 0.00

4 Kodali Krishna Rao Nil 0.00

5 Siva Prasad Chivukula Nil 0.00

6 Sujata Chattopadhyay Nil 0.00

7 Shyam Jagetiya Nil 0.00

8 Siva Sagar Rao Yendamuriikh Nil 0.00

9 Veera Brahma Rao Arekapudi Nil 0.00

10 Bhagyam Ramani Nil 0.00

11 Ram Mohan Nagoji Nil 0.00
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f) Familiarization program imparted to Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors, who are from diverse fields of expertise and have long standing experience and expert
knowledge in their respective fields are very relevant as well as of considerable value for the Company's business.

As part of familiarization program as required under SEBI Listing Regulations, the Directors have been appraised
during the Board Meetings about the amendments to the various enactments viz., Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act'), SEBI Listing Regulations, Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of unpublished Price Sensitive Information etc.

During the year, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 29, 2024 without the
presence of Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors /Managing Director and Joint Managing Directors to dis-
cuss the matter(s) as required/agreed among them.

Further familiarization programs and the terms & conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI Listing Regulations are updated on the Company's website at
https://seil.co.in/uploads/7217-SEIL_ID_Familirisation_Programme.pdf and website link for the Familiarization
Programs Summary is https://seil.co.in/uploads/8996-programmes_attended_as_on_31_03_2024.pdf

g) Formal annual evaluation:

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, its committees and individual
Directors pursuant to the requirements of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

h) Function and Procedure of Board:

Board meets regularly to make and review policies. The role, functions and responsibilities of the Board are well
defined. All relevant information as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 as
amended from time to time is regularly placed before the Board. The Board periodically reviews the compliance
reports submitted by the management in respect of all laws applicable to the Company.

i) Directors' skills/expertise/competencies

Board Skill Matrix:

In terms of the requirement of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following skills/expertise/
competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the Company, which are currently available with the
Board along with the names of the Directors, who have such skill/expertise/competence, are given below: -

Business & Industry Domain Knowledge in Business and understanding of business environment, Op-
timizing the development in the industry for improving Company's business

Financial Expertise Financial and risk management, Internal control, Experience of complex financial
reporting processes, capital allocation, resource utilization, Understanding of Fi-
nancial policies and accounting statement and assessing economic conditions

Governance & Compliance Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best interest of all
stakeholders, maintaining board and management accountability, building long
term effective stakeholder engagements and driving corporate ethics and values



STEEL EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED

40

S.No Name of the Director skill/expertise/competence

1 Bandi Satish Kumar Business & Industry, Financial Expertise,
Governance & Compliance

2 Bandi Suresh Kumar Business & Industry, Financial Expertise,
Governance & Compliance

3 Bandi Mohit Sai Kumar Business & Industry

4 Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao Business & Industry

5 Bavineni Suresh Financial Expertise, Governance & Compliance

6 Ramineni Ramachandra Rao Business & Industry, Financial Expertise,
Governance & Compliance

7 Kodali Krishna Rao Business & Industry, Financial Expertise,
Governance & Compliance

8 Sivaprasad Chivukula Financial Expertise, Governance & Compliance

9 Siva Sagar Rao Yendamuri Productions and Manufacturing Expertise,
Governance & Compliance

10 Sujata Chattopadhyay Financial Expertise, Governance & Compliance

11 Shyam Jagetiya Financial Expertise, Governance & Compliance

12 Veera Brahma Rao Arekapudi Financial Expertise, Governance & Compliance

13 Bhagyam Ramani Financial Expertise, Governance & Compliance

14 Ram Mohan Nagoji Financial Expertise, Governance & Compliance

j) Confirmation of Independence of the Independent Director(s):

The Board of Directors hereby confirm that in the opinion of the Board, all Independent Director(s) are independent
of the management of the Company and have given declarations as required under the provisions of Section 149
(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the eligibility criteria of independence as laid down under
section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

k) Reason for resignation of Independent Directors:

During the period, no independent director was resigned.

l) Particulars of Directors seeking re-appointment:

Details of the Director seeking appointment / re-appointment in the ensuing AGM in pursuance to Regulation
36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings are given in the annexure of
the notice of AGM, which forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

3. BOARD COMMITTEES:

1. Audit Committee:

The Audit committee of the Board of directors was constituted in conformity with the requirements of Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Brief description of terms of reference: The role of the Audit Committee is as prescribed under the Act and the
Listing Regulations and includes the following:

i. Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;
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ii. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed entity;

iii. Recommendation of appointment etc., of the statutory auditors and their fee for audit and other services;

iv. Examination and review of Annual financial statements/audit report with particular reference to directors'
responsibility statement, changes in accounting policies, major accounting entries involving estimates, disclosure
of related party transactions, qualifications in the draft audit report, etc.;

v. Review of quarterly financial statements, uses and application of funds raised, performance of statutory and
internal auditors, adequacy of internal control system and internal audit function;

vi. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and
making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

vii. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

viii. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

ix. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

x.  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

xi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

xii. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;

xiii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit;

xiv. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

xv. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
board;

xvi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

xvii. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

xviii. Review of the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

xix. Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background,
etc. of the candidate;

xx. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ o advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans
/ advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision;

xxi. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation
etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.



STEEL EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED

42

Composition and attendance details of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

The Audit Committee consists of Three Independent Directors as on 31.03.2024. The Audit Committee has met Six
times during the financial year 2023-24 on 29th May, 2023, 14th August, 2023, 14th November, 2023, 18th November,
2023 14th February, 2024 and 14th February, 2024.

The constitution of the Audit Committee and attendance details during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 are
given below:

Name of the Director Designation Number of Meetings

Entitled to attend Attended

Mr. Siva Prasad Chivukula Chairman, Independent Director 6 6

Mr. Kodali Krishna Rao Member, Independent Director 6 6

Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra Rao Member, Independent Director 6 5

The representatives of Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee meetings. The representatives
of Statutory Auditors, Executives from Accounts, Finance and Secretarial department(s) attends the Audit Committee
meetings. The Internal Auditors attend the Audit Committee meeting where internal audit report is discussed. The
Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee are in line with the requirements of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D
of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committee has been constituted to recommend / review the
remuneration package of the Managing /Joint Managing Directors, nomination of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel
and one level below the Board along with the heads of department apart from deciding other matters such as framing
and implementation of stock option plans to employees, etc. The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding
performance based on review of achievements which are being reviewed periodically which is in consonance with the
existing industry practices.

Composition, name of members and Chairperson

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Three Independent Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has met Two times during the financial year 2023-24 i.e., on 29th May, 2023 and18th November, 2023. The
constitution of the Committee and attendance details during the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2024, are given below:

Name of the Director Designation
No. of Meeting

Held
No. of Meeting

attended

Mr. Siva Prasad Chivukula Chairman, Independent Director 2 2

Mr. Kodali Krishna Rao Member, Independent Director 2 2

Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra Rao Member, Independent Director 2 1

Performance evaluation of Director

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board, in consultation
with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee has formulated a framework containing, inter-alia, the criteria for
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors, Board of Directors, Committees of Board, Individual Directors
including Managing Director and Non- Executive Directors and Chairperson of the Board.

Evaluation of all Board members is performed on an annual basis. The evaluation is performed by the Board, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Independent Directors with specific focus on the performance and effective functioning
of the Board and Individual Directors.
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In line with Securities and Exchange Board of India Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/004, dated January 5,
2017, the Company has adopted the recommended criteria by SEBI.

The Directors were given 6 Forms for evaluation of the following:

(i) Evaluation of Board;

(ii) Evaluation of Committees of the Board;

(iii) Evaluation of Independent Directors;

(iv) Evaluation of Chairperson;

(v) Evaluation of Non-Executive and Non-Independent Directors; and

(vi) Evaluation of Managing Director.

The Directors were requested to give following ratings for each criteria:

1. Could do more to meet expectations;

2. Meets expectations; and

3. Exceeds expectations.

Meeting of Independent Directors

A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 29.03.2024, inter-alia, to discuss evaluation of the
performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole, evaluation of the performance of the Chairman, taking
into account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors and the evaluation of the quality, content and
timelines of flow of information between the management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform its duties. The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction with the overall performance of the
Directors and the Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company. Inputs and suggestions received from the Directors
were considered at the Board meeting.

Remuneration for Directors

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors: Non-Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration other than the sitting
fee for each meeting of the Board and Committees thereof attended by them. Sitting fees payable to the nominee
director are paid directly to the institution he represents.

The Remuneration paid to the Managing and Joint Managing Directors during the year and the details of sitting fees paid
to the Directors for attending Board and Committee Meetings for the year ended March 31, 2024 and number of shares
held by all the Directors are as follows:

Mr. Bandi Satish Kumar,
Managing Director 90,00,000 11,56,000 - - - - 64,59,440

Mr. Bandi Suresh Kumar,
Joint Managing Director 84,00,000 8,40,000 - - - - 4,11,40,520

Mr. Bandi Ramesh Kumar,
Joint Managing Director 72,17,000 - - - - - 1,60,14,690

Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi
Whole Time Director 44,40000 - - - - - -
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There were no severance fees, stock option plan or no performance linked incentives for the Executive/Non-Executive
Directors. The appointment of Managing Director and Joint Managing Directors were made for a period of 3 years and
Whole-Time Director were made for period of 5 years on the terms and conditions contained in the respective resolu-
tions passed by the Members of the company in the General Meetings.

No Director is related to any other Director on the Board, except Mr. B. Satish Kumar and Mr. B. Suresh Kumar and Mr.
B. Ramesh Kumar are related as Brothers and Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi son of Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bandi.

• Sitting Fees include payment for Board Level Committee Meetings.

• Service Contracts/Notice period are as per the Agreement entered with Managing Director and Whole-time
Directors.

• The Company is not having stock option scheme therefore the same is not applicable.

None of the non-executive directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the company except as per
requirements of Ind AS 24 are disclosed in the notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements.

Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations are updated
on the Company's website at
https://seil.co.in/uploads/3284-SEIL_Criteria_For_Making_Payments_to_Non_Ex_Directors.pdf.

Mr. Veeramachaneni
Venkata Krishna Rao,
Non-Executive Director - - - - - - 64,37,360

Mr. Bavineni Suresh,
Non-Executive Director - - - - - - 2,42,04,010

Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra Rao,
Independent Director - - - - - 2,00,000 -

Mr. Kodali Krishna Rao,
Independent Director - - - - - 3,50,000 -

Mr. Siva Prasad Chivukula,
Independent Director - - - - - 3,50,000 -

Mrs. Sujata Chattopadhyay,
Independent Director - - - - - 3,50,000 -

Mr.  Shyam Jagetiya
Nominee Director - - - - - 3,00,000 -

Mr. Siva Sagar Rao Yendamuri
Independent Director - - - - - 3,50,000 -

Mr. Veera Brahma Rao Arekapudi
Independent Director - - - - - 2,50,000 -

Mrs. Bhagya Ramini,
Independent Director - - - - - 2,50,000

Mr. Ram Mohan Nagoji,
Nominee Director - - - - - - -
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3. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

The Committee comprises of three Members Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra Rao, Chairman, Mr. Bandi Satish
Kumar, Member and Mrs. Sujata Chattopadhyay, Member. The responsibilities of the Committee include Redressal
of all shareholders complaints and grievances.

During the year ended 31.03.2024, One Stakeholders' Relationship Committee Meeting was held on 29th March,
2024.

The constitution of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and attendance details during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2024 are given below:

Sl.
No

Name of the member Designation
Meetings

Held
Meetings
Attended

1 Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra Rao Chairman, Independent Director 1 1

2 Mrs. Sujata Chattopadhyay Member, Independent Director 1 1

3 Mr. Bandi Satish Kumar Member, Managing Director 1 1

v Terms of Reference
• Stakeholders' Relationship, Grievance and Share Transfer Committee oversees and reviews all matters

connected with the securities transfers and also look into redressing of shareholders complaints like
transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual reports/dividends etc.

• Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
• The Committee oversees the performance of the Registrar and Transfer agents and recommends mea-

sures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services.
• Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by
the shareholders of the company

v Name and designation of Compliance Officer:
Mr. Raveendra Babu Mannem was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the Company.
Email-id for Investor Grievances: cs@seil.co.in

v Number of Shareholders complaints received so far:
• During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has received 10 complaints and resolved all 10

complaints and there were no pending complaints as at the year end.
• Number of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders is Nil.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") Committee:
The CSR Committee provides guidance on CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company. The terms of
reference for the CSR Committee include:
1. Formulate a CSR policy which shall indicate activities to be undertaken by the Company
2. Recommend the CSR policy to the Board

3. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities
4. Monitor the policy from time to time as per the CSR policy.
During the year ended 31.03.2024, one CSR Committee Meeting was held on 29.03.2024.

The constitution of the CSR Committee and attendance details during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024
are given below:

Sl.
No

Name of the member Designation
Meetings

Held
Meetings
Attended

1 Mr. B Suresh Kumar~ Chairman, ExecutiveDirector 1 1

2 Mr. B Satish Kumar Member, Managing Director 1 1

3 Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra Rao Member, Independent Director 1 1
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5.    Risk Management Committee

a) Brief description of terms of reference

1. To formulate a detailed Risk Management Policy which shall include:

a. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, in particular
including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, Environment, Social and Governance
related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

b. Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.

c. Business continuity plan.

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company;

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy of risk
management systems;

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, recommendations and
actions to be taken;

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review by
the Risk Management Committee;

7. The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees, in instances where there
is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the framework laid down by the board of directors.

During the year ended 31.03.2024, two Risk management Committee Meetings wereheld i.e., 01.07.2023 and
20.12.2023.

During the year, the company faced the sudden and tragic loss of Mr. Shri A Suresh Babu, CFO and KMP, who
died due to a massive heart attack in the late hours of Saturday, March 23, 2024.

The constitution of the Risk management Committee and attendance details during the financial year ended
31stMarch, 2024 are given below:

*Mr. Suresh Babu Anubrolu ceased from the position of CFO and KMP of the Company dated 23rd March, 2024,due
to sudden demise.

 4. Compliance Officer

Mr. Raveendra Babu Mannem, Company Secretary is Compliance Officer of the Company for complying with requirements
of Securities Laws.

 5. Prevention of Insider Trading

As per the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, as amended, the Company has adopted
a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading. The Company has appointed Mr. Raveendra Babu M, Company
Secretary as Compliance Officer, who is responsible for setting forth procedures and implementation of the code for
trading in Company's securities. The Code of Conduct is applicable to all Directors and such identified employees of the
Company who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company. During
the year under review there has been due compliance with the said code.

Sl.
No

Name of the member Designation
Meetings

Held
Meetings
Attended

1. Mr. Bandi Satish Kumar Chairman, Managing Director 2 2

3. Mrs. Sujata Chattopadhyay Member, Independent Director 2 1

4. Mr. Bandi Suresh Kumar Member, Executive Director 2 2

5. Mr. Suresh BabuAnubrolu* Member, Chief Financial Officer 2 2
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6. Compliance

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meeting(s), is responsible for
and is required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations, including the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules issued thereunder, as applicable and Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

7. Recording Minutes of Proceedings at Board and Committee Meetings

The Company Secretary records minutes of proceedings of each Board, Committee and General Meeting. Draft minutes
are circulated to Board / Committee members for their comments. The minutes are entered in the Minutes Book within
30 days from the conclusion of the meeting.

8. Compliance of Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2)(b)
to (i) and (t) of Listing Regulations

S
No

Particulars Regulation
Compliance
Status (Yes/

No/NA)

1 Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of specified
criteria of 'independence' and/or 'eligibility' 16(1)(b) & 25(8) YES

2 Board composition 17(1)&17(1A) YES
3 Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) YES
4 Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) YES
5 Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) NA
6 Code of Conduct 17(5) YES
7 Fees/compensation 17(6) YES
8 Minimum Information to be placed before the Board 17(7) YES
9 Compliance Certificate from Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 17(8) YES
10 Risk assessment and management 17(9) YES
11 Performance evaluation of independent directors 17(10) YES
12 Composition of audit committee 18(1) YES
13 Meetings of audit committee 18(2) YES
14 Composition of nomination and remuneration committee 19(1) & (2) YES
15 Composition of stakeholder relationship committee 20(1) & (2) YES
16 Composition and role of risk management committee 21(1),(2),(3),(4) YES
17 Vigil mechanism 22 YES
18 Disclosure of shareholding by non-executive directors - YES
19 Policy for related party transaction 23(1), (5),(6),& (8) YES
20 Prior or omnibus approval of audit committee for all related party transactions 23(2), (3) YES
21 Approval for material related party transactions 23(4) YES
22 Composition of board of directors of unlisted material subsidiary 24(1) NA
23 Other corporate governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of listed entity 24(2),(3),(4),(5)&(6) NA
24 Maximum directorship and tenure 25(1) & (2) YES
25 Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) YES
26 Familiarization of independent directors 25(7) YES
27 Membership(s) in committees 26(1) YES
28 Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from members of board of directors

and senior management personnel 26(3) YES
29 Policy with respect to obligations of directors and senior management 26(2) & 26(5) YES
30 Website Disclosure(s) 46(2)(b)to(i) and (t) YES
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9. General Body Meetings:

(i) The details of date, location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings held areas under:

Special Resolutions passed during the previous three Annual General Meetings:

a) 24th Annual General Meeting - September 29, 2023- The following Special Businesses were transacted by
passing Special Resolution

(i) To appoint Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani (DIN: 00107097) Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company.

(ii) To consider and approve Alteration in the Articles of Association of the Company.

b) 23rd Annual General Meeting - June 24, 2022- The following Special Businesses were transacted by passing
Special Resolution

(i) Issuance of securities upto an aggregate amount of 600 Crore (Six Hundred Crores Only).

(ii) Sub-division of face value of Equity shares from Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 1/- each.

(iii) Appointment of Mr. Siva Sagar Yendamuri (DIN: 00210188), as an Independent Director (Non-Executive) of
the Company.

c) 22nd Annual General Meeting- September 27, 2021- The following Special Businesses were transacted by passing
Special Resolution

(i) Re-appointment of Shri Bandi Ramesh Kumar (DIN: 00206293), as Whole time Director of the company.

(ii) Appointment of Mr. E. Sankara Rao (DIN: 05184747), as Independent Director of the company.

S
No

Particulars of regulations Compliance
status (Yes/No)

1 Board of directors Yes
2 Audit committee Yes
3 Nomination and Remuneration committee Yes
4 Stakeholders Relationship committee Yes
5 Risk Management committee Yes
6 Vigil mechanism Yes
7 Related party transactions Yes
8 Corporate Governance requirements with respect to Subsidiaries NA
9 Obligations with respect to independent directors Yes
10 Obligation with respect to Directors and Senior Management Yes
11 Other Corporate Governance requirements Yes
12 Disclosure on website in terms of the SEBI Listing

Regulations (Regulation 46 (2)) Yes

Annual Gen-
eral Meeting Date Time Venue

2023 29.09.2023 11.30 A.M Through Video Conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM)

2022 24.06.2022 11.30 A.M Through Video Conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM)

2021 27.09.2021 02.00 P.M Through Video Conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM)
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ii) Postal Ballot:

During the Year the company has circulated one Postal Ballot Notice(s) to Members on 11th April, 2023 and the
following Resolutions were transacted by the said Postal Ballot:

i Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the persons who conducted the postal ballot exercise,
details of the voting pattern and procedure of postal ballot:

The Company had sought the approval of the shareholders by way of a Special Resolution through notice of postal
ballot dated April 11, 2023 for given below:

• Revision and increase in remuneration payable to Mr. B Ramesh Kumar (DIN: 00206293), Joint Managing
Director of the Company.

• To appoint Mr. Veera Brahma Rao  Arekapudi (DIN: 07540040) Non-Executive Independent Director of the
Company.

which was duly passed and the results of which were announced on May 12, 2023. S.Srikanth (C.P. No.
7999), partner of B S S & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Scrutinizer
to scrutinize the postal ballot process by voting through electronic means only (remote e-voting) in a fair and
transparent manner. Details of the voting pattern are provided below:

• On 11th April, 2023

i Procedure for postal ballot: The postal ballot was carried out as per the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and
other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Rules framed thereunder and read with the General Circular
nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 22/2020, 33/2020, 39/2020, 10/2021, 20/2021, 3/2022, 11/2022 dated April 8, 2020, April
13, 2020, June 15, 2020, September 28, 2020, December 31, 2020, June 23, 2021, December 8, 2021, May 5,
2022, December 28, 2022 respectively issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

i Details of special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM requires passing of a special resolution
through postal ballot.

iii) EGM:

During the year the company has circulated Three Extra-ordinary General Meeting Notices of the members on 20th
May, 2023, 18th December, 2023 and 11th March, 2024 and the following Resolutions were transacted by the said
EGM :

i Details of special resolution passed in Extra-Ordinary General Meeting:

• On 20th May, 2023

(i) To Offer, Issue and Allot 1,30,00,000 Equity Shares on Preferential Basis to Non-Promoter Group of the Company

Resolution 
Number

Votes in favour of the resolution  Votes against the resolution  Invalid votes 

Number 
of

members 
voted

Number of 
valid 

Votes cast  
(Shares) 

Percentage
of total 

number of 
valid votes 

cast

Number 
of

members 
voted

Number 
of 

valid 
votes 
cast 

(Shares)

Percentage 
of total 

number of
valid votes 

cast

Total 
number 

of
members 

whose 
votes 
were

declared 
invalid

Total 
number

of 
invalid  
votes 
cast

(Shares)

1 154 475537328 99.3473 32 3124251 0.6527 1 400
2 169 475561658 99.3524 16 3099901 0.6476 2 420



STEEL EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED

50

• On 18th December, 2023

(i) To Offer, Issue and Allot 8,27,27,272 Convertible Equity Warrants to Non-Promoter Entities of the Company on
preferential basis.

(ii) To appoint Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi, (DIN: 07410118) as a Whole-Time Director of the Company for the period
of Five (05) years w.e.f., 18.11.2023.

• On 11th March, 2024

(i) To Offer, Issue and Allot 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares to Non-Promoter Entities of the Company on preferential
basis.

10. Disclosures:

a) Materially Significant Related Party Transactions: - All transactions entered into with related parties during the
financial year were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business. The transactions with related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of the companies' act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

There were no materially significant transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties which might
be deemed to have had a potential material conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The details of the
Related Party Transactions entered during the year and disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting Standards
(IND AS 24) are disclosed in the Notes to Accounts - Note No.3.32.3 annexed to the financial statements forming
part of this Annual Report.

In terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a policy to determine
Related Party Transactions. The policy is placed on the website of the company at https://seil.co.in/governance/
policy.

(b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, Penalties imposed by Stock Exchanges/ SEBI: Except non-compliance
under Regulation 52(4) and 17(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, there were no other instances of non-compliance by
the Company on any matter relating to capital market during the last three years or any penalties imposed or
strictures passed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or other statutory authorities relating to capital
market during the said period.

(c) The information on Directors seeking re-appointment/appointment is provided in the notes to the notice of the Annual
General Meeting under the heading "Additional information on Directors seeking Re-appointment/appointment at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting".

(d)  The Board has also constituted a committee named as "Management Committee" for strategic management of the
Company's business within the Board approved direction/framework. The following are the members of the Committee:

1. Mr. B. Suresh Kumar Chairman
2. Mr. B. Satish Kumar Member
3. Mr. B. Suresh Member
4. Mr. V. V. Krishna Rao Member

The minutes of the Committee meetings are placed before the Board for its approval/ confirmation.

(e) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations: During the year,
the Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.
Further, Company has disseminated report on compliance with corporate governance requirements as specified in
regulation 17 to 27 and 46(2) on its website https://seil.co.in/uploads/6752-
Code_of_Conduct_for_Board_Members_and_Senior_Management.pdf and also submitted with BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.  Non-Mandatory requirements of C & E as provided in Part E of Schedule
II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, except appointing a Non-Executive Chairman to the Board and Separate persons
to the post of Chairman and Managing Director, all other items have been adopted from non-mandatory requirements.
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 (f) The Board of Directors of the Company had adopted the Whistle Blower Policy. Employees can report to the
Management concerned unethical behavior, act or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct
policy.

No employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee. A copy of the Whistle Blower Policy is also hosted
on the website of the Company: https://seil.co.in/uploads/3742-Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee had not received any complaint during the Financial Year ended 31st March,
2024. No personnel have been /will be denied access to the audit committee.

 (g) Certificate by Practicing Company Secretary: The Company has received a certificate from Mr. Srikanth, Partner,
B S S & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, confirming that none of the Directors of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of companies by the SEBI/Ministry of
Corporate of Affairs or any such authority.

(h) Information on complaints in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil

b. number of complaints disposed off during the financial year: Nil

c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil

(i) M/s. Bhavani & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 012139S) have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company. The particulars of payment of Statutory Auditors' fees during the financial year ended 31.03.2024, on
consolidated basis is given below:

Particulars Amount in Rs. 
For Statutory Audit 60,00,000 
For Tax Audit 5,00,000 
For Tax Representations 4,50,000 
For Certification & Others 4,50,000 
Total 74,00,000 

 (j) Details of material subsidiaries of the Company: Not applicable

(k) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified
under Regulation 32 (7A):

During the year the under review the issued and allotted

• 1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.15.75/- per share (including
share premium of Rs.14.75/- per share) on preferential basis to non-promoter of the Company as a part fundraising
for prepayment of borrowings of the Company, working capital requirement, meeting future funding requirements
and other general corporate purposes of the Company.

• 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs.1/- each at an issue price of Rs.16.60/- per share (including
share premium of Rs.15.60/- per share) on preferential basis to non-promoter of the Company as a part fundraising
for Operations, Working Capital requirement and General Corporate Purposes.

(l) Details of recommendation of Committees of the Board which were not accepted by the Board: Nil, as All
recommendations of the Committees of the Board were duly accepted by the Board.

m) The company has duly complied with the requirements of the Corporate Governance Report of Sub-paras 2 to 10 of
Part (C) of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

n) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part : Rs 74,00,000/-
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11. Risk Management

During the year, the risk assessment parameters were reviewed and modified, wherever needed. The audit committee/
Board reviewed the element of risks and the steps taken to mitigate the risks. In the opinion of the Board, there are no
major elements of risk which has the potential of threatening the existence of the Company.

12. General Code of Conduct

The Company has formulated and implemented a General Code of Conduct, which is available on company's website
www.seil.co.in, for all its Directors and Senior Management of the Company in compliance with SEBI Listing Regulations.
All the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the said Code of
Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.  A declaration by the Chairman & Managing Director affirming
compliance with the said Code of Conduct is annexed at the end of the Report and forms part of this Report.

13. Means of Communication

(i) (As part of compliance with Regulation 10, 33,47 and 52 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company furnishes its
quarterly financial results to the Stock Exchanges where its shares have been listed.

(ii) The Company's quarterly, half yearly and annual results are published in prominent daily newspapers such as
'Business Standard' (English) and 'Eenadu' (Telugu).

(iii) The Company posts all the vital information relating to the Company and its performance on the web site www.seil.co.in
for the benefit of the shareholders and public at large.

(iv) News releases as and when issued by the company in respect of financial results are also made available at the
company's web site at https://seil.co.in/governance/press

(v) During the period under review, no presentations were made to any institutional investors or to the analysts.

(vi) The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached and forms part of the Annual Report.

(vii) Further a direct communication is also made to the shareholders by the Managing Director/Authorised person from
Secretarial Department of the company as and when required.

14. MD/ CEO & CFO Certification

In accordance with the requirements of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a Certificate from Managing
Director/CEO and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, on the financial statements of the Company was placed before
the Board in the Meeting held on 03.05.2024 and the same is annexed to this report, also forms part of this Annual
Report.

15. Certificate on Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Report forms part of the Annual Report.  A Certificate from the Statutory Auditors confirming
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Agreement/Listing Regulation and the
same is annexed to this report, also forms part of this Annual Report.

16. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER’ INFORMATION:

a) 25th Annual General Meeting :
Date : Friday, 27th September 2024
Time : 12.30 P.M.
Venue : Through VC/Other Audio Video Mode

b) Financial Year : 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025
Financial Calendar for 2024-25 : The following are tentative dates:
First Quarter results : 2nd Week of July, 2024
Second Quarter results : 2nd week of November, 2024
Third Quarter results : 2nd week of February, 2025
Annual results for 2024-25 : 4th Week of May, 2025
AGM for the year 2024-2025 : 4th Week of September, 2025.
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c) Dates of Book Closure : 21st September, 2024 to 27th September 2024
(Both days inclusive)

d) Dividend Payment Date : No dividend is recommended for the Year ended on 31st March 2024.
e) Listing on Stock Exchanges : BSE Ltd, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Port, Mumbai - 400001

National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange Plaza, Bandra
Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051
There are no dues against listing fee payable to these stock exchanges.

f) Stock Code/Symbol : BSE  : 534748/960441
NSE  : STEELXIND

g)   Market Price Data:
The Securities of the Company are actively traded in the BSE Ltd, Mumbai. The monthly high/low prices of share
of the Company and number of shares traded during each month on the Stock Exchange, Mumbai during year the
year 2023-24, are given below:

Month &Year Price in BSE  Price in NSE  
High (Rs.)  Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)

Apr-2023 17.25 13.59 17.25 13.80
May-2023 17.10 14.45 17.10 14.40
Jun-2023 16.38 13.87 16.40 12.85
Jul-2023 15.18 12.35 15.25 12.35
Aug-2023 13.52 9.55 13.55 9.55
Sep-2023 12.10 9.25 12.10 9.20
Oct-2023 9.95 7.85 9.95 7.80
Nov-2023 11.25 8.25 11.30 8.20
Dec-2023 10.94 9.52 10.95 9.60
Jan-2024 18.42 10.29 18.40 10.30
Feb-2024 17.87 13.69 17.85 13.70
Mar-2024 15.29 11.64 15.30 12.00

Source: www.bseindia.com and  www.nseindia.com
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h) Relative movement chart: Performance in comparison to broad - based indices BSE Sensex and NSE
nifty

The Chart below gives the relative moment of the high price of the Company's share and the High price of the
BSE Sensex and NSE nifty between 01st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024
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i) Registrar & Share Transfer Agents:

The Company has engaged the services of M/s Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited, Hyderabad;
a SEBI registered Registrar, as their Share Transfer Agents (RTA) for both physical and electronic segment and can
be contacted by the Investors at the following address:

M/s Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited,

"Aurum", Door No.4-50/P-II/57/4f & 5f, Plot No.57, 4th& 5thFloors, Jayabheri Enclave Phase - II Gachibowli, Hyderabad
- 500 032, Telephone: +91 - 40 - 23818475 / 76; Fax: +91 - 40 - 23868024, Email: info@vccipl.com,
investor.relations@vccipl.com

j) Share transfer System:

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has notified vide Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/2018/P/
73 dated 20thApril, 2018 and No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOS3/ CIR/P/2018/115 dated 16thJuly, 2018 that except in case
of transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting the transfer of securities shall not be processed
unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with a depository. Essentially, the shares in physical mode
cannot be transferred after 5thDecember 2018. SEBI has extended the said dead line upto 31stMarch 2019 vide its
Press Release No.49/2018 dated 3rd December 2018. However, the shareholders may hold shares in physical form
but shall not be allowed to transfer the shares. In view of this regulatory amendment, it is advisable to the sharehold-
ers, to dematerialize their securities as early as possible with ISIN INE503B01021 of the Company. The Company's
shares can be dematerialized with the Depositories namely CDSL or NSDL through the Depository Participants. The
Company's shares are compulsorily traded in the demat mode at NSE & BSE

Pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated 20thApril, 2018, in which SEBI has directed
all the Listed Companies to mandatorily record the PAN and Bank Account details of all their shareholders holding
shares in physical mode. In these connections, the company has sent letters to the shareholders, who are holding
shares in physical mode. The shareholders are once again requested to update their aforesaid details with M/s
Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited, if details are not yet updated.

k) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024:

Distribution Details on Shareholdingfor the period ended 31.03.2024 
INE503B01021 

Number of equity shares 

Shareholders Equity Shares

Number of 
shareholders 

shareholders 
%

No. of Equity 
Shares held

Shareholding 
% 
 

Upto  - 500 214297 79.33 22781405 1.90

501  -   1000 24857 9.2 21200881 1.77 

1001  -   2000 13414 4.97 21207885 1.77 

2001  -   3000 5057 1.87 13284125 1.11 

3001  -   4000 2323 0.86 8477948 0.71 

4001  - 5000 2891 1.07 14024125 1.17

5001  - 10000 3779 1.4 29820330 2.49

10001 and above 3525 1.3         1066836571 89.08 

Total 270143 100 1197633270 100 
 

STEEL EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED
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Shareholding Pattern by ownership as on 31st March 2024:

S. No.  Category 
 

No. of Shares held % of Holding

A Promoter & Promoter Group
1 Indian Promoters

i. Bavineni Jyothi Kiran 11279640 0.94
ii. Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao 6437360 0.54
iii. V Rajya Lakshmi 3409080 0.28
iv. Veeramachaneni Srijan Babu 1148860 0.10
v. Bandi Jaya Padmavathi 13256460 1.11
vi. Satish Kumar Bandi 6459440 0.54
vii. Suresh Kumar Bandi 41140520 3.44
viii.  Bavineni Suresh 24204010 2.02 
ix.  Bavineni Lavanya 4911460 0.41 
x.  Rajesh Bavineni  7753360 0.65 
xi.  Bandi Ramesh Kumar  16014690 1.34 
xii.  Sudha B 80000 0.01 
xiii.  Bandi Suguna 4331500 0.36 
xiv.   Bandi Arunakanthi  2179000 0.18 
xv.   Vizag Profiles Private Limited  254877520 21.28 
xvi.  Umashiv Garments Private Limited  266112650 22.22 

2 Foreign Promoters  -   - 
 Sub- Total –A 663595550 55.41 
B Public Shareholding   
1 Institutions   
a. Mutual Funds/UTI  35370 0.00 
b Venture Capital Funds  -  
c. Alternate Investment Funds 15103996 1.26 
d. Foreign Venture Capital Funds -  
e. Foreign Portfolio Investors -Corporate 17557491 1.46 
f. Financial Institutions/Banks  510 - 
g. Insurance Companies  -  
h. Provident Funds/Pension Funds/any other  -  
i. Foreign Institution Investors  -  
j.. Qualified Foreign Investor -  
k. Qualified Foreign Investor – Corporate -
l. Foreign Bodies Corporate -
m. Foreign Nationals -
n. NBFCs Registered with RBI 269000 0.02

Sub-Total-B(1) 32966367 2.75
2 Central Government/State Government(s) 3093480 0.26

Sun-Total – B(2) 3093480 0.26
3 Non-Institutions
a. Individual shareholders holding upto 2 lakh 230162948 19.22
b. Individual shareholders holding in excess of 2 lakh  90283820 7.54 
c. NBFCs Registered with RBI  -  
d. Employee Trusts -  
e. Overseas Depositories (holding DRs)  -  
f. Any Other  11000000 0.92 
g. Body Corporates 143543295 11.98  
h. Clearing Members 24680 0.00 
i. Trust  3813230 0.32 
j. Non-Resident Indians 5835029 0.49 
k. Foreign Companies  13314871 1.11 
 Sub-Total – B (3) 497977873 41.58 
 Total Public Shareholding -B 534037720 44.59 
C Shares held by Custodians against DRs/FCCBs etc. 0 0.00 
 GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C)  1197633270 100.00 
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I) Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity

As on 31st March 2024, 1,19,51,10,190 equity shares representing 99.79% were held in dematerialized form and
25,23,080 equity shares representing 0.21 % were in physical form.

The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and the shares are regularly traded on BSE
Limited, Mumbai (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) The ISIN Number allotted for the
Equity shares is INE503B01021.

m) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on
equity.

As on 31st March 2024, there were no Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs of the Company.

During the year under review, Company has converted and allotted following securities given below:

n) Unclaimed Dividend

There is no unclaimed dividend, which remains unclaimed by the shareholders, to transfer to Investor Education &
Protection Fund (IEPF).

o) Commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Nil

p) Unclaimed Suspense Account for Equity Shareholders of GSAL (India) Ltd: Your company is maintaining
one unclaimed account in the name of STEEL EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED-UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
for erstwhile shareholders of M/s GSAL (India) Limited, the company merger with SEIL.

Pursuant to Regulation 39 of the Listing Regulations, reminder letters have been sent to shareholders whose shares
remain unclaimed from the Company. Based on their response, such shares have been transferred to "unclaimed
suspense account" as per the provisions of Schedule VI of the Listing Regulations. The disclosure as required
under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is given below:

 Disclosure with respect to unclaimed shares:

Type of securities Number of convertible 
instruments 

No of equity shares  Date of 
allotment/Conversion 

Compulsorily Convertible 
Debentures (CCDs) 

75,80,000 unsecured 
12% CCDs of Rs. 72.50 
each (including premium) 

7,58,00,000 of Rs. 1/- 
each 

May 23, 2023 

Convertible Warrants 58,22,150 Convertible 
Warrants of Rs. 72.50 
each (including premium) 

5,82,21,500 of Rs. 1/- 
each 

May 23, 2023 

 

Type of securities Number of convertible instruments Date of allotment 
Convertible Warrants  82727272 Convertible Warrants of Rs. 

11 each (including premium) 
January 31, 2024 

 

Further that the company has issued 82727272 convertible warrants to non-promoter groups of company as given below:
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q) Plant Locations:

1. Integrated Steel Plant (ISP) -Sponge Iron Division, Rolling Division, SMS Billet Unit and 60 MW Power
Plant: Malliveedu, L. Kota Mandal, Vizianagaram District-533301,

2. Power Plant & Steel Ingot Division: Opp: Mandapalli New Bridge, Kothapeta (V & M) - 533 223 East Godavari
(Dt).

r) Address for Correspondence:

Investor correspondence may be addressed to:

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents's Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Pvt. Ltd.

"Aurum", Door No.4-50/P-II/57/4f & 5f, Plot No.57, 4th & 5th Floors, Jayabheri Enclave Phase - II Gachibowli,
Hyderabad - 500 032,Telephone: +91 - 40 - 23818475 / 76, Fax: +91 - 40 - 23868024,Email: info@vccipl.com

Company: The Company Secretary, Steel Exchange India Limited,

D. No:1-65/K/60, Plot No: 60, 01st Floor, Abhi's Hiranya, Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana, 500081,
Telephone: +91 - 40 - 23403725 Fax: +91 - 40 - 23413267, Email: cs@seil.co.in

s) List of all credit ratings obtained by the company along with any revisions thereto during the relevant
financial year:

t) Suspension of securities from trading: No securities of the Company were suspended from trading during the
financial year 2023-24.

u) Particulars of Senior Management including the changes therein since the close of the previous financial
year:

v) Disclosure of 'loans and advances' to firms / companies in which directors of the Company are interested:
NA

w) Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding the Company: NA

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Steel Exchange India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad B Satish Kumar
Date: 29.08.2024 Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 00163676)

Instrument Type Tenor Amount (Rs. Cr) Rating 
Listed Secured Non -
Convertible Debentures

Long Term  273.92 CARE BB; Stable (Double B; Outlook: 
Stable) Assigned

Long Term Bank 
Facilities 

Long Term 10 CARE BB; Stable (Double B; Outlook: 
Stable) Assigned  

Short Term Bank 
Facilities 

Short Term  40 CARE BB; Stable (Double B; Outlook: 
Stable) Assigned  

Total 323.92 

Name Designation Date of joining / redesignati on / 
resignation/Due to death (if any)

Department 

A Suresh Babu CFO 23.03.2024 Finance 
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DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY

Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel pursuant to the provisions as
provided under Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Board laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and Senior Management personnel of the
Company. The Code of Conduct is also posted on the website of the Company.

The Members of the Board and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with code of conduct
on an annual basis in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

  Sd/-

Place: Hyderabad B. Satish Kumar
Date: 29.08.2024 Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 00163676)
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MD/ CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATE
For FY ended March 31, 2024

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Part B Schedule II)

To
The Board of Directors,
Steel Exchange India Limited

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading;
ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which

are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company's Code of Conduct.
c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls over
financial reporting, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.  In our opinion, there are adequate internal controls over financial reporting.

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there are no:
i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements;

and
iii) instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an

employee having significant role in the company's internal control system over financial reporting.

        For STEEL EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED

        Sd/-  Sd/-
Place: Visakhapatnam Bandi Satish Kumar M Mallikarjuna Rao
Date:  03.05.2024 Managing Director Interim Chief Financial Officer
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of

Steel Exchange India Limited

D. No:1-65/K/60, Plot No: 60, 01st Floor, Abhi's Hiranya,

Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500081

1. We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Steel Exchange India Limited having
CIN L74100TG1999PLC031191, for the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation 2 of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("SEBI
Listing Regulations").

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and the
explanations given to us, and the representations made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for
the year ended on March 31, 2024.

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Bhavani & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 012139S

       Sd/-
CA. S Kavitha Padmini

Place:  Hyderabad Partner
Date : 29.08.2024 M.No.F-229966

UDIN: 24229966BKBLZT7640
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To

The Members,
Steel Exchange India Limited,
CIN: L74100TG1999PLC031191
D.No:1-65/K/60, Plot No:60 Abhis Hiranya,
1st Floor, Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad Telangana - 500081

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Steel
Exchange India Limited having CIN: L74100TG1999PLC031191 and having registered office at D.No:1-65/K/60, Plot No:60
Abhis Hiranya, 1st Floor, Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad Telangana - 500081  (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its
officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year
ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authorities.

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director DIN
Date of appointment 

in Company 
01 Mr. Satish Kumar Bandi  00163676 01/10/2007 
02 Mr. Suresh Bavineni 00181832 24/02/2000 
03 Mr. Bandi Ramesh Kumar * 00206293 09/02/2015 
04 Mr. Suresh Kumar Bandi  00206473 24/02/1999 
05 Mr. Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao  00206884 24/01/2000 
06 Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra Rao  00226945 30/01/2006 
07 Mr. Kodali Krishnarao  00382726 31/01/2009 
08 Mr. Sivaprasad Chivukula 01904785 10/01/2008 
09 Mr. Sujata Chattopadhyay  02336683 27/03/2015 
10 Mr. Shyam Jagetiya ** 02581262 12/02/2022 
11 Mr. Siva Sagar Rao Yendamuri  00210188 16/05/2022 
12 Mr. Veera Brahma Rao Arekapudi 07540040 14/02/2023 
13 Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani  00107097 12/07/2023 
14 Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi 07410118 18/11/2023  

 *Mr. Bandi Ramesh Kumar (DIN: 00206293) as Whole-Time Director cum Joint Managing Director of the company resigned with effect from
February 08, 2024 due to end of tenure, and there is no other reason for resignation.

**Mr. Shyam Jagetiya (DIN: 02581262) as Nominee Director of the company resigned with effect from April 1, 2024 due to pre-occupancy, and

there is no other reason for resignation.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company. For B S S & Associates

Company Secretaries
Sd/-

S. Srikanth
Partner

ACS No.: 22119;  C P No.: 7999
UDIN: A022119F001055448

Peer review no.: 726/2020

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 29.08.2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The objective of this report is to convey the Management's perspective on the external environment and steel industry, as
well as strategy, operating and financial performance, material developments in human resources and industrial relations,
risks and opportunities and internal control systems and their adequacy in the Company during Financial Year 2023-24.
This should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements, the schedules and notes thereto and other
information included elsewhere in the Integrated Report and Annual Accounts 2023-24. The Company's financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') complying with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended and regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') from time
to time.
GLOBAL ECONOMY
The global economy continues to demonstrate strong resilience, navigating multiple headwinds such as the ongoing Russia-
Ukraine conflict, escalating geopolitical crisis in the Middle East and cost of living crisis in various economies. The International
Monetary Fund estimates the global GDP growth to sustain at 3.2% in 2024, which is a slight increase from 2023. Strong
private consumption and government spending programs, particularly in the United States & the emerging market economies
are driving the GDP growth. The services sector continues to dominate with manufacturing activity remaining somewhat
subdued.
Economic growth however, has been quite divergent with the United States growing faster than previously estimated amongst
advanced economies while the United Kingdom and the Eurozone nations lag behind narrowly avoiding a recession. India
continues to remain in a bright spot globally. China's weak real estate sector is suppressing growth. Industrial overcapacity,
continued slowdown in domestic demand, deepening deflation and heightened trade tensions with the West continue to
remain major headwinds for China.

INDIAN ECONOMY

India continues to be the fastest growing major economy in the world and has exhibited strong resilience against global
headwinds. Consistent Government programs encouraging spending on infrastructure & housing coupled with a robust
private consumption and buoyant services & manufacturing sectors are fueling the growth. The Country's attractiveness as
an investment destination remains robust, given the size and scale of operations it has to offer to global companies,
abundant skilled talent pool, and prowess in technology and innovation.

The industrial manufacturing sector has experienced a significant boost, attracting global technology giants to expand their
supplier networks within India. This momentum is further supported by the implementation of state industrial policies that
complement sector specific incentive schemes. Concurrently, substantial investments in logistics and infrastructure
development, including the construction of new roads, highways, and rail tracks, underscore the Government's commitment
to bolstering this critical sector. Capital spending by the Government and strong manufacturing activity have meaningfully
contributed to the robust growth outcomes in 2023.

Various Production Linked Incentive ('PLI') schemes have revived the manufacturing sector post pandemic. They are helping
build up critical value chains and industrial clusters, besides expanding the Country's export basket. Overall, the PLI
schemes have brought in a new regulatory framework, which can be aligned to address industrial and manufacturing
technology deficiencies and improve output. The Government is also contemplating extending the scheme to further sectors,
to develop new segments in labour intensive sectors. Services export grew on a year-on-year basis on the back of rising
exports of software, business and travel services.

The rise in net services exports receipts and softening of the global commodity prices, more than compensated for a slight
rise in merchandise trade deficit. This has helped cushion the Current Account Deficit ('CAD'). India's retail inflation for
FY 2023-24 has seen a significant downturn, marking its lowest point since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. Reflecting
this trend, the Reserve Bank of India has decided to maintain policy rates at their current levels, citing the ongoing reduction
in price pressures across the country.

GLOBAL STEEL INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENTS

Global Steel Industry has been impacted by high interest costs, tight credit conditions, high inflation and growing geo-
economic crisis. The slowdown of steel consuming sectors, especially in EU & US continued in 2023 as investment and
consumption weakened. The delayed effect of tightening monetary policy may allow slow recovery in 2024 in advanced
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economies while emerging economies, particularly Asia may grow faster. Persistent core inflation, high oil prices and tight
job market remain the downside risks to stabilising inflation.

Tight credit conditions and higher costs have led to a sharp slowdown in housing activity in most major markets and have
hampered manufacturing sector globally. While it seems the world economy will experience a soft landing from this monetary
tightening cycle, global steel demand growth is expected to remain weak over the next couple of years.

The previous year has seen a volatile steel raw materials markets, particularly the coal markets, due to irregular weather
incidents in Australia, while trade flows were deeply impacted by major geo-political conflicts. Energy costs incurred during
steel production significantly affects steel prices. Sanctions on Russia, a major exporter of oil, coal & natural gas, has
upended the hydrocarbon markets with high prices with commodity flows yet to achieve equilibrium.

The Chinese Steel Demand remains subdued owing to its weak real estate sector. The country is also undergoing an
economic transition from an investment driven model to a consumption driven model which is expected to limit its contribution
to the global steel demand growth at least in the short term.

Emerging regions like the Middle East, North Africa and Southeast Asia are showing accelerating growth in their steel
demand despite slowdowns in recent years. But political instability and erosion of competitiveness continue to be major risk
factors in these economies which might affect steel demand.

INDIAN STEEL INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENTS

India, however, has emerged as an outlier in the global steel industry primarily due its young & aspiring populace that's
offering both the labour and the consumer base to drive steel production & demand. Steel demand is also driven by the
unrealized potential for growth & development across the social, industrial, infrastructure & defence sectors.

Recent adjustments in steel export and import charges, together with increased demand for affordable housing, infrastructure
development, and building projects, have resulted in a pan-India demand for steel metal. Furthermore, the government's goal
to make India self-sufficient has created space for sustainable urban development, the construction of envisaged logistics
parks, and the development of industrial corridors, all of which have contributed to the rising demand for finished steel and
steel as a raw material.

While private industrial capital spending in India has been slow, it is expected to pick up with ongoing supply chain
diversification benefits and investors response to the Government's PLI scheme to boost key manufacturing industries.
Additionally, rising capacity utilisation, robust credit growth and upbeat business sentiment point to an improving outlook for
private investment.

Steel demand in India is expected to grow at about 8% this year to reach 144 million tonnes. However, steel demand will be
slightly subdued in the first half of the year due to slowdown of construction during general elections and the immediate
onset of monsoons. Prices are expected to remain soft in light of cheaper Chinese imports and an absence of policy
intervention. Steel plants are expected to continue capacity additions, although at a slower pace than announced given the
tough operating environment.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES & UPDATES - SEIL
The company has undertaken CAPEX activities to the extent of about Rs. 60 crores towards refurbishment & modernization
of the existing plant & machinery as well as to balance the outputs of the production facilities. This will result in a production
capacity enhancement of finished rebars to 350,000 TPA. A majority of the CAPEX work has been completed, with testing
& commissioning currently underway. The enhanced production is on track to come online in Q3 2024.
Expansion plans have also been prepared to take the annual production capacity of the ISP from 0.35 MTPA to 1.5 MTPA.
The expanded capacity will be by way of Electric Arc Furnaces to produce diversified specialty steel products. NMDC &
RINL have already expressed official support to SEIL for this planned expansion.
Plans are also underway to monetize the land allotted to SEIL at the Bobbili Industrial Estate by setting up a greenfield Wire
Products Complex. RINL have expressed official support to SEIL for this endeavour as well.
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) & CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)- SAFETY,
HEALTH, SUSTAINABILITY
The 60 MW captive power plant includes 16 MW of power generated by Waste Heat Recovery Boilers (WHRB) that use flue
gases from DRI Kilns, boosting energy efficiency, lowering costs, and addressing pollution concerns. Air Cooled Condensers
have been built at the power plant to reduce water usage for cooling purposes, resulting in water consumption reductions of
1000 KL per day. Slag (waste material) produced by the Steel Melt Shop is utilised as a foundational element for road
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construction, and crushed slag is used as a substitute to concrete aggregate and sand. The power plant's fly ash (waste
material) is delivered to local brick production plants.
The Company provided electric buggies to inhabitants in ISP neighbouring villages for smooth mobility. In partnership with
hospitals in Visakhapatnam, the company holds medical camps for the surrounding communities on a regular basis.
Dedicated 24x7 primary care centre at ISP staffed by a full-time doctor and nurses give free supplies of essential medicines
to conduct testing for neighbouring villages. In addition, ISP offers a completely sanitised medical bed ward for isolation and
minimal intervention therapies. The Company has provided a dedicated ambulance at the ISP primary care centre for
patients to be transferred to a full-service medical centre if necessary.
The Company has arranged for water to be delivered to ISP's neighbouring villages by underground pipeline and water
tankers. The Company collaborated in the installation of solar streetlights in adjacent villages. The Company has supported
The Gurudeva Charitable Trust funded the purchase and distribution of artificial limbs and supported tricycles in the
Vizianagaram District. Improved government school infrastructure in collaboration with local Roundtable chapters. During
the COVID-19 pandemic, worked with the district administration to buy and distribute medical supplies to the local population.
During the COVID-19 epidemic, migrant staff and other ISP nearby impacted migrants were given access to food and
shelter.

OPPORTUNITIES
Risks, Concerns and Mitigation Strategies
Geopolitical uncertainty, the macroeconomic outlook, trade barriers, and protectionist trade policies all have an impact on
steel demand. Prolonged inflationary pressures, particularly from disruptions in the energy and commodity supply chains,
may have a negative influence on global demand. Adoption of innovative steel grades and sustainable steel products causes
a shift in client preferences. During this decade, the Indian steel industry is predicted to increase at a rate of 6% to 7%.
However, the steel industry's rising trajectory would present its own set of obstacles. Due to geopolitical developments,
changing trade patterns, and increased emphasis on Environment, Social, and Governance (ESG) elements, the regulatory
framework in the metals and mining business is getting more demanding. Noncompliance with such demanding regulatory
regimes may have an impact on corporate operations and reputation. Steel, an energy-intensive and difficult-to-abate sector,
must transition to low-emission steel, and the government of India may implement taxes and fines to accelerate the ESG
trip.
Risk is an important component in almost all sorts of businesses and must be mitigated. Steel Exchange India Limited
manages risks by properly identifying, estimating, and mitigating them. The Company has implemented adequate risk-
mitigation measures in all business verticals and activities in operations, finance, and human resources by leveraging its in-
depth knowledge of the business acquired over the last 20 years by understanding market trends, competitors, and steel
sector policies and responding accordingly to risk management. However, despite the risk precautions taken by the company,
unanticipated problems such as inflation, liquidity crisis, slower industrial growth, weakening rupee, political instability, and
variable commodity prices are likely to impair industry performance in the future.
With a focused approach, the Company took initiatives in value chain excellence, overall operational excellence, pandemic
& crisis management, throughput maximisation, enriching product mix, customer centricity with diversification of customer
base, sustainable initiatives, employee engagement, synergy & integration, and leveraging IT & digital to sustain the most
critical situation in pandemic times. The Company is prioritising a long-term initiative for sound robust liquidity management
and working capital optimisation with superior planning that takes into account all risk indicators.
Source: Worldsteel Short Range Outlook April 2023, Indian Steel Industry Outlook 2023

ABOUT SEIL
Steel Exchange India Limited (SEIL) is the flagship company of the Vizag Profiles Group. Established in 1999, SEIL is a
leading manufacturer of TMT Rebars under the brand 'SIMHADRI TMT'. The firm is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of
steel products and allied activities at its Integrated Steel Plant located close to Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh. It has the
largest private integrated steel plant in Andhra Pradesh. It manufactures sponge iron, billets, and TMT bars.

TRADING DIVISION
Apart from its manufacturing operations, the corporation also trades a few products to improve its top and bottom line.
Currently, the trading division deals in a wide range of products ranging from finished steel products to supplementary
products such as semis, coal, scrap, and sponge iron. The division has been largely responsible for expanding the company's
marketing and sales base throughout Andhra Pradesh's coastal region. The trading section handles items manufactured by
the Company, RINL (Vizag Steel), and other producers.
The steel trading division reported a turnover of Rs. 97.35 crores crores for the year ended 31st March 2024 compared to Rs
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291.68 crores in the previous year ended 31st March 2023.
STEEL INGOT DIVISION

This division produces ingots from sponge iron and scrap/pig iron. For captive consumption, the unit also includes a power
producing unit that runs on natural gas.
The division reported a turnover of Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 5.80 Cr) during the year.

INTEGRATED STEEL PLANT

The main Integrated Steel Plant (ISP) of the Company located at Sreerampuram Village, L. Kota Mandal, Vizianagaram
District consists of the following units:

1.  Sponge Iron Unit - 2,20,000 TPA
2.  SMS Billet Unit - 2,50,000 TPA
3.  Rolling Unit -2,25,000 TPA
4.  Captive Thermal Power Plant- 60 MW
The total revenue for the period 2023-24 under review from ISP stood at Rs.962.88 crores as against Rs.1056.59 crores in
the previous year 2022-23. The division reported decrease in turnover on year to year compared to previous year and the
company carried out the critical periodic maintenance activities in all the units due to which the production levels were low
in during the year.The total revenue from the sale of surplus Power for the period under review from Power Division stood at
Rs.28.95 crores compared to Rs.35.32 crores in the previous year. The division reported decrease in turnover on year-to-
year basis and the power plant was operated at 56% PLF compared to 54% in the previous year.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024

(Amount in Crores, unless otherwise stated)

 

FY 2023 - 24 FY 2022 - 23 

Total Income 1,093.25 1,393.36 

EBITDA 96.05 99.50 

EBITDA Margin  8.79% 7.14% 

Profit before tax (PBT) 1.27 (28.32) 

Deferred Tax Liability (Asset)  (9.61) 30.53 

Profit after tax (PAT)  10.88 (58.85) 

PAT Margin
 

1.0%
 

NA
 

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

The Company has prepared financial statements which comply with IndAS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2024,
together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, as described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. Primarily, a treatment different from that prescribed in an Accounting Standard has not been
followed in the preparation of financial statements.

However, as regards amendments to certain accounting standards, the applicability / effect on the financial statement has
been evaluated and been treated accordingly as explained in Notes to the Financial Statements.

Further, the financial statements represent a true and fair view of the underlying business transactions.

Reserves and Surplus

For the year ended 31st March 2024, the Reserves and Surplus have increased from Rs. 413.20 crores to Rs. 541.77 crores,
Equity component of compounded financial instruments i.e., Share Warrants [Rs.22.75 Cr], Share Premium [Rs.344.21 Cr]
and reduction of Revaluation Reserves [Rs.208.14 Cr] & Others [Rs. (33.33) Cr].

Secured Loans

Secured loans was Rs.340.15 crores as on March 31, 2024 as compared to Rs.289.13 crores as on March 31, 2023
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Unsecured Loans

Unsecured loans were Rs.0.76 crores as on March 31, 2024 as compared to Rs.41.26 crores as on March 31, 2023.

Fixed Assets

During the year under review, the Fixed Assets, and the total Fixed Assets (net Block) stands at Rs.620.12 crores as against
Rs. 592.16 crores in the previous year.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024

Income

The total income of the company stood at Rs. 1,093.25 Cr for FY 2023-24 against Rs. 1,393.36 Cr for FY 2022-23. During the
year, the total operational revenue of the company was decreased by 21.54 % compared to the previous financial year.

Direct Cost & Other expenses

The Direct Costs comprising of cost of material consumed, changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade & work-
in-progress and purchases of traded goods was to Rs. 878.83 Cr for FY 2023-24 against Rs. 1167.27 Cr for FY 2022-23.

Other expenses comprise of other manufacturing expenses, staff costs, administration and selling & distribution expenses
etc. was Rs. 82.96 crores for FY 2023-24 against Rs. 94.21 crores for FY 2022-23.

During the year, the total expenses of the company were decreased by 12 % compared to the previous financial year.

Interest Cost

For the year under review, the interest and financial charges were Rs. 77.86 Crores representing 7.15 % of the turnover as
against Rs. 105.63 Crores representing 7.61 % of the turnover in the previous year. The decrease in finance cost / interest
cost is on account of Partial Pre-Payment of Principal amount to NCDs and Conversion of CCDs into Equity Shares and
takeover of existing NCD's by Neo & True North with modified terms with reduction of interest%. The company is taking
various initiatives to reduce the financial costs in the coming year to make the company more sustainable in the long run.

Depreciation

The company has provided a sum of Rs. 21.30 crores towards depreciation for the year under review as against Rs. 24.37
crores in the previous year.

Provision for Tax

There was no current tax due to carry forward of business losses and unabsorbed depreciation of previous years which will
be offset against current year profit.

Total Comprehensive income/Loss (Net Profit/Loss)

The operations for FY 2023-24 resulted in a net profit of Rs. 10.88 Cr as against net loss of Rs. 58.85 Cr in FY 2022-23.

Dividend

No Dividend is recommended on the Equity Shares for the year ended 31st March 2024
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Details of significant changes in Key Financial Ratios

Detailed explanation on significant changes (i.e., change of 25% or more as compared to FY23) in the above key
ratios:

# Increase in operational efficiency and decrease in finance cost
## Increase in operational efficiency/margins
### Decrease in current liabilities due to repayment of trade payable and other liabilities and increase current assets
##### Increase in receivables due to market conditions
##### Increase in receivables due to market conditions
###### Increase in operation efficiency and controlled operating expenses
####### Increase in operational efficiency

Human Resource Management, Industrial Relations

The Company regards the quality and commitment of its human resources as its most valuable asset and places a high
priority on training and development of human resources at all levels, as well as providing a pleasant working environment.
The management team is adamant that the company cannot grow until its human resources are fully utilised.

As of March 31, 2024, the total number of employees is 874 including Trainees. The Company maintains a cordial relation-
ship with its employees and cherishes their safety by guaranteeing safe work practises, and the Board of Directors and
Management express their gratitude to all of its employees for their vital contribution to the Company's growth.

Internal Financial Control Systems and Internal Audit

The Company has suitable internal control measures in place that are proportionate to its size and kind of operation.

These internal controls are intended to provide reasonable assurance that all corporate operational and financial processes
are adequate to safeguard and defend against any loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and that all transactions are
properly authorised, documented, and reported.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal control systems on a regular basis and initiates remedial actions where necessary.
The Audit Committee also meets with the Company's Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors to obtain their perspectives on
the adequacy of the Company's internal control systems, and it keeps management informed of its significant findings.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's estimates and expectations may be
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ
materially from those expressed or implied.

 FY 24 2023 - FY 2 2022 - 3 Change in % 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.57 0.58 2%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio #  1.04 0.77 35% 

Interest Service Coverage 
Ratio ##

1.27 0.92 38% 

Current Ratio ### 2.08 1.34 55%

Long Term debt to working 
capital  

1.18 1.52 22% 

Total debts to Total Assets  0.30 0.26 15% 

Debtors Turnover (no. of days) 
####

36 27 33% 

Inventory Turnover (no. of 
days) ##### 

61 43 42%

Operating Profit Margin###### 8% 5% 60% 

Net Profit Margin ####### 1%  -4% 123%

Return on Net worth 13% 14% 7%
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Annexure -1
Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Steel Exchange India Limited,
CIN: L74100TG1999PLC031191
D.NO:1-65/K/60, Plot No:60 Abhis Hiranya,
1st Floor, Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad TG 500081

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by M/s. Steel Exchange India Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of M/s. Steel Exchange India Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. Steel
Exchange India Limited ("the Company") for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.
5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

('SEBI Act')-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,

2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 / Securities  and

Exchange  Board  of  India  (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period;

f. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - Not Applicable as the Company is not registered as
Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under review;

g. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not applicable as the
Company has not delisted from any stock exchange during the financial year under review; and

h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable as the
Company has not bought back its securities during the financial year under review.
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6) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:
i. The Electricity Act, 2003
ii. Indian Boilers Act, 1923
iii. Explosives Act, 1884
iv. National Tariff Policy
v. Mines Act, 1952

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and
(ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below:
• As per Master Circular Dated 21.06.2023 No: SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ PoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2023/ 00094 All the Listed entities shall

make an application for trading approval to the stock exchange/s within 7 working days from the date of grant of listing
approval by the stock exchange/s. However, the company has not made the trading approval application within said date
for the following allotments;
- for the allotment of 9,58,00,000 equity shares as a result of conversion of CCDs.No. of Days Delayed: 166 days.
- for the allotment of 7,58,00,000 equity shares as a result of conversion of CCDs. No. of Days Delayed: 163 days
- for the allotment of 1,30,00,000 equity shares. No. of Days Delayed: 169 days

• As per Master Circular Dated 21.06.2023 No: SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ PoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2023/ 00094 Issuer shall make an
application to the exchange/s for listing in case of further issue of equity shares within  20  days from the date  of
allotment. However, the company has not made the Listing approval application within said date for the allotment of
5,82,21,500 equity shares.

• BSE Limited  Levied  penalty of Rs. 36,580/- as the Financial Results for the quarter/half year ended September 2023,
submitted by the Company to the Exchange does not contain the line Items required to be given as per Regulation 52(4)
of SEBI LODR viz., outstanding redeemable preference shares and capital redemption reserve / debenture redemption
reserve. However, the Company has paid the levied penalty to BSE Limited.

We further report that, on examination of the relevant documents and records and based on the information provided by the
Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of quarterly
compliance reports by respective department heads / Company Secretary / Managing Director taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Company, in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws.
We further report that, the compliances by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, have
not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the internal auditors and other designated
professionals.
We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
We further report that, adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule Board Meetings and its Committees and
agenda with detailed notes were sent to all the directors at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications as may be required on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.
As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous
and there were no dissenting views.
We further report that, during the audit period, there were no specific events/ actions in pursuance of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. having a major bearing on the company's affairs.

For B S S & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
S.Srikanth

Partner
Place: Hyderabad ACS No.: 22119;  C P No.: 7999
Date: 29.08.2024 UDIN: A022119F001055360
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed to the report and forms an integral part of this report.
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To,
The Members,
Steel Exchange India Limited,
CIN: L74100TG1999PLC031191
D.NO:1-65/K/60, Plot No:60 Abhis Hiranya,
1st Floor, Kavuri Hills, Hyderabad TG 500081

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regula-
tions and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsi-
bility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For B S S & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
S.Srikanth

Partner
Place: Hyderabad ACS No.: 22119; C P No.: 7999

Date: 29.08.2024 UDIN: A022119F001055360
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Annexure - 2
Disclosure of particulars of Contracts/Arrangements entered into by the Company

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2024, which
were not at arm's length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

The below material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length entered into during the year ended March
31, 2024.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Steel Exchange India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad B. Satish Kumar
Date: 29.08.2024 Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 00163676)

Name of the related party Vizag Profiles Private Limited SAWP Steel Limited.
Name of the Director or KMP who is 
related, if any

Shri B Suresh Kumar, Shri B Suresh and Shri 
V V Krishna Raoare the common directors in 
SEIL and VPPL 

Mr. Mohit Sai Kumar Bandi, S/o. Mr. Bandi 
Ramesh Kumar, and other relatives of 
directors holding more than 20  percent of 
total shareholding in M/s. SAWP Steel 
Limited 

Nature of relationship Group Company/Common Directors Holding more than 20 percent of 
Shareholding by Director and immediate 
relative of Director. 

Nature of contract s /arrangements / 
transactions

Sale, purchase or supply of goods or 
materials Availing or rendering of services 
and leasing of property 

Sale, purchase or supply of goods or 
materials Availing or rendering of services 
and leasing of property

Duration of the contracts / arrangements 
/ transactions 

--- ---

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 
the value, if any: 

--- ---

Any other information relevant or 
important for the members to take a 
decision on the proposed resolution.

Raw material available with related party in -
house and of desired quality at market price. 

Raw material available with related party in-
house and of desired quality at market price. 

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: --- ---
Amount paid as advances, if any: --- ---
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Annexure-3

The conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to the provi-
sions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

1) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

a. Oil purification machine-for maintaining the Oils quality & thereby conservation of lubricating Oil

b. VFD are installed for molasses pumps in Briquetting machine and weigh feeders of DRI feed system

2) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NA

3) The Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: -N.A.-

a. Installed Variable Frequency Drives (VFD) for pumps in the SMS to save the energy on regulating the valves.

b. Installed Variable frequency drives for Hot Charging System for efficient operation

c. Stoppage of Re-Heating Furnace completely and Re-rolling of Billets completely through Hot-Charging.

d. OMNI Screen was installed in DRI-RMPP coal stream with an investment of 1Cr to reduce the fines generation
by avoiding long distance travel through exiting belt conveyors, which in turn reducing the Power consumption
of Belt conveyors.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: Nil

i. The Efforts made towards technology absorption: Nil

ii.  The Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: Nil

iii. Details of technology imported during the past 3 years:

No technology has been imported during the past 3 years.

a. The details of technology import: Nil

b. The year of import: Nil

c. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Nil

d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof:  -NIL-

iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: -N.A.-

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO:

1) The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during
the year in terms of actual outflows:

       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad B. Satish Kumar
Date: 29.08.2024 Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 00163676)

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Used (Outgo) 3.86 684.40 
Earned Nil  Nil  
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Annexure-4
Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: The CSR Committee has formulated a CSR policy of the Company for
undertaking the activities as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company: https://seil.co.in/governance/policy.

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. (69615908)

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. Nil

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers or activities of the previous financial years: Rs. 5,92,000/-

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:  Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. Nil

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR projects (both ongoing project and other than ongoing project): Rs.56.55 Lakhs

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 56.55 Lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation / Nature 
of Directorship

Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
held during the 
year 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee 
attended during 
the year 

1 Mr. Bandi Suresh Kumar Executive Director 1 1
2 Mr. Ramineni Ramachandra 

Rao 
Independent Director 1 1

3 Mr. Bandi Satish Kumar Managing Director 1 1
 

 
Total Amount Spent for 
the Financial Year. (In 

Lakhs) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as 

per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second 

proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount Amount. Date of 
transfer. 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount. Date of 
transfer. 

56.55 Nil NA NA Nil NA 
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent
in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-section
(5) of section 135: NA

Sd/- Sd/-
B. Satish Kumar Bandi Suresh Kumar
Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN: 00163676 DIN: 00206473
(Chairman CSR Committee)

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company 

as per section 135(5)
0.00

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 56,54,603 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 56,54,603 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programs or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any

(5,92,000)

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 

56,54,603 

 
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years
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Annexure-5

Statement of particulars as per Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel)
Rules, 2014.

*Mr. Bandi Ramesh Kumar (DIN: 00206293) as Whole-Time Director cum Joint Managing Director of the company resigned with
effect from February 08, 2024 due to end of tenure, and there is no other reason for resignation.

**Mr. Shyam Jagetiya (DIN: 02581262) as Nominee Director of the company resigned with effect from April 1, 2024 due to pre-
occupancy, and there is no other reason for resignation.

# Mr. R. Ramachandra Rao, Mr. C. Siva Prasad, Mr.K.Krishna Rao, Mr, Mr. Siva Sagar Rao Yendamuri, Mr. Veera Brahma Rao
Arekapudi, Mr. Shyam Jagetiya, Ms. Sujata Chattopadhyay, Mrs Bhagyam Ramani, and Mr. Nagoji Ram Mohan were paid sitting fees
for attending the Meetings.

There was 16.67% and 14.55% increase in Remuneration paid to B. Suresh Kumar, Joint Managing Director, B Ramesh
Kumar, Joint Managing Director during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is: 7.80%
The number of employees on the rolls of company as on 31.03.2024

There are 874 Employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March 2024.
Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in
the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration.
There are three Whole Time Directors i.e., B. Satish Kumar, Managing Director and B. Suresh Kumar, Joint Managing
Director and B. Mohit Sai Kumar; Whole-Time Director. There was 16.67% and 14.55% increase in Remuneration paid to B.
Suresh Kumar, Joint Managing Director and B Ramesh Kumar, Joint Managing Director during the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024

The Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Steel Exchange India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad B. Satish Kumar
Date: 29.08.2024 Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 00163676)
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Annexure-6
CORPORATE POLICIES OF THE COMPANY

We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in all our business transactions guided by our value system.
The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, mandates the formulation of certain
policies for all listed companies. The corporate governance policies are available on the Company's website, at www.seil.co.in. The
policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and updated as needed. Key Policies ofthe Company are: -

NAME OF THE POLICY BRIEF DESCRIPTION WEBLINK

POLICY ON FAMILIARISATION
PROGRAM FOR INDEPEN-
DENT DIRECTORS

The familiarization program aims to provide insights into the
Company to enable the Independent Directors to understand its
business in depth and contribute significantly to the Company.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

ARCHIVAL POLICY This policy deals with retention and Archivalof corporate records
of the company

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

NOMINATION AND REMU-
NERATION POLICY

This policy formulates the criteria for determining qualifications,
competencies,positive attributes and independence forthe
appointment of a director (executive/ non-executive) and also the
criteriafor determining the remuneration of thedirectors,KMP,
senior management andother employees.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION POLICY

This policy formulates the criteria forconducting its affairs in a fair
and transparent manner by adopting the highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior of the
Board of Directors.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

CORPORAE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The policy outlines the Company'sstrategy to bring about a
positiveimpacton society throughprograms relating
tohunger,poverty, education, healthcare,environment, etc.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

INSIDER TRADING POLICY This policy formulates the criteria for trading of Equity shares of
the company by Insiders of the company from time to time as per
SEBI PIT Regulations.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION POLICY

The policy regulates alltransactionsbetween theCompany and
its relatedparties during the course of business transactions
between them.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

WHISTLEBLOWER
POLICY - VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted VigilMechanism for Directors and
Employees of the Company to report genuine concerns.The vigil
mechanism provides for adequatesafeguard against the
victimization of Directors and employees and also provide direct
access to the nodal officers of the Company

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

PRESERVATION OF
DOCUMENTS POLICY

The Company has adopted this Policyfor Preservation of
Documents, as required under applicable regulations.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

POLICY ON DISCLOSURE OF
MATERIAL EVENTS /
INFORMATION

This policy applies to disclosure of materialevent affecting
thecompany and itssubsidiaries.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

CODE OF PRACTICES AND
PROCEDURES FOR FAIR
DISCLOSURES

The policy regulates all Codes, Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosures.

https://seil.co.in/governance/policy

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
POLICY

The Policy applies to dividends of the Company. https://seil.co.in/governance/policy
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 c
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 t
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 c
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b
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 t
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 C
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w
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r 
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w
el

l-
b

ei
n

g
 o
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n
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2.
 D

et
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f 
re
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b
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it
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 f
o

r 
C

u
rr

en
t 

F
Y

 a
n

d
 P

re
v

io
u

s 
F

in
an

ci
al

 Y
ea

r:

3.
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty
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f 
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o

rk
p
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ce

s:
 A

re
 t

h
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p
re

m
is
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 o
ff
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f 
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e 

en
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cc
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si
b

le
 t

o
 d

if
fe
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 e
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ye
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n
d
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rk
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s 
p
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h
e
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q

u
ir

em
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f 
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e 
R

ig
h
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f 
P

er
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n
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w
it

h
 D

is
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ili
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 A

ct
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01
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 If
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 w
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et
h
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n
y 
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b
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n

g
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en

 b
y 
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en
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h
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eg
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d
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C
ur

re
nt
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, t
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 c

om
pa

ny
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t h

av
e 

an
y 
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nt
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bl
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m

pl
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ee
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ev
er
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e 
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e 
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nd
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m
e 
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m
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en
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e
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re
. T
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 C
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pa
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, i
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lu
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ng
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pr

em
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es
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e 
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w
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s 
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d 
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ra
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r 

st
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e 
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e
m
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f d
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en
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al
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 C
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 p
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m
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 b

ee
n 

m
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e 
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 fr
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.
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D
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 t
h

e 
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ti
ty
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e 
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q

u
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p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
p

o
lic

y 
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 p
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e 

R
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h
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f 

P
er

so
n
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w

it
h

 D
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01

6?
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o
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a 

w
eb
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 c
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 c
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r d
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 b
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 D
is
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01
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at
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 o
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p
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lo
ye
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n
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p
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S
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b
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lo
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 w
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rk
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 p
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6.
Is

 t
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er
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an
is

m
 a

v
ai

la
b

le
 t
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 r
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v
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d

 r
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re
ss

 g
ri

ev
an
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r 

th
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fo
llo

w
in

g
 c

at
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o
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lo

ye
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rk

er
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 I
f 

ye
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e
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et
ai
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f 
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e 
m
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 b
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ef
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M

em
b
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ye
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o
rk
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at
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o
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U

n
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g
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 b
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8.
D

et
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f 
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g

 g
iv

en
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 a

n
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 w
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rk
er

s:
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D

et
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 c
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10
.
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f 

sa
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ed
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in

 t
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 f
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ke
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 b
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 t
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.

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
y 

w
or

kp
la

ce
, d

ai
ly

 s
af

et
y 

ta
lk

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

st
ar

t o
f t

he
 r

ou
tin

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 c
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 c
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ed
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at
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 W
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14
.

A
ss
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en
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P
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v
id

e 
d

et
ai
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 o

f a
n
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rr
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ti
v

e 
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n
 ta
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n
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er
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d
d
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et
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te
d

 in
ci

d
en

ts
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f a
n
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 a

n
d
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n

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t r
is

ks
 / 

co
n

ce
rn

s
ar

is
in

g
 fr

o
m
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ss

es
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en
ts
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ea
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h
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et
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n
d
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rk
in
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o
n

d
it

io
n
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W
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be
lie

ve
 th

at
 S

af
et

y 
&

 H
ea

lth
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f t
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kf
or

ce
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 fu
nd
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en

ta
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o 
th

e 
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ea
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n 
of
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us

ta
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ed
 b

us
in

es
s 

va
lu

e.
 T

he
 B

oa
rd
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as

 a
n 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
n 

he
al

th
 a

nd
sa

fe
ty

 in
iti

at
iv

es
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E
IL
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to

 b
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om
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xt
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af

e 
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et
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R
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 r
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 b
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1.
D
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e 
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e 

p
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es
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o
r 
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en
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 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
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u

p
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ti

ty
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l s
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se
d 
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e 
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n 

pr
ov

id
ed
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 th

e 
va

lu
e 
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ai

n 
an

d 
re
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an

iz
at
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m
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ey
 c
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ie
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In
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st
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s
-

S
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ho

ld
er

s
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E
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C
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m
er

s
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C
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m
un
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an

iz
at
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S
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ie
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C
on
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 o
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 a
nd

 s
er
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D
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 d
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le
rs

-
G
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 c
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n
d
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o
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w

h
o

 h
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b
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n
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ro

v
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ed
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ra
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n
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u
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an
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h
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n
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 p
o

lic
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e 

en
ti

ty
, i

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 f

o
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 p
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3.
D
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ed
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 r
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 K
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P

s 
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C

S
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nd
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F
O

.

b
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 p
ai

d
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o
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w
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 p
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l p
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o
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b
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of
STEEL EXCHANGE INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s.Steel Exchange India Limited ("the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of  significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone
financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and
except the effect of  matter referred to in Basis for qualified opinion give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for  Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.
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S.No Key Audit matter

1. Conversion of converatable equity warrants to Equity shares

During the year, the Company has converted  5,82,21,500 convertible equity shares warrants  issued to Umashiv
garments  private limited to equity shares upon receipt of balance 75% payment for warrants . The company
issued 5,82,21,500  equity shares of FV Rs 1/each at a premium of Rs 6.25/shares to Umashiv garments
private limited.

This presents a significant audit matter due to the complexity of the transaction and the materiality of the
balances involved.

Auditor's Response

Principal Audit Procedure

Our audit procedures includes the following:

• Examined the terms and conditions of the share warrants  to ensure that the conversion process adheres
to the provisions outlined in the relevant agreements and applicable accounting standards.

• Examined the relevant supporting documentation, such as board resolutions, shareholders' resolutions,
share issuance documents, and any other relevant contracts or agreements. This helps ensure that the
conversion process has been authorized and executed appropriately.

• Confirmed the receipt of consideration for the issuance of shares warrants through examination of bank
statements, cash receipts, or other relevant financial records.

• Determined the appropriateness of the disclosures in the financial statement in respect of the conversion.

2 Issue of share warrants

During the year ,the company has issued 8,27,27,272  convertible equity  warrants of  face value Re 1/-(rupees
one only) each, at an issue price of Re 11/- per warrant( including a premium of Re 10 per warrant ) for an
aggregate consideration of Re 90,99,99,992 by way of preferential allotment  to the parties as mentioned in
below table.

S. No. Name of the company No.of Warrants

1 KGR RESOURCES LLP 1,81,81,818

2 KOLLURI IMPEX PRIVATE LIMITED 1,81,81,818

3 NEO SPECIAL CREDIT OPPERTUNITIES FUND 1,32,23,636

4 SAHI TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED 1,00,00,000

5 SHAKTHI INTERNATIONAL LLP 1,81,81,818

6 TRUE NORTH CREDIT OPPERTUNITIES FUND 49,58,182

The company has received 25% i.e., Re 22,75,00,000 on 30.01.2024 upon allotment of Convertible equity
warrants .

Issue of convertible Equity warrants draw  attention due to its potential impact on the company's financial
position and shareholder equity. Share warrants are financial instruments that entitle the holder to subscribe
to the company's shares at a predetermined price within a specified period.
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Audit Procedures:

• Obtained and reviewed  the issuance of shares warrants  focusing on the terms and conditions, exercise
price, expiration date, and any other relevant provisions

• Obtained valuation report from company secretary to assess the fair value of the shares warrants issued,
ensuring compliance with relevant accounting standards Evaluate the valuation methodology, assumptions,
and inputs used in determining the fair value.

• Confirmed the receipt of consideration for the issuance of shares warrants through examination of bank
statements, cash receipts, or other relevant financial records.

• Assessed the potential dilution effect of the issuance of shares warrants on existing shareholders' equity
interests. Consider the impact on earnings per share (EPS) and other key financial metrics.

• Determined the appropriateness of the disclosures in the financial statement in respect of the conversion.

3. Issue of equity shares on preferential allotment

During the year , the company has made an preferential allotment of 1,30,00,000 and 1,10,00,000 equity shares
to Dhatree Udyog Limited and Money Seed respectively, at rates of Re 15.75 and Re 16.6 per share (including
premiums of Re 14.75 and Re 15.6 respectively), represents a significant transaction due to its materiality and
potential impact on the financial statements of the company. This transaction warrants special audit attention
due to its complexities in valuation, compliance, and financial statement presentation.

• Obtained  and reviewed the board resolutions, shareholders' approvals, and legal agreements related to
the preferential allotment of equity shares to Dhatree Udyog Limited and Money Seed. Ensure compliance
with the Companies Act, SEBI regulations, and other applicable laws.

• Obtained valuation report from company secretary  to assess the fair value of the equity shares issued on
preferential allotment basis

• Confirmed  the receipt of consideration for the preferential allotment of equity shares from Dhatree Udyog
Limited and Money Seed. Verify the adequacy of funds transferred through bank statements, cash receipts,
or other financial records

• Verified  the share register to ensure accurate recording of the allotment of equity shares to Dhatree
Udyog Limited and Money Seed, including details such as the number of shares allotted, date of allotment,
and consideration received.

• Reviewed  the adequacy of disclosure in the financial statements regarding the preferential allotment of
equity shares, including details of the parties involved, number of shares allotted, issue price, premium,
and any other relevant information. Ensure compliance with applicable accounting standards and regulatory
requirements.

4. Evaluation of uncertain tax positions

The Company has material uncertain tax positions including matters under dispute which involves significant
judgment to determine the possible outcome of these disputes.

Refer note no  3.28 to the Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor's Response

Principal audit procedure

Obtained details of completed tax assessments and demands for the year ended March 31, 2024 from
management . Discussed with the management's underlying assumptions in estimating the tax provision and
the possible outcome of the disputes. Additionally, we considered the effect of new information in respect of
uncertain tax positions as at March 31, 2024 to evaluate whether any change was required to management's
position on these uncertainties.
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5. Recoverability of Indirect tax receivables and other receivables

1. As at March 31, 2024, other non current assets include Indirect tax balance receivable amounting to Rs
1710.37 lakhs and other receivables Rs 467.80 lakhs  out of which amount of Rs 796.93 lakhs and Rs 467.74
lakhs in indirect tax balances and other receivables respectively  are pending adjudication

Refer Note 3.2 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Auditor's Response

Principal audit procedure

We have verified the relavent documents and records, the sustainability and likelihood of recoverability upon final
resolution.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,2013  with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India including The Indian Accounting Standard specified
under sec.133 of the act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
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will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

We also

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may
be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that :

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements.(Refer Note: 3.28 ).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material  foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
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Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government in terms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

For BHAVANI &Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:012139S

Place : Hyderabad (CA S KAVITHA PADMINI)
Date : 03-05-2024 PARTNER

 M.No : 229966
UDIN: 24229966BKBLVX1527
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(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the
Members of Steel Exchange india Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Steel Exchange India limited ("the Company")
as of March 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial control system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For BHAVANI &Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:012139S

Place : Hyderabad (CA S KAVITHA PADMINI)
Date : 03-05-2024 PARTNER

 M.No : 229966
UDIN: 24229966BKBLVX1527
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"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

RReferred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our report of even date
to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.
(B) The Company does not have intangible assets, hence order I (a)(B) not applicable.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment to cover all the assets
once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification
during the year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on which building is
constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title in
respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed
in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company
as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment assets during the year.
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for

holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records which has been properly dealt
with in the books of account were immaterial.

(b) During the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or
other parties covered in the Register maintained under   Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (C)
of the Order are not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and
security.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

vi. As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company. We have broadly reviewed the Cost
Records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Company's (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by
the Central Government and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been maintained.

vii.  (a)     According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by us, the
company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employee State Insurance,
Income tax, sales tax, customs duty, goods and service tax and any other statutory dues as applicable with
appropriate authorities. There were no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on last day of the financial year
concerned for a period of more than six months from the date on which they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the following dues of the   service tax, customs duty,
excise duty , value added tax , GST , Central sales tax, Cess and other statutory dues which have not been
deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961),

ix. (a) According to the records of the company examined by us,the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institutions or banks as on at the
balance sheet date.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial     institution or government or any
government authority.

(c) The Company has taken term loan during the year and have applied for the purpose it was obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have,
prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not  made any  preferential allotment or private placement of shares and  convertible debentures
(fully convertible) during the year and  accordingly order under x(b) is not applicable.
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xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto
the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations to us and based on our examination of the records of the company
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,2013 where applicable
and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and
till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons
connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company

xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. (b) In our opinion, there is no core
investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii.There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

For BHAVANI &Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:012139S

Place : Hyderabad (CA S KAVITHA PADMINI)
Date : 03-05-2024 PARTNER

 M.No : 229966
UDIN: 24229966BKBLVX1527
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

 I. ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3.1  56,991.70  57,916.82
b) Capital work-in-progress 3.1.1  5,019.87  1,299.19
c) Other non-current assets 3.2  5,110.96  4,069.46
d) Deferred tax Asset (net) 3.3  4,963.98  4,002.54
Total non-current assets  72,086.52  67,288.00
Current assets
a) Inventories 3.4  29,554.85  28,179.83
b) Financial assets

i) Trade receivables 3.5   17,457.46  11,243.64
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 3.6.1  914.30  1,129.14
iii) Other bank balances 3.6.2  1,093.48  809.64
iv) Other financial assets 3.7   3,590.57  2,312.33

c) Other current assets 3.8   2,111.97  2,233.50
   54,722.62  45,908.08

Total assets    1,26,809.14  1,13,196.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 3.9   11,976.33  10,396.12
b) Other equity 3.10   54,177.13  41,320.35

Total equity     66,153.46  51,716.47
Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities

i) Borrowings 3.11   34,054.73  22,874.99
b) Provisions 3.12   290.64  237.76
Total non-current Liabilities   34,345.37  23,112.76
Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities

i) Short term Borrowings 3.13   4,194.77  11,164.68
ii) Trade payables 3.14   12,564.08  14,328.84
iii) Other financial liabilities 3.15   5,699.26  4,229.79

b) Other current liabilities 3.16   3,839.29  8,631.99
c) Provisions 3.12  12.91  11.56

 26,310.30  38,366.85

Total equity and liabilities   1,26,809.14  1,13,196.08

UDIN: 24229966BKBLVX1527
Place: Visakhapatnam
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 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

I  Revenue from operations 3.17  1,08,917.09  1,38,832.81
II  Other Income 3.18   408.65  503.50
III Total Income (I+II)  1,09,325.74  1,39,336.31
IV Expenses :

Cost of materials consumed 3.19   77,729.18  90,098.70
Purchase of Traded goods 3.20   10,703.86  30,271.08
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 3.21   (550.39)  (3,642.94)
Employee benefit expenses 3.22   3,541.18  3,238.85
Finance costs 3.23   7,786.97  10,563.68
Depreciation 3.1   2,130.71  2,437.47
Other expenses 3.24.1   8,296.03  9,420.77
Impairment allowance for doubtful debts and
other receivables 3.24.2  (438.96)  (218.95)
Total Expenses (IV)     1,09,198.60  1,42,168.66

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  127.14  (2,832.35)
VI Add: Exceptional Items  - -
VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)     127.14  (2,832.35)
VIII Tax expense:

(1) Current Tax  -  -
(2) Deferred Tax 3.25    961.45  (3,052.75)

IX Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII-VIII)   1,088.59  (5,885.11)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 3.32.1(E)    (28.53)  2.81

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
     reclassified to proft or loss    8.90  (0.88)

X Total Other comprehensive income for the Year (Net of Tax)  (19.63)  1.93

XI Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the Year (IX+X)   1,068.96  (5,883.17)
XII Earnings per equity share:

(1) Basic   3.32.4   0.09  (0.71)
(2) Diluted  0.09  (0.71)

 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

UDIN: 24229966BKBLVX1527

Place: Visakhapatnam
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   ` in Lakhs

 A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/(Loss) before tax after exceptional item as per
the statement of profit and loss for the year   127.14 (2,832.35)
Adjustment for non cash/ non operational expenses:
a) Depreciation and impairment of property,plant and equipment   2,130.71 2,437.47
b) Finance costs recognised in profit or loss   7,786.97 10,563.68
c) Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property,plant and equipment   (0.38) (8.58)
d) Provision for doubtful debt  (438.96) (218.95)
Operating profit before working capital changes    9,605.49 9,941.28
Adjustments for working capital changes:
a) Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables  (5,774.86) (1,823.02)
b) Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (1,375.02) (4,440.40)
c)(Increase)/Decrease in Other non Current Assets  (843.42) (32.33)
d)(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets  (1,278.24) 1,168.29
e)(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  130.43 (123.43)
f)(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred revenue  (198.09) 282.21
g) Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables  (1,765.76) 6,252.18
h) Increase/ (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities  1,469.46 (688.85)
i) Increase/ (Decrease) in Other current liabilities  (4,791.34) 3,186.43
j) Increase/ (Decrease) in Other non current liabilities  24.35 45.56

Cash generated from operations      (4,796.98) 13,767.92
 Less: Income taxes paid  - -
 Net Cash Flow from operating activities    (4,796.98) 13,767.92

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
 a)  Payments for property, plant and equipment  (1,211.61) (980.89)
b)  Proceeds from disposal of  property, plant and equipment  6.40 236.72
c) (Increase)/Decrease in Capital Work in Progress  (3,720.68) (620.42)
 Net Cash Flow from investing activities (4,925.89) (1,364.59)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
a) Proceeds from Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
     (CCD's) including Equity component of financial liability   (5,495.50) (11,513.00)
b) Increase in Hire Purchase Loans  (9.52) 48.73
c)Increase in short term borrowings  (217.84) 12.75
d) Proceeds/ (Repayment) of other borrowings  10,000.00 -
d) Proceeds/ (Repayment) of other borrowings  (1,520.75) (1,520.75)
e) Increase/(Decrease) in Unsecured Loans  12.66 23.94
f) Payment of Finance costs  (7,786.97) (10,563.68)
g) Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares  1,580.22 1,588.00
h) Proceeds from Security Premium Reserve  12,009.84 9,925.00
i) Proceeds from Share warrants  2,275.00 -
j) Conversion of Share warrants  (1,055.27)
Net Cash Flow from financing activities   9,791.87 (11,999.01)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)  69.00 404.31
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,938.78 1,534.47
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,007.78 1,938.78

   ` in Lakhs

 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

UDIN: 24229966BKBLVX1527

Place: Visakhapatnam
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

1. Corporate information

Steel Exchange India Limited was incorporated on 24th February 1999. The activities of the company are manufacture
of steel products, trading of related products and generation and sale of Power.

The Company is a Public Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at
Hyderabad, Telangana, India. The company has its listing on the BSE and NSE Limited.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation and Presentation

(a) Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

As the operating cycle has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities
have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out
in Ind AS-1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use.

(b) Functional and presentation currency

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the
nearest lakhs except otherwise stated.

(c) Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.2.1 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

2.2.2 Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost applied on transition
to Ind AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognised, if required immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying
amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.2.3 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from
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the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are
immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where
appropriate, a shorter period

(a) Non-derivative financial assets

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if such financial assets are
held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and to sell such financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income are
carried at fair value through profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents - Which includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value and have original maturities of less than one year. These balances with banks are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage.

Other bank balances - Which includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal
and usage.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and
demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered
part of the Company's cash management system.

(b) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value through profit and loss
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account. Any transaction costs and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of
the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

          Compound financial instrument

• The component parts of compound instruments (compulsory convertible debentures) issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

• A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments is an equity instrument. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished
upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date. The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, and is not subsequently re measured.

• In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible instrument, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in statement of
profit and loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

2.2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Recognition and measurement: Normally Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset.

 Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as per the
schedule II of the Companies Act.2013. Leasehold improvements are written off over the lower of the remaining primary
period of lease or the life of the asset.

The useful life of the assets adopted by the company is as per schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 as follows:

Building 60 years

Factory Buildings 30 years

Plant and Machinery and Others 15 years

Plant and Machinery (Power Generation) 40 years

Plant and Machinery (Rolling Mill) 20 years

Office equipment 05 years

Computer equipment 03 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Electrical Installations 10 years

Vehicles (Other than two wheelers) 08 years

Vehicles 10 years

Roads (carpeted-other than RCC) 05 years

Roads (Non-carpeted) 03 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets.
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Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Repairs & maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss when incurred.

Upon sale or retirement of assets, the Cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial
statements and the resultant gain or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.2.5 Capital work-in progress:

The items of property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for use are disclosed as capital work in progress and
carried at historical cost.

2.2.6 Leases:

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are
classified as operating leases.

Where the Company is the lessee

"Effective April 1, 2019, Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for all lease with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of a low
value.

As the company is engaged in short term lease contracts, new INDAS 116 has not been adopted.

Where the Company is the Lessor

Assets subject to operating Leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognized in the Statement of profit and
loss. Costs including depreciation are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

2.2.7 Inventory:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
by First in First out (FIFO) method.

2.2.8 Impairment:

(a) Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss.

(i) The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss  allowance on trade receivable.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

(ii) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected
life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
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cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.

(iii) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial
asset or a group of non-financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
amount of impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and recoverable amount.
Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers
that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount
of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit").

2.2.9  Employee benefits:

(a) Gratuity & Provident Fund:

(i) Gratuity payable to eligible employees is administered by a separate Trust. Payments to the trust
towards contributions and other demands are made on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("the Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary
and the tenure of employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent
actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of the defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset
or liability. Gains and losses through re measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are
recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other comprehensive income.
The effects of any plan amendments are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Fixed contributions to Provident Fund are recognized in the accounts at actual cost to the Company.

(b) Other Benefits:

Other employee benefits are estimated and accounted as per the company's  policy and the terms of the
employment contract.
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2.2.10Provisions:

All the provisions are recognized as per Ind AS 37. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.2.11 Revenue recognition:

 The Company derives revenues primarily from business of Iron & Steel and power.

Sale of products

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to the customer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is
no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. The timing of the transfer of risks and
rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales agreement.

An Entity's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the entity has transferred to a customer
when that right is conditioned on something other than passage of time is treated as contract asset.

An entity's obligation to transfer goods or service to a customer for which the entity has received consideration
(or the amount is due) from the customer is treated as contract liability.

The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue
based on performance obligation that corresponds to the progress by the customer towards earning the discount
/ incentive. If it is probable that the criteria for the discount will not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot be
estimated reliably, then the discount is not recognized until the payment is probable and the amount can be
estimated reliably. The Company recognizes changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts in
the period in which the change occurs.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the
goods/services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling
price. Goods/ services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those
that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional Goods/ services
are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new
contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Sale of power

Revenue from sale of power is recognised when the services are provided to the customer based on approved
tariff rates established by the respective regulatory authorities. The Company doesn't recognise revenue and an
asset for cost incurred in the past that will be recovered.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

Disaggregate revenue information

Revenue from Operations presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended
March 31, 2024 by type of goods or services. Refer table in note no.3.17

The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Trade receivables and contract balances
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The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as a receivable.

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue for time-and-
material contracts are recognized as related control in goods is transferred and services are performed.

Trade receivable is presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to
be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to
recognize these amounts in revenue.

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance
obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on
time-and-material basis.

Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including
terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, and adjustment for revenue that has not
materialized and adjustments for currency.

The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind AS 18, Revenue instead of Ind AS 115, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers on the financials results of the Company for the year ended and as at March 31, 2024
is insignificant.

2.2.12Finance income and expense

ä Finance income consists of interest income on deposits, Lease rental income, un realized gain on mutual fund
and other miscellaneous income. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss.

ä Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

ä Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

2.2.13 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(a) Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act 1961, introduced by Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019
gives a one-time irreversible option to Domestic Companies for payment of corporate tax at reduced rates. In
view of the unabsorbed depreciation and MAT Credits, the Company has determined that it will continue to
recognize tax expense at the existing income tax rate as applicable to the Company.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
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losses can be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. The
carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

2.2.14Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted
as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each year presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

2.2.15Foreign Currency Transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are reported at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the year, as so far as they
relate to the acquisition of the depreciable capital asset is dealt with in the profit and loss statements.

2.2.16Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which it occurs.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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Note-3.2: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Capital Advances  713.68  121.22
Security Deposits  840.38  784.72
Other Receivables  467.80  469.72
Indirect Tax Balances  1,710.37  1,513.15
Deferred Revenue expenditure  1,378.74  1,180.65
Total :  5,110.96  4,069.46

Note-3.3: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
At the start of the year   4,002.54  7,055.29
Charge/(credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer note:3.25)   961.45  (3,052.75)
Total:  4,963.98  4,002.54

Components of Deferred tax liabilities/ (asset):
Deferred tax liabilities/(asset) in relation to:  Opening  Movement  Closing
Property, plant and equipment  (8,391.45)  111.63  (8,279.82)
Financial Assets  (28.39)  (3.91)  (32.30)
Provisions  (968.59)  95.99  (872.60)
Tax Losses/credits  13,390.97  757.73  14,148.70
Total :  4,002.54  961.45  4,963.98

Note-3.4: INVENTORIES
Raw Material  21,795.92  21,211.97
Finished Goods  6,436.66  5,886.28
Consumables  935.38  606.06
Stores & Spares  386.88  475.53
Total :  29,554.85  28,179.83

Disclosure:
The above inventories includes ̀ .6,782.15 (`.9,902.12) which are expected to be consumed / recovered beyond a period of
12 months.

 ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 As at 31/03/2024  As at 31/03/2023

Note-3.5: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables considered good- Unsecured   17,953.35  12,178.49
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss    495.89  934.85
Total :  17,457.46  11,243.64

Disclosures:
(*) Trade receivables includes dues from  companies where directors are interested  2,015.82  1,263.99

Note-3.6: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents

a) Balances with banks - In Current Accounts  899.55  1,115.14

b) Cash on Hand  14.75  14.00

Total (i) :  914.30  1,129.14
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` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 As at 31/03/2024  As at 31/03/2023

Disclosures:

Cash and Cash equivalents as of Mar 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023  includes restricted cash balances of  `.1,093.48 and
`. 809.64 respectively. The restriction is primarily on account of Cash and Bank balances held as margin money deposits
against Letter of Credits and Bank guarantees sanctioned by banks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents includes deposits maintained by the Company with banks, which can be withdrawn by the
Company at any point of time without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

Note-3.7: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

*Advances For Purchases & Works  3,455.58  2,141.47

Advance for expenses  108.55  95.57

Other Advances  26.44  75.29

Total :  3,590.57  2,312.33

Disclosure:

(*) Advance for purchases & works includes dues from companies   7.49  107.86

where directors are interested

Note-3.8: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source  120.08  239.30

MAT Credit Entitlement  1,539.73  1,539.73

State Govt incentives receivable (Sales Tax)  366.40  366.40

Prepaid Expenses  85.76  88.06

Total :  2,111.97  2,233.50
Disclosures:

The Company has made provision for tax in the earlier years on basis of provision U/s. 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The same is taken into books as it can be adjusted against normal tax liability during the specified period. In accordance
with  the guidance note  issued by ICAI,  the company will review  the same at each balance sheet date and write down the
carrying amount of MAT Credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company
will pay normal Income tax during the specified period.

(2) Other Bank Balances

a) In deposit accounts - Held as Margin Money  1,093.48  809.64

    Total (ii):  1,093.48  809.64

    Total (iii) (i+ii):  2,007.78  1,938.78
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Note-3.9: SHARE CAPITAL

Equity share capital
(i) Authorized

Equity shares, of  ̀ .1 par value 258,00,00,000 equity shares 25,800.00  25,800.00
Preference shares of  ̀ .10 par value 7,40,00,000 preference shares  7,400.00  7,400.00
Total :  33,200.00  33,200.00

(ii) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of `.1 par value 119,76,33,270 equity shares  10,396.12  8,808.12
Equity shares of `.1 par value 15,88,00,000 equity shares  -  1,588.00
Equity shares of `.1 par value 15,80,21,500 equity shares  1,580.22  -
Total :  11,976.33  10,396.12

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 As at 31/03/2024  As at 31/03/2023

Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ̀ .1 per share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case
of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

During the year, 75,80,000  Unsecured 12% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD's) heldy by Vizag Profiles Privated
Limited were converted into 7,58,00,000 equity shares of `.1/- each at `. 7.25/- per share (inclusive of share premium of
`. 6.25/-) in May-23

During the year 2023-24, the Company has allotted 1,30,00,000 equity shares having a par value of  `.1/-  per share with
share premium of ̀ .14.75/- per share to Dhatre Udyog Limited in May-23.

During the year 2023-24, the 5,82,21,500 Share Warrants held by  Umashiv Garments Private Limited were converted into
equity shares of `.1/- each at  `.7.25/- per share (inclusive of share premium of `.6.25/-) in May-23.

During the year 2023-24, the Company has allotted 1,10,00,000 equity shares having a par value of  `.1/-  per share with
share premium of ̀ .15.60/- per share to Money Seeds in March-24.
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Note-3.9.1: Share holding of Promoters:

Shares held by promoters as on 31st March, 2024

No. Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change
during the Year

Promoters:

1  Bandi Satish Kumar  64,59,440  0.54  (0.08)

2  Bandi Ramesh Kumar  1,60,14,690  1.34  (0.20)

3  Bandi Suresh Kumar  4,11,40,520  3.44  (0.52)

4  Bavineni Suresh  2,42,04,010  2.02  (0.31)

5  Veeramachaneni Venkata Krishna Rao  64,37,360  0.54  (0.08)

 Promoters Group:

6  Bavineni Jyothi Kiran  1,12,79,640  0.94  (0.14)

7  V Rajya Lakshmi  34,09,080  0.28  (0.05)

8  Veeramachaneni Srijan Babu  11,48,860  0.10  (0.01)

9  Bandi Jaya Padmavathi  1,32,56,460  1.11  (0.17)

10  Bavineni Lavanya  49,11,460  0.41  (0.06)

11  Rajesh Bavineni  77,53,360  0.65  (0.10)

12  Sudha B  80,000  0.01  Nil

13  Bandi Suguna  43,31,500  0.36  (0.06)

14  Bandi Arunakanthi  21,79,000  0.18  (0.03)

15  Umashiv Garments Private Ltd  26,61,12,650  22.22  2.22

16  Vizag Profiles Private Limited  25,48,77,520  21.28  4.05

 Total Promoters:  66,35,95,550  55.41  4.46

 Total Public:  53,40,37,720  44.59

 Grand Total:  1,19,76,33,270  100.00
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Note-3.11: BORROWINGS

Non-current:

Secured

21.5% Non Convertible Debentures  -  22,826.27

18.75% Non Convertible Debentures  34,015.52  -

Unsecured

 - Vehicle Hire Purchase Loans  39.21  48.73

Total (i):  34,054.73  22,874.99

Current:

Secured

21.5% Non Convertible Debentures  -  6,087.00

18.75% Non Convertible Debentures  3,376.00  -

Unsecured

12% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures*  -  4,053.74

 - Vehicle Hire Purchase Loans  36.60  23.94

Total (ii):  3,412.60  10,164.68

Total (iii) (i+ii):  37,467.33  33,039.68

Disclosure:

*Includes dues to companies where directors are interested
(Term Loan from others under unsecured)   -  4,053.74

Details of terms of repayment for long-term borrowings and security provided in respect there of:

Nature of Security

a. 3,828, 21.50% Listed, rated, redeemable, secured, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of `.10,00,000 each (issue
price)  earlier held by Edelweiss amounting to ̀ .273.91 Crs, having a reduced face value of ̀ .7,15,557 each were taken
over by Neo Special Credit Opportunities Fund and True North Credit Opportunities Fund-I on 30.10.2023 with modified
terms including reduction in interest rate to 18.75 %.

b. 1,000-18.75% Unlisted, unrated,secured, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of `.10,00,000 each issued to Neo
Market Services Pvt Ltd of ̀ .100.00 Crs.as on 30.11.2023.

(i) Second charge on present and future current assets of the Company (First charge being with Kotak Mahindra
Bank Ltd as Working Capital Lender)

(ii) Exclusive charge on all land assets, manufcturing plants and buildings and other fixed assets of the Company.

(iii) Exclusive charge on any other asset currently mortgaged/hypothecated with the Existing Lenders of the Company.

(iv) 100% Pledge of promoter shared of the Company at all points in time from promoter shareholders of the Company
at all points in time from promoter shareholders.

(v) Personal Guarantee of Mr.Bandi Satish Kumar, Mr.Bandi Suresh Kumar and Mr. Bandi Ramesh Kumar.

(vi) Corporate Guarantee of Vizag Profiles Private Limited and Umashiv Garments Private Limited.
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Neo Special Credit Opportunities Fund outstanding as on 31.03.2024
of ̀ .19,921.11 (Previous year: ̀ .Nil)

True North Credit Opportunities Fund-I outstanding as on 31.03.2024
of ̀ .7,470.42 (Previous year: ̀ .Nil)

Neo Market Services Pvt Ltd and others outstanding as on
31.03.2024 of ̀ .10,000.00 (Previous year: ̀ .Nil)

The terms of repayment of NCD'S and CCD'S are stated below As at March 31, 2024

Financer Terms of repayment

1. Repayable in 14 quarterly installments com-
mencing from December, 2024. Last installment
due in March 2028. Rate of interest 18.75% p.a.
as at year end.

2. Repayable in 14 quarterly installments commenc-
ing from December, 2024. Last installment due in
March 2028. Rate of interest 18.75% p.a. as at year
end.

3. Repayable in 14 quarterly installments commenc-
ing from December, 2024. Last installment due in
March 2028. Rate of interest 18.75% p.a. as at year
end.

Non Convertible Debentures (NCD's):

Maturity profile of Hire Purchase Loans as on 31st March, 2024

Borrowings   Principal Repayable in

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  Above 3 Years

Hire Purchase Loans        39.21  36.60  -

Installments falling due in respect of all the above Loans for a period of 12 months have been grouped under “Current
maturities of long-term debt” (Refer Note 3.13)
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Note-3.12:  PROVISIONS

Employee Benefits: (Non-Currrent)

Provision for Gratuity and others  290.64  237.76

Total (i):  290.64  237.76

Employee Benefits: (Current)

Provision for Gratuity and others  12.91  11.56

Total (ii):  12.91  11.56

Total (iii) (i+ii):  303.56  249.32

 ` in Lakhs  ` in Lakhs
 As at 31/03/2024  As at 31/03/2023

Note-3.13: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Working Capital from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.  782.16  1,000.00

Current maturities of long-term debt (Note:3.11)  3,412.60  10,164.68

Total :  4,194.77  11,164.68

Disclosure:

Nature of Security:

i. First Charge on all existing and future current assets of the company by way of Hypothecation (Second charge being
with NCD holders)

ii) Exclusive charge on landed properties by way of registered mortgage

iii) Personal guarantees of Directors of the company i.e., Mr B. Satish Kumar, Mr B. Ramesh Kumar, Mr B. Suresh Kumar

iv) Personal Guarantees of Mrs B. Jaya Padmavati, Mrs B Jyothikiran, Mr B. Suresh and Mr B. Rajesh to be restricted to
the property value mortgaged and

v) Corporate Guarantee of M/s Vizag Profiles Private Limited and M/s Umashiv Garments Private Ltd.

Note-3.14: TRADE PAYABLES
Micro and Small Scale Enterprises  361.05  376.98
Others (*)  12,203.03  13,951.85
Total :  12,564.08  14,328.84

Disclosures:
(*) Others includes dues to  companies where directors are interested - 210.04

As at 31st Mar, 2024 there are `.309.35 overdues payable  to micro and small enterprises (previous year `.78.02). The
interest outstanding is ̀ .12.79 (Previous year `.0.62) on the same. (Note: 3.31)

The above information is based on the decalarations received  from the Vendors who constitute as Supplier within the
meaning of Section 2(n) of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 As at 31/03/2024  As at 31/03/2023

Note-3.15: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Payables for Capital goods  2,404.78  92.32

Security Deposits  63.12  56.72

Other Current Liabilities  562.41  1,085.52

Payable for Expenses (*)  808.07  1,134.36

Non-convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (**)  1,860.88  1,860.88

Total :  5,699.26  4,229.79

Disclosures:

(*) Payable for expenses includes dues to  companies where

directors are interested  121.90  249.31

(**) 1,86,08,750 10.5% Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Share Capital alloted on Januray 27, 2016, to the shareholders
of Simhadri Power Limited consequent to the approval of amalgamation of Simhadri Power Limited with Steel Exchange
India Limited effective from 1.4.2013 by the Honourable High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for the state of Telagana and
for the state of Andhra Pradesh. The shares are redeemable on January 26, 2023 at `. 10 per share.

These redeemable cumulative preference shares do not contain any equity component and are classified as financial
liabilities in their entirety. In addition, the Company has designated these preference shares as financial liabilities at FVTPL
as permitted by Ind AS 109. The preference shares have fixed non-discretionay dividend payaments and mature on January
26, 2023.

The company has obtained extention for a period of 2 years till 26th January 2025  for redemtion of the 10.5% Non-
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares issued to Vizag Profiles Private Limited as the same are subordinated to the
NCD holders.

Note-3.16- OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory remittances  1,072.21  1,650.68

Unearned Revenue(*)  2,471.18  6,762.26

Payables to Employees  283.85  204.01

Others  12.05  15.04

Total :  3,839.29  8,631.99

Disclosures:

(*) Others includes dues to  companies where directors are interested -  2,500.00
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Note-3.17: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products  96,287.67  1,05,659.13

Sale of Energy  2,894.81  3,816.71

Sale of Traded Goods  9,734.62  29,356.97

Total :  1,08,917.09  1,38,832.81

Disaggregation of Revenue:

Finished Goods Sold

Rebar & Wires  73,342.98  81,482.05

Billets & Ingots  19,380.75  20,970.47

Sponge iron and Pig Iron  975.96  351.31

Steel Scrap & Structurals  205.39  1,506.64

Coal & Coal fines  -  17.53

Iron Ore & Iron Ore Fines  1,338.51  995.23

Mill Scale and Others  1,044.08  335.90

Total :  96,287.67  1,05,659.13

Energy

Power  2,894.81  3,816.71

Total :  2,894.81  3,816.71

Trading Goods Sold

Rebar, Wire & Wire Rod Coils  9,734.62  29,168.24

Gas Sales  -  188.73

Total :  9,734.62  29,356.97

Note-3.18: OTHER INCOME

a) Interest income:

 Bank margin money and others  57.56  50.00
b) Other non-operating income:

 Lease Rental Income  77.96  39.40

c) Other gains and loss:
 Gain(Loss) on disposal of property,plant and equipment  0.38  8.58

d) Other reciepts

Other receipts  272.75  405.52

Total :  408.65  503.50

 ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 Year Ended Year Ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
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Note-3.19: COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Raw Material Consumed

Opening Stock  21,211.97  20,588.31

Purchases  78,313.14  90,722.35

 99,525.11  1,11,310.67

Less: Closing Stock (**)  21,795.92  21,211.97

Cost of Materials Consumed (#)  77,729.18  90,098.70

 # Details of Materials Consumed

Sponge Iron  -  107.53

Scrap  17,867.46  26,261.78

Pig Iron/ Tundish Steel Skull  5,013.43  5,339.81

Coal /Coal fines  26,908.74  33,225.24

Iron ore/Iron ore fines  14,002.07  11,465.08

Ferro Shots  -  1,023.85

Lime Stone/Dolomite  230.22  201.30

Pellets  6,560.39  7,805.70

Pooled Iron/Panther shots  6,948.08  3,688.46

Others  198.80  979.95

Total :  77,729.18  90,098.70

 ** Details of Closing Stock of Raw Materials:

Scrap  11,143.50  11,407.99

Iron Ore & Iron ore fines  629.19  416.82

Coal/Coal fines  9,002.12  8,716.69

Pig Iron  3.72  46.32

Iron Ore (Acce)  110.00  -

Others  208.95  3.57

Pooled Iron/Panther shots  698.45  620.58

Total :  21,795.92  21,211.97

Note-3.20: PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS
Rebar, Wire & Wire Rod Coils 10,703.86  29,939.60
Gas  -  331.48
Total :  10,703.86  30,271.08

 ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 Year Ended Year Ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
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Note-3.21: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND TRADED GOODS:
Inventories (at Close)
 Finished Goods   4,435.54  4,489.09
 Traded Goods   2,001.12  1,397.18
Total : 6,436.66 5,886.28
Inventories (at commencement)
Finished Goods  4,489.09  2,004.21
Traded Goods  1,397.18  239.13
Total :  5,886.28  2,243.34
(Increase)/Decrease in Stock (A-B)  (550.39)  (3,642.94)

 ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 Year Ended Year Ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Details of inventory Manufacturing Trading Manufacturing Trading

Rebar & Wires  1,281.78  2,001.12  1,085.06  1,397.18

Billets & Ingots  794.25  -  1,328.85  -

Sponge iron  1,498.59  -  1,940.89  -

Steel Scrap  779.14  -  22.23  -

Mill Scale and Others  81.79  -  109.20  -

Slag  -  -  2.86  -

Total :  4,435.54  2,001.12  4,489.09  1,397.18
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Note-3.22: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Salaries,Wages, Bonus & Exgratia  3,347.08  3,031.25

Contributions to Provident Fund and other funds

Provident Fund & DLI  61.85  60.90

Pension Fund  55.33  48.53

Group Gratuity Fund  43.10  57.51

Staff welfare  33.83  40.66

Total :  3,541.18  3,238.85

Note-3.23: FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expenses to:

- Bank  135.90  121.86

- Others  6,688.62  9,891.67

Bank Charges & Comission  962.46  550.15

Total :  7,786.97  10,563.68

Note-3.24.1: OTHER EXPENSES

a) Manufacturing Expenses:
Stores, Spares & Consumables  4,792.20  4,903.61
Power & Fuel  120.11  179.51
Gas charges  -  7.25
Repairs & Maintenance  122.81  183.60
Factory Maintanance  7.09  2.47
Loading & Unloading Charges  36.40  6.03
Transmission Charges  297.75  407.45
Contract Charges  354.99  329.91
Labour Charges
Other Manufacturing expenses  293.42  157.09

 b) Other Operational Expenses:
Legal & professional Charges  265.47  281.66
Rent, Hire and Rates & Taxes  340.72  373.36
Insurance  36.69  50.76
Payment to Auditors

          As Auditors  60.00  45.00
          For Tax Audit  5.00  5.00
          For Tax representation  4.50  4.50
          For Certification & Others  4.50  4.50

CSR Expenses  56.55  42.77
Selling & Distribution Expenses  35.96  53.57
Discounts  349.04  1,294.50
General Charges ( #)  1,112.83  1,076.10
Bad Debts Written Off and others  -  12.12
Total :  8,296.03  9,420.77

 ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 Year Ended Year Ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
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#General Charges Includes:

Office Maintanance  39.08  46.13

Electricity charges  15.59  15.59

Postage & Telephone  10.39  10.27

Printing & Stationary  4.94  6.08

Freight  & Handling Charges  428.69  463.55

Yard Expenses  -  0.80

Vehicle Maintanance  33.36  30.90

Security Charges  80.87  111.02

Miscl. Expenses  235.10  112.91

Fees and Licence  68.08  95.78

Business Promotion  70.90  78.38

Donations  2.25  0.55

Travelling & Conveyance  123.56  104.14

Total :  1,112.83  1,076.10

Note-3.24.2: Impairment allowance for doubtful

debts and other receivables
Provision for doubtful debts  (438.96)  (218.95)

Total :  (438.96)  (218.95)

Note-3.25: DEFERRED TAX

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets  865.46  (3,056.46)

(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities  95.99  3.71

Total deferred tax expenses/(benefit)  961.45  (3,052.75)

 ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
 Year Ended Year Ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
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Particulars
31st March

2024
31st March

2023

i. (a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to the supplier as at the
end of the year.

(b) The interest due on the above amount, remaining unpaid to the
supplier as at the end of the year

ii. The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year;

iii. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

iv. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year; and

v. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

309.35 78.02

12.79 0.62

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

3.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments to the extent not provided for

Contingent Liabilities
` in Lakhs

31st March 2024
` in Lakhs

31st March 2023

a) Claim against the company by GAIL not acknowledge as debt 184.07 184.07
b) Demands from Sales tax department disputed 604.74 789.05
c) Demands from Excise departments disputed 4109.68 4144.30
d) Demands from GST departments disputed 89.41 89.41
e) Others 2583.03 1776.60

3.26 In the opinion of the management, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are expected to realise at least the
amount at which they are stated, if realised in the ordinary course of business and provision for all known
liabilities have been adequately made in the accounts.

3.27 Disclosure of Sundry creditors under trade payables has been determined to the extent such parties could be
identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 and relied upon by the Auditors.

Details of total outstanding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Disclosure relating to Micro and Small Enterprises: ` in Lakhs

Contingent liabilities represent show cause notices received or pending for final consideration and the Com-
pany has already submitted its objections in writing against the demands.
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Particulars
` in Lakhs

31st March 2024
` in Lakhs

31st March 2023

Raw Materials Nil Nil
Components and Spares Nil Nil

Particulars
` in Lakhs

31st March 2024
` in Lakhs

31st March 2023

Raw Materials Nil Nil
Components and Spares Nil Nil
Travelling Nil Nil
Others 3.86 Nil

Total 3.86                Nil

Particulars
` in Lakhs

31st March 2024
` in Lakhs

31st March 2023

Raw Materials (*) Nil 684.40

Others 3.86 Nil

3.30 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate
social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are Social Welfare, Health care and
charitable Trust etc. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were
primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:

Sl.
No.

Particulars
As  at March

2024
As  at March

2023

i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year Nil 38.58
ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 56.55 42.76
iii) Opening surplus at the beginning of the year 5.92 1.74
iv) Surplus at the end of the year 62.47 5.92
v) Shortfall at the end of the year NA NA
vi) Total of previous years shortfall NA NA
vii) Reason for shortfall NA NA

vi) Nature of CSR activities Social Welfare,
Health care and

charitable Trust etc.

` in Lakhs
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i. Decrease in current liabilities due to repayment of trade payable and other liabilities and increase current
assets.

ii. Increase in operational efficiency and decrease in finance cost.
iii. Increase in operational efficiency
iv. Increase in receivables due to market conditions
v. Repayment of trade payables
vi. Decrease in trading and power revenue.
vii. Increase in operational efficiency

Sl. No. Particulars 31.03.24 31.03.23 % of Variance

1. Current Ratio 2.08 1.34 55%(i)

2. Debt Equity Ratio 0.57 0.58 2%

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.04 0.77 35% (ii)

4. Return on Equity (ROE) 2% -11% 114%(iii)

5. Trade receivables turnover ratio 7.59 13.58 44%(iv)

6. Trade payables turnover ratio 6.62 9.59 31%(v)

7. Net capital turnover ratio 3.83 11.97 68%(vi)

8. Net Profit Margin (%) 1%  -4% 123%(vii)

9. Return on Capital Employed 13% 14% 7%
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3.32 Disclosure under Accounting Standards:
3.32.1 Employee Benefits as per Ind-AS 19:

Defined benefit plan-Gratuity: ` in Lakhs

Particulars 31st March 2024  31st March 2023 

A. Changes in the present value of the 
Obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning 
of the year 

 
262.51 

 
242.93 

Interest cost  18.20 17.36 
Current service cost  29.04 30.03 
Past service cost  - - 
Benefits paid/payable (19.91) (24.29)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 14.47) (3.52) 

Present value of obligation at the end of the 
year 304.31 262.51

B. Changes in the fair value of the Plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning  
of the year 

 
13.19 

 
36.42 

Expected return on plan assets  0.97 1.06 
Contributions (net) 6.50 - 
Benefits paid/payable  

(19.91)
(24.29) 

 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of
the year 0.75 13.19 

C. Amounts recognized in the 
Balance Sheet as on  

  

Present value of the obligations at the end
of the year

 
304.31

 
262.51

Fair value of plan assets at the end of
the year 0.75 13.19

Liabilities(+)/Asset(-) recognized in  
the balance sheet

 
(303.56) 

 
(249.32) 

D. Amounts recognized in the Statement
of P&L for the year ended

  

Current service cost  29.04 30.03 
Past service cost  - - 
Interest cost  17.23 15.58 
Net actuarial gain/loss recognized in 
the year 

 
46.27 

 
45.61 

E. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial(Gain)/Loss recognized for  
the period 

14.59 (3.52) 

Return on Plan Assets excluding net interest 13.94 0.71 
Total Actuarial(Gain)/Loss recognized
in OCI 28.52 (2.81)

F. Principal Actuarial Assumptions:    
Description 2023-24 2022-23 
Mortality IALM (2012-14)Ult  IALM (2012-14)Ult  
Interest/Discount Rate  7.21% 7.21% 
Rate of increase in compensation 5.00% 5.00%
Expected average remaining service  15.80 13.88 
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G.     Sensitivity Analysis

DR: Discount Rate ER: Salary Escalation Rate
PVO DR+1% PVO DR-1% PVO ER+1% PVO ER-1%

PVO 2,78,46,306 3,34,26,995 3,35,88,668 2,76,12,508
 H.     Asset Information

Target Allocation
 2023-24 2022-23 
 Total 

Amount  
Total 

Amount 
Total 

Amount  
% 

Debt Security-Government Bond Nil Nil Nil Nil
Equity Securities- Corporate Debt 
Securities 

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Other Insurance contracts Nil Nil Nil Nil
Gratuity Fund (LIC of India) 0.75 100.00% 13.19 100.00%
Total Itemized Assets 0.75 100.00% 13.19 100.00%

` in Lakhs

I.     Asset Liability Comparisons:

Year 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2024
PVO at end of 
period 

196.68 208.47 242.93 262.51 304.31 

Plan Assets  12.04 54.11 36.42 13.19 0.75 

Surplus/(Deficit)      (184.64) (154.36) (206.52) (249.32) (303.56) 

Experience 
adjustments on 
plan assets

 
 

(1.04)

 
 

(0.33) (1.50)

 
 

(0.71)

 
 

(13.94)

3.32.2 Segment Reporting as per  Ind-AS 108:

A) Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses and for which discrete financial information is available. All
operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

The Company has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the company's strategic
business units. These business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately
because they require different technology and marketing strategies. For each of the business units, the
company's Board reviews internal management reports on a periodic basis.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Company's reportable segments:

B) Information about reportable segments

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured
based on segment profit (before tax), segment revenue and segment capital employed as included in the
internal management reports that are reviewed by the board of directors. Segment profit is used to
measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating
the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-
segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.
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Reportable Segments
(Amount(`) in lakhs)

3.32.3 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24 are as follows:
a) Names of related parties and relation with the Company:
i. Key Management Personnel:

1. B.Satish Kumar- Chairman cum Managing Director
2. B.Suresh Kumar - Jt. Managing Director
3. B. Ramesh Kumar - Jt. Managing Director (Retired on 9th February, 2024)
4. B.Suresh - Director
5. B.Mohit Sai Kumar- Director
6. B.Bansidhar-Vice President Operations

 
Particulars 

 
Iron and Steel 

 
Power 

Other reconciliation 
items Consolidated Total  

 Current
Year  

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year 

Previous 
Year  

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year 

 
1.REVENUE 

  
 

 
 

 

 
External Sales 

 
1,06,022.29 1,35,016.11

 
2894.81 

 
3,816.71 -

 
- 1,08,917.10

 
1,38,832.81 

Inter-Segment 
Sales 

 
2,160.69 

 
2,636.22 - 

 
- 

 
2,160.69 

 
(2,636.22)                - 

 
               - 

 
Total Revenue

 
1,08,182.98 1,37,652.33

 
2894.81

 
3,816.71

 
2,160.69

 
(2,636.22) 1,08,917.10

 
1,38,832.81

2.RESULT

Segment Result 7,913.74 7,978.73 0.38 (247.60) - - 7,914.12 7,731.33
 
Finance Cost  

 
7,786.97 10,563.68

 
- 

 
- 

 
- - 7,786.97

 
10,563.68 

 
Exceptional & 
Extra ordinary 
expenses  

 
 
- 

 
 
-

 
 
-

 
 
- 

 
 
- - - 

 
 
- 

 
Income 
Taxes  
 

 
 
- 

 
 
-

 
 
-

 
 
- 

 
 
- -

      

Net profit  
-  -  -  

 
-

 
-  

 
-  

 
1,088.59  

 
(5,885.11)  

3.OTHER 
INFORMATION
Segment Assets 99,384.76  89,796.19 22,460.40  23,399.89  -  -  1,21,845.16  1,13,196.08  

Segment 
Liabilities  

24,141.20  31,344.41 2,169.10  7,022.72  -  -  26,310.30  38,366.85  

Additions to 
assets during 
the year

 
1206.06  959.88

 
5.55  

 
21.01  

 
-  

 
-  

 
1,211.61  

 
980.89  

Depreciation 
and 
Amortisation 
expenses during 
the year

 
 

1,381.75  1,460.17

 
 

748.96  

 
 

781.14  

 
 

-  

 
 

-  

 
 

2,130.71  

 
 

2,437.47         

 

961.45 (3052.75)
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ii. Enterprise over which key management personnel/their relatives exercise significant influence:
1. Vizag Profiles Private Limited 2. Umashiv Garments Private Limited
3. Simhadri Wires Private Limited 4. Simhadri Pellets India limited
5. Satyatej Vyaapar Private Limited 6. SAWP Steel Limited
7. Vizag Profiles Logistics Private Limited 8. Abhiram Enterprises
9. Vizag Profiles Education Society 10. Green City Apparels
11. Seric Industries Private Limited 12. Vijaya Lakshmi Resources  LLP

b)  Particulars of transactions during the year: (` in Lakhs)

Note: Sri B. Ramesh Kumar retired on 9th February, 2024

Nature of Transactions 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

(i) Transactions with Key Management  Personnel:

Sri B. Satish Kumar (Remuneration) 101.56 103.43

Sri B. Suresh Kumar (Remuneration) 92.40 72.00

Sri B. Ramesh Kumar (Remuneration) 72.17 63.00

Sri B. Mohit Sai Kumar 44.40 0.00

Sri B. Bansidhar 26.50 0.00

(ii) Transactions with enterprise over which  key management personnel/their  relatives exercise
significant influence:

M/s. Vizag Profiles Private Limited:

Sale 229.85 110.51

Lease Rental Income 11.50 6.00

Purchase 22.82 2.210.94

Interest & Other Services 105.40 1,510.67

Lease Rental Expenses 125.77 113.62

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

M/s. SAWP Steel Limited:

Sale 0.55 812.85

Purchase 3,807.27 12,375.56

Lease Rental Income 7.80 7.80

M/s. Vizag Profiles Logistics Private Limited:

Services 1,764.33 391.16

Lease Rental Income 40.90 -

M/s.Abhiram Enterprises:

Sale 8,789.72 6,125.43

M/s.Vizag Profiles Education Society:

Sale - 0.84

M/s.Seric Industries Private Limited:

Lease Rental Income 1.86 -
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(` in Lakhs)

Nature of the Party 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Enterprise over which key management personnel/
their relatives exercise significant influence:

M/s.Vizag Profiles Private Limited 99.58 (5,387.64,)

M/s. SAWP Steel Limited 7.49 (2,710.04)

M/s. Vizag Profiles Logistics Private Limited: (121.90) (249.31)

M/s.Abhriram Enterprises 1863.08 1,210.83

M/s.Vizag Profiles Education Society 53.16 53.16

M/s. Seric Industries Private Limited 2.19 -

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
attributable to Equity Shareholders (`) 1,068.96 (5,883.17)

Weighted Average Number of Shares for Basic EPS 11,654.33 8,263.42

Add: Adjustment for Equity Share Warrants - 145.55

Weighted Average Number of Shares 11,654.33 8,408.97

Add: Adjustment for Compulsorily Convertible Debentures - 758.00

Weighted Average Number of Shares for Diluted EPS 11,654.33 9,166.97

Basic Earnings Per Share (`) 0.09 (0.71)

Diluted Earnings Per Share (`) 0.09 (0.71)

Nominal Value Per Share (`) 1.00 1.00

3.32.4 Earnings Per Share (EPS) as per Ind AS-33

3.32.5 Accounting for Deferred Taxes as per Ind AS-12:

Necessary details have been disclosed in note no.3.25 for FY 2023-24

3.32.6 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as per Ind AS-37:

Necessary details in regard to provisions have been disclosed in note no.3.28

3.32.7 General:

a) Expenses are accounted under prepaid expenses only where the amounts relating to unexpired period

are material.

b) Some of the balances appearing under trade receivables, Trade payables, advances, security deposits

and other payables are subject to confirmations.

c) Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary so as to

confirm to the classification of the current year.
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(` in Lakhs)

As at March 2024 As at March 2023
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost

Financial Assets:
Trade receivables - - 17,457.46 - - 11,243.64
Cash and cash
equivalents - - 914.30 - - 1,129.14
Other bank balances - - 1,093.48 - - 809.64
Other financial assets - - 3,590.57 - - 2,312.33
Total: - - 23,055.80 - - 15,494.75
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings - - 4,194.77 - - 11,164.68
Trade payables - - 12,564.08 - - 14,328.84
Other financial liabilities - - 5,699.26 - - 4,229.79
Total: - - 22,458.10 - - 29,723.31

*FVTPL-Fair Value through Profit and Loss
*FVTOCI  -Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

3.32.8 Fair Value Measurement:

Financial Instruments by category

ä Assets that are not financial assets (such as receivables from statutory authorities, prepaid expenses,
advanced paid and certain other receivables) as of 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are not included.

ä Other liabilities that are not financial liabilities (such as statutory dues payable, advance from customers
and certain other accruals) as of 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are not included.

The carrying amount of above financial assets and liabilities are considered to be same as their fair values,
due to their short term nature.

3.32.9Financial Risk Management :

Risk Management Framework

The Company's Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors monitors the compliance with the Company's risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Company.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer
contract leading to a financial loss. The Company's is exposed to credit risk mainly from trade receivables
and other financial assets.
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-Year ended 31 March 2024 (` in Lakhs)

Ageing 0-30 30-60 60-90 90-120 120-180 >180 Total

Gross carrying
amount 16579.92 54.05 27.54 17.95 83.31 1190.56 17,953.35

Expected loss
rate 0.63% 15.63% 26.26% 11.58% 25.09% 29.63% 2.76%

Expected credit
losses (loss allowance
provision) 104.43 8.45 7.23 2.08 20.90 352.90 495.89
Carrying amount of
trade receivables
(net of impairment) 9,568.67 2,736.97 1,814.85 420.14 314.36 2,602.46 17,457.46

(i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has
been managed by the Company's through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company's grants  credit terms in the normal course of business.
On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company's uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment
loss or gain. The Company's uses a provision matrix and forward-looking information and an assessment of the
credit risk over the expected life of the financial asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach is detailed as per the below
tables:

(` in Lakhs)

Ageing 0-30 30-60 60-90 90-120 120-180 >180 Total

Gross carrying
amount 7,818.88 2,194.12 1,084.01 454.58 258.24 368.66 12,178.49

Expected loss
rate 0.91% 26.05% 4.14% 3.87% 12.80% 53.24% 7.68%

Expected credit losses
(loss allowance
provision)              71.50 571.54 44.92 17.59 33.04 196.26 934.85

Carrying amount of trade
receivables
(net of impairment) 7,747.39 1,622.58 1.,039.09 436.99 225.19 172.40 11,243.64

- Year ended 31 March 2023
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(` in Lakhs)

  Particulars  Less than  6 months 1-2 2-3 More Total
6 months to 1 year Yrs. Yrs. than 3 Yrs

Undisputed Trade
receivables- considered good 16762.78 203.09 269.64 158.96 423.19 17817.67

Undisputed Trade
receivables- Considered
Doubtful - - - - - -

Disputed Trade receivables -
considered good - - - - 135.68 135.68

Disputed Trade receivables-
Considered Doubtful

 Total: 16762.78 203.09 269.64 158.96 558.87 17953.35

Trade receivables ageing schedule as  31st March, 2024:

(` in Lakhs)

  Particulars  Less than  6 months 1-2 2-3 More Total
6 months to 1 year Yrs. Yrs. than 3 Yrs

Undisputed Trade
receivables- considered good 10,353.21 187.22 661.01 148.49 692.87 12,042.81

Undisputed Trade
receivables- Considered
Doubtful - - - - - -

Disputed Trade receivables -
considered good - - - - 135.68 135.68

Disputed Trade receivables-
Considered Doubtful

 Total: 10353.21 187.22 661.01 148.49 828.56 12178.49

Trade receivables ageing schedule as  31st March, 2023:

(` in Lakhs)Reconciliation of loss allowance provision-trade receivables:

Loss allowance on 1st April 2022 1153.79
Changes in loss allowance (218.95)
Loss allowance on 31st March 2023 (934.85)
Changes in loss allowance (438.96)
Loss allowance on 31st March 2024 (495.89)
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(ii) Other Financial Assets & loans:
The company has limited credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents as the deposits are maintained with banks
and financial institutions with high credit rating. Further, other financial and current assets mainly comprise of purchase,
expenses advance and balances with statutory authorities (GST input credit balances and direct tax receivable balances)
which are recoverable from Government. Hence, these are low risk items and the Company's evaluates the recoverability
of these financial assets at each reporting date and wherever required, a provision is created against the same.

(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid
funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The Company requires
funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term capital expenditure for capex.
The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which together with the available cash and cash equivalents
provide liquidity in the short-term and long-term. The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk through cash generated from operations, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. As at 31st March, 2024, the Company's current assets exceed its current
liabilities by `. 28,650.66 lakhs.

(` in Lakhs)

Ageing Less than 3 More than 3  More  than 1 >5 years Total
Months and up to than 1 year Year and

 12 months upto 5 yrs

Trade payable 11,205.34 919.97 438.77 - 12,564.08

Non-current borrowings
(NCD's) 9.62 16.81 34,028.29 34,054.73

Current borrowings 782.16 3,376 - - 4194.77

Other financial Liabilities 2,790.90 314.92 2,593.43 5,699.25

(` in Lakhs)

Ageing Less than 3 More than 3  More  than 1 >5 years Total
Months and up to than 1 year Year and

 12 months upto 5 yrs

Trade payable 11,193.44 2,846.56 288.84 - 14,328.84

Non-current borrowings
(Banks) 6.81 21.23 22,846.95  22,874.99

Current borrowings 6,580.54 4,584.14 - - 11,164.68

Other financial Liabilities 1,176.25 302.92 2,750.61 4,229.79
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(` in Lakhs)

  Particulars  Less than  6 months 1-2 2-3 More Total
6 months to 1 year Yrs. Yrs. than 3 Yrs

MSME 290.47 49.90 16.44 4.23 - 361.04

Others 10,914.87 870.07 190.62 174.65 52.84 12,203.04

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -

Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -

Total: 11,205.34 919.97 207.06 178.88 52.84 12,564.08

Trade payables ageing schedule as t 31st March, 2024:

(` in Lakhs)

  Particulars  Less than  6 months 1-2 2-3 More Total
6 months to 1 year Yrs. Yrs. than 3 Yrs

MSME 374.60 1.78 0.06 - 0.54 376.98

Others 10,818.84 2,844.77 195.21 2.76 90.26 13,951.85

Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -

Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -

Total: 11,193.44 2,846.56 195.28 2.76 90.80 14,328.84

Trade payables ageing schedule as t 31st March, 2023:

(c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Company's income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

(d) currency risk

Since majority of the Company's operations are being carried out in India and since all the material balances are
denominated in its functional currency, the company does not carry any material exposure to currency fluctuation
risk.
The Company's exposure to foreign currencies in minimal and hence no sensitivity analysis is presented.

(e) Interest rate risk
(i) Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's is exposed to interest rate risk because
funds are borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the
cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate.

The borrowings of the Companies are principally denominated in rupees with a mix of fixed and floating
rates of interest. The Company's has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in
base lending rate. The Company's uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage
the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations. The risk is managed by the Company by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings

(ii) The profile of the Company's' fixed and floating rate borrowings is given below: (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Variable interest rate 782.16 1,000
Fixed interest rate (including equity
component of compounded financial
instruments) 37,467.33 34,481.44
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(f) Commodity price risk:
Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuation in prices of raw materials like iron ore, coal and scrap etc. The
Company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in
commodity prices and freight costs. The Company's commodity risk is managed centrally through well-established
trading operations and control processes.

3.32.10 Capital Management

Necessary details have been disclosed in note no.3.25 for FY 2023-24

(a) Risk management:

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Company's

objectives when managing the capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they

can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confi-

dence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors and senior management

monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as result from operating activities divided by total

shareholders' equity.

(b) Dividends: (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

(i) Equity Shares
Final dividend for the year ended
31st March 2024 of Rs. Nil
(31st March 2023 of Rs. Nil) - -

UDIN: 24229966BKBLVX1527

Place: Visakhapatnam
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